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GLOSSARY

Unless the content otherwise requires, the capitalised terms B X E BB ATIEIN - RRIER - HBHE - TEHE -5
used under Corporate Information, Financial Highlights, EEFmwmEDHT - EFERE - CEBRAHRE B -«
Chairman’s Statement, Management Discussion and &KEARHE - EERSNEEECERFE UEHE
Analysis, Directors’ Report, Corporate Governance Report, NYWZEAEFAREEEGUTIHNSERE -
Environmental, Social and Governance Report, Biographical

Information of Directors and Senior Management, Financial

Summary and Property Portfolio shall have the respective

meanings set out below.

“2024 AGM”
“ECNFRRATAE]

“AGM(s)”
(ERBEFAE]

“ASP”
[ EE]

“Audit Committee”
[BZZag]

“Board”

E=-

“business day”

=E3=0

“Bye-Laws”

R

“Chairman” or “Mr. Wong”

EFADAPES =

“Chief Executive Officer”
[EE#HITE]

“close associate(s)”
[ERBEEA

“CMCU

b2 - A EMEHl 1sk[CMC]

“Company” or “Sino Harbour”

[ARARSEB R

AGM to be held on Friday, 20 September 2024
BRZZZMEAA-THEPRRL)RTHORRBFRE

annual general meeting(s) of the Company
ARFRFBEAE

average selling price

FHHEER

audit committee of the Board
EEeREREEY

board of Directors
o=

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB LA R T HRE

amended and restated bye-laws of the Company

RRREIERT R BT H AR

Mr. WONG Lam Ping, the executive director, chairman of the Board,
chief executive officer and general manager of the Company
EMKES - BARBIMITES EFGEFE - EFNTERALE

the chief executive officer of the Company

ARAEFATE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB EmAR R TR E

an important section in drug development process

EpmBERETN—EEEED

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited, a company incorporated in
Bermuda with limited liability, the issued Shares of which are listed and
traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 1663)
EEEREEERAR  —HRBRETMRIZBRAR - HE &
TR R BRI PrEMR BT R 5 (RIDR5E - 1663)
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“Company Secretary”
[ARHE]

“Companies Ordinance”
NG

“Consolidated Financial Statements”

[#R & M5k

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”
[ 22 A% A B

“Corporate Governance Code”

[ EA~TA

“Deputy Chairman”
F=IESEE

“Director(s)”

[E%]

“ESG Report”
[ESG#RE |

“Executive Director(s)/ED(s)”
[ITES]

“Extra Good”

[Extra Good

“Final Dividend”
[REAR 2.

“FvOoCI”
MR A EREM 2RI

“FY2023”
[—Z-=Bf%F)

“FY2024” or “Year”
[T PUEt & s [ AN FE

“GFA”
[ EEmETE]

“Group”
[REE

GLOSSARY

company secretary of the Company
PAN/NE ]I A/NE LD/

Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong
FBEDF622F

audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year

REERFENEEZEAMBERER

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB FHARRIFTE T HRE

corporate governance code contained in Appendix C1 to the Listing
Rules
TR AIKERCT PR EL 2 (R EE AT A

deputy chairman of the Board
EXgRTRE

director(s) of the Company

ARAES

Environmental, Social and Governance Report
RE g kERWME

executive Director(s)

WITES

Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.
Extra Good Enterprises Ltd.

a final dividend for FY2024
T FRERE

fair value through other comprehensive income

BoanEREMEERESIR

year ended 31 March 2023
HEe_Z-_=#=-A=+—HILEFE

year ended 31 March 2024
BE-_Z-_MF=RA=+—HLFE

gross floor area
REWEE

Company and its subsidiaries
RRE KA R

EBEREBERAT o 2023/24 F ik 3



GLOSSARY

“Hangzhou Gangyu”
[N B R

“HK$”

[Tl

“HKFRSs”
(BB HmE LR

“Hong Kong”
(&%)

“Independent Auditor”
[ 1% 2RA

“INED(s)”
(B FEMITEE]

“Listing Rules”
[ LR R

“Model Code”
[TZ2E=T A

“Ms. Chan”
(TR t]

“NED”
[PFATTER]

“Nomination Committee”

TERRBe]

“Pan Hong Holdings”

DR R

“PRC” or “China”

[ B

Hangzhou Gangyu Enterprises Management Company Limited (v
L EEIRAR N T]), a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNBBPEEERERAE - —ERPBRGFMEA L2 ERAR - AR
RElzEEZ2ENBRR

Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong
B BREEEY

Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants

ARG AGRANET Y REER

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEEBRAITTRR

independent auditor of the Company
ZN/NCIEE RV % S €

independent non-executive Director(s)
BN FRITES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B AP R8 4 LT R Al

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
LR R ERCmTE < L BT AZESEITES X FHAIFESRR

Ms. CHAN Heung Ling, the wife of Mr. WONG
PRIzt - AESEZE

non-executive Director

FHTES

nomination committee of the Board

ExeiRe%Be

Pan Hong Holdings Group Limited (stock code: P36), a company
incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability whose issued shares are
listed on the main board of the SGX-ST
NBIEREEBR AT RMRIE - P36) » REREFMALNERA
Al BEEITRODAZMAERLET

the People’s Republic of China and, for the purpose of this annual
report, excluding Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region
and Taiwan

REARKNE  RAFERMS - FREES  RFISITHRERS

=
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“Register of Members”
[ AR 3R & FC 11

“Remuneration Committee”

BB

“RMB”
N

“SFO”

(&5 KR RG]

“SGX-ST”
(% 32 FfT )

“Share(s)”
[ 15 ]

“Shareholder(s)”
(A&

“SHCM”

EERE]

nsq.m.u

K]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B8t 22 T |

“subsidiary(ies)”
Kil=pNGl

“substantial shareholder(s)”
[EZERE]

“United States”
[ZEE ]

“Us§’
E3H

wgp
FAEARER A

GLOSSARY

register of members of the Company
AR R R B

remuneration committee of the Board

EEEVMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

AR - PEVZEEH

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong
Kong)
B LEIE GG (BB EDIE57T1E)

Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
MK BLRSHABERAF

ordinary share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
A RIRAFFI0.018 7T 2 L ik

holder(s) of the Share(s)
SESZE PN

Hangzhou Sino Harbour Commercial Management Co., Ltd. (#/M& %
EEEIE AR AR, a company incorporated in the PRC with limited
liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
MMNESEHEEEARAR  —HARPBEFMRI2BERAT @+ &K
RNEMEEW B AR

square metre(s)

F K

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERXHMAR AR

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
BB AR T HRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

HA ETRAFETRRE

United States of America
x

United States dollar(s), the lawful currency of United States

X XBEEER

per cent. or percentage
ATt

EBEREBMARAT o 2023/24 Fi 5



CORPORATE INFORMATION
AEEF

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. YUE Sau Lan (Resigned on 31 January 2024)
Sir KWOK Siu Man KR (Appointed on 21 February 2024)

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WONG Lui
Ms. YUE Sau Lan (Resigned on 31 January 2024)
Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Appointed on 31 January 2024)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen (Chairman)
Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lam Ping
Mr. SHI Feng

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. XIE Gang (Chairman)
Mr. HE Dingding

Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang
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SHARE LISTING

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 01663

COMPANY’S WEBSITE

http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN PRC

Levels 25 and 26, Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center,
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan,

No. 15668 Honggu Avenue, Honggu Tan Central District,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi Province,

the PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN HONG KONG

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2363 1300
Facsimile: (852) 2764 2160

REGISTERED OFFICE
Clarendon House,

2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE
Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEHR

Bfn £
BEABMAERZAIBRAREIR
f&1 5% © 01663

AR #8h
http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk
BBRPEETEE £
Y

IPEAEma™
ALAVEE /D &R AL K 38 156857
e AT

EB S EP 025K 268
EBRTEEEMY

B

JUBEALR

558 E 78 37-395%
FARIESES sl
BEE1215%

BEEE ¢ (852) 2363 1300
25 : (852) 2764 2160

EERE

Clarendon House,
2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM 11,
Bermuda

FERDBFELE

Conyers Corporate Services (Bermuda) Limited
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,

Hamilton HM 11,

Bermuda

RIODBFETDE

EERELSSTARAT
E84LA
B RIE1485:211#22103BE

B BEm

BRI EEREIMETMERAT
b ES -]
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
DECEHES

Profit Attributable to Owners of

Revenue the Company
=] 3¢
[N AN THEE AEGEF
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Gearing Ratio:
Total Borrowings Less
Related Deposit Collateral/Total Equity
Cash and Cash Equivalents GREAMER:
ReRBESEEY BEERMERK TR A ER A
(RMB’000)
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2000 35.4%
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i
[ANR)
225%  227%  26.2%
99,603 9
:::: 92,012 94,195 88,224 20.4%
000
000
i
[LAN)
2019/20  2020/21  2021/22  2022/23  2023/24 2019/20 2020/21 2021/22  2022/23  2023/24

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited < ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24



ENVIRONMENTAL FACTORS

The current global economic environment is still challenging
with the political relationship between China and the United
States continued to heighten, which has restricted the
development of high-tech and biotechnology sectors, one
of China’s key economic tracks, resulting in increased
uncertainty of China’s economic growth. China’s already
fatigue real estate market continues to face serious
challenges as both property sales and prices remain
sluggish. However, with positive policies bolstering the
development of domestic real estate market such as easing
property purchase restrictions, lowering mortgage interest
rates and lowering down payment ratio requirements were
introduced by the government recently, the rigid demand of
residential properties for self-use and improvement purposes
in market was stimulated. This not only helped accelerate
industry destocking but also maintained a healthy market
development. It is believed that the relaxation of regulatory
policies that centered around the theme of “region-specific
regulatory policies”, “precision implementation policies” and
“one city, one policy” will be maintained, which will boost a
gradual recovery of homebuyers’ confidence and thereby
help to stabilize the domestic property market.

BUSINESS REVIEW

To cope with the challenges of business development,
the Group continues to focus on diversified business
development as its operational strategy. In addition to the
existing real estate development projects, the Group also
continued to actively explore new business markets and
advanced to markets with high development potential so as
to look for new business growth to ensure its sustainable
development.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

BRREE

BATRBREBERFEDANRE - PRBUGBERERR
¥ B B EEER 2 — 8= R BN Y Rl <R 820 3%
FRAERRS - BT RELEIEROIEENE - SRR
BNREEMET S EREMEYEHENERIES
RIS ERIR DB - AT - BEBFLHEL X HAEER
MIEERE - EFREREERRS - THEZIBH RME
EEMERS  EUARATSEROMFMRSZEER
BEIMRITREEFNESTISREER - HELFEE
TSR] [FBERR] [ —RINAZRTRERERS
SE - APDEXEELESME  SREMESEIE -

3 4m)

REHEBEROIE  AEEEBUNSTEBRRRARE
HEERE  RREFEMERRIBBIN  RNEETTRER
WM EBTE > ARRENSOTISHEE  SHHOE
BIERMAERTEEOAIFEER -
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EREHE

On one hand, the Group continues to deepen its real estate
peripheral business and extend its development blueprint
for the real estate sector. At present, SHCM under the
Company has been providing property operation services
and commercial management to the Group’s self-owned
commercial properties as well as external projects, in
order to enhance operations stability and performance of
returns for future development. Looking ahead, the Group
will actively seek for win-win cooperation on which the
Group will be able to develop new markets with strategic
resources, expand the Company’s business presence
and enhance its profitability and market influence, while
deepening its cooperation with local governments and other
companies. It will bring unparalleled advantages to the
future development of the Group.

On the other hand, as we continue to deepen our efforts
in the “Big Health” business, Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry
Hospital Company Limited (“Pingxiang Ganghua”), a
subsidiary of the Group has already laid a solid foundation
for the Group’s goal of building a chain of dental hospitals,
further planning the development blueprint of the Group’s
“Big Health” business. Benefitting from China’s policy on
centralised procurement of dental implants business with
an aim to increase public awareness of dental health, the
dental specialty business performed satisfactorily with
robust growth momentum during the Year. It is expected to
become a stable pillar of the Group’s “Big Health” business
development in the future.

10

—hHE - AEBEERCEHENRIERE - EHEHE
RN EREE - AEEBENEEEE BT SAKE AR
MR A RIAREINIRE B RREMRELRGHEEE -
RARAARKBRELNHBEENRERI - KK - K
EeRGESRHFELRAIFNREE - SAREENRE
WERBERI™S - ERAR R K EBHRE LR &6
NMTIEZENNRE @ IUREL T BFNEMEENE
TERR - WAKBERRERTRETLHNOESD -

H—E c BERWIREEIEY - NEENE QB
BEORERBRAR (EHBE) A ASEITEEHN
BEEMBERNBERIT N TREENER £ PRETAE
BIAREIZBHERER - XENPEEETEREER
REARTHEESS  RAFE  DEEMEBRRR
i BRBERY - BAIARREEXN/AKEIKZE]IE
BREROIBE AT °
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to our
philosophy of “seeking steady progress” when developing
our real estate business, which will grow in triple with
our prospering “Big Health” business and commercial
management business. After a round of industry adjustment,
the industry is expected to develop in a healthier and more
steady way in the future. Among which, real estate sales
are expected to be slightly better than market forecasts.
The gradual relaxation of China’s regulation of the real
estate industry will inevitably provide the Group with
new opportunities to refuel its real estate business with
profitability and support the Group’s steady progress. While
making solid strides, the Board will maintain a prudent
attitude in the ever-changing operating environment,
implement prudent and flexible financial policies, adhere to
prudent financial management strategies, and maintain a
reasonable and safe debt level to ensure the healthy and
long-term development of the Group, thereby fulfilling its
commitment to bring long-term investment value returns to
Shareholders.

APPRECIATION

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank all
Shareholders, business partners and customers of the
Group for their support and trust over the past year
and express my sincere gratitude to the Directors, our
management team and all our employees for their hard
work and contribution to the Group.

Wong Lam Ping
Chairman
Hong Kong, 26 June 2024

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

RERE

RERK  AEEDERFRPRENEEZRFWE
X% BRY EHOIAEREINMEE XHIE=BFE] %
‘- EEB—WMITERE  BHARARTESENRZEFIR
KR - B BHEMEHEKERRTISRAL - B
ERRBIHRHFHETENEENE - BRALEH
AREHEXBEMNFTESE I AKEBEZ LN
17- EBHBESRKOFN ZEFERSBENKLEER
BHiDASRFEANEREE  BETEERELTNOMFIK
R BRERBEOPEELRE ARAHE  REWNREKX
£ DHEARASENREREERR  EMERBRRER
RENREEER R A -

&)

RE ARARREZSUEE—FAREZBRR ¥
BHLEFPHAKBENIBREL  URHES  TEE
BEEBETWFHTIERAR - RRROMREH

FrE
TEFRIK

B ZZE-WEXAZ+~H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2024
COMPARED TO FY2023

Revenue

In FY2024, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB891.7 million, representing an increase of 260.3% from
approximately RMB247.5 million in FY2023.

Revenue from sales of properties held for sale in FY2024
was primarily derived from the delivery of residential units
and car park spaces of Sino Harbour ® Guanlan (£/5 o &}
J&) Phase 2 in Yichun, the PRC.

Chemistry, Manufacturing and Control (“CMC”) is an
important section in drug development process. Revenue
from CMC related services in FY2024 and FY2023 mainly
included small molecule chemical drugs quality research
and control, synthesis process R&D and preparation R&D
services provided to pharmaceutical companies.

Dental service income in FY2024 mainly included general
dentistry, orthodontics and implantology.

CECOMEFR-BCCMECMBEALEDE

BT REBEHBRAHDARESII.7TES
T =B ENARKE247 55 8 T 11260.3% ©

—EUEFE s HE
FiEBeEH —_B{E=E8A

FEMEIWATERAR
RAFEEATL -

REE

8 - FEMZEH ((CMCREYAERIZTH —EER
B o —T_MBFEM_—T = FCMCHEBARIEKAE
EERERARECRERERE D FILENEENRT - E8

B AR TE RS TEA RT3 R -

“ECMMFORBRERBKRATIZEFBREE—RITFR
% FERBIEARE TR o

2024 2023
—E_MF —ET=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKEFIT

Revenue from contracts with REEBMBERELEAE1555EKE

customers under HKFRS 15 BEEEHNZBA
Sales of properties held for sale HMERFEYE 831,784 181,482
CMC related service income CMC$B 8 AR 75 A 1,663 9,400
Dental service income e B8 7 AR A5 U 11,092 6,984
844,539 197,866
Revenue from other source KB HARFEZWA

Rental income el A 47,118 49,594
891,657 247,460

12
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2024
COMPARED TO FY2023 (CONTINUED)

Revenue (Continued)

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (j)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties and (i) car
parking spaces during FY2024:

EERE WD

CECNUFE-FC-UE B REL R D E(E)

WA (8)
TR T W ERNNEEDE - (V@ EDE Ki)E
B Z WADHT

Percentage
2024 2023 change
—E-NE —E-= 2HH O
() Residential T=
- Gross floor area (“GFA”) sold - D EREmE((REEE])
(in sg.m.) (LA F 7 2KET) 106,938 14,648 630%
- Average selling price (‘ASP”) - FHEE ([FHEE))
(RMB per sq.m.) (F-FHRARE) 7,470 8,162 (8.5%)
~ Revenue (approximately - WABIARETFT)
RMB’000) 798,837 119,554 568%
(ii) Commercial BES
- GFA sold (in sqg.m.) - BERBEERKUFHRE) 1,262 855 48%
- ASP (RMB per sq.m.) - FHEBEFIRARE) 3,110 10,226 (70%)
~ Revenue (approximately - WABIARETFT)
RMB’000) 3,926 8,745 (55%)
(i) ~ Car parking spaces (=]
- Revenue (approximately L ONCIIN &)
RMB'000) 29,020 53,183 (45%)
Revenue from sales of properties held H & E ¥ E WA
for sale (approximately RMB’000) (FIARETFoT) 831,784 181,482 358%
Note: sq.m. means square metre(s)
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin HEREREBRR

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB149.9
million in FY2023 to approximately RMB595.6 million in
FY2024. Gross profit margin decreased from 39.4% in
FY2023 to 33.2% in FY2024. In respect of the lower gross
profit margin in FY2024, this was due to the combined
effect of the written down of properties held for sale and a
lower portion of the Group’s revenue attributable to rental
income, which had a higher gross profit margin compared
to the residential units of Sino Harbour ¢ Guanlan phase 2
that were handed over in FY2024.

HEXNAR S =—MFHARE14005ETENE =
TP FHARBEB6EETT c EFERY T —=8f
F39.4% P E-—ZT BT F33.2% - — T N FHE
FIERSE - THERAMUREEWEURAEER DD U
ABRESWRANGEFE  ME-S_NHFBERME
BeEUR —HiIEEEMAL - AEBEMNAS WA T EE

=
= °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL RESULTS FOR FY2024
COMPARED TO FY2023 (CONTINUED)

Other Income and Other Gains and Losses, Net

Other income and other gains and losses, net change from
net gain of approximately RMB27.8 million in FY2023 to
net loss of approximately RMB25.2 million in FY2024. The
decrease was mainly attributable to the fair value loss of
investment properties.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB19.0 million in FY2023 to approximately
RMB46.0 million in FY2024. The higher selling and
distribution expenses in FY2024 were mainly due to an
increase in the marketing expenses recognised for Sino
Harbour ¢ Guanlan.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses decreased to approximately
RMB68.6 million in FY2024 from approximately RMB72.3
million in FY2023. The decrease was mainly attributable to
the net effect of decrease in administrative staff cost, utility
expense and depreciation and increase of loss allowance
on deposits paid and other receivables.

Finance Costs

The Group recorded approximately RMB11.5 million non-
capitalised finance costs in FY2024, which had increased
from approximately RMBO0.8 million in FY2023. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in interest expense
charged on bank loans in FY2024.

Profit before Income Tax

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
recorded a profit before income tax of approximately
RMB144.8 million in FY2024, compared to approximately
RMB33.3 million in FY2023, representing an increase of
approximately RMB111.5 million.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses increased to approximately
RMB113.4 million in FY2024 from approximately RMB22.3
million in FY2023. The increase was mainly attributable to
the increases in revenue and profit before income tax for
FY2024.

As a result, the Group had recorded a profit after tax of

approximately RMB31.4 million in FY2024, compared to
approximately RMB11.0 million in FY2023.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2024

Property, Plant and Equipment

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB56.3 million, compared to
approximately RMB38.9 million as at 31 March 2023. The
increase was mainly attributable to the net effect of addition
of equipment and depreciation during FY2024.

Investment Properties

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had investment properties
at fair value of approximately RMB1,537.0 million, compared
to approximately RMB1,491.2 million as at 31 March 2023.
The increase was mainly attributable to the net effect of the
addition of properties held for sub-lease under operating
lease and fair value loss.

Intangibles

Intangible assets mainly represented copyright, have been
written down to zero as at 31 March 2024, compared to
approximately RMB2.1 million as at 31 March 2023. The
decrease was attributable to the impairment.

Financial Assets at FVOCI

It represented equity interests in a number of entities
incorporated in the PRC and Jiangxi Longyu Medicine
Co., Limited, on which the Group does not have control
nor significant influence. It decreased from approximately
RMB8.7 million as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
RMB5.7 million as at 31 March 2024 which was attributable
to the fair value changes on equity interests.

Pledged Deposits

Long-term and short-term pledged deposits decreased
from approximately RMB60.4 million as at 31 March 2023
to approximately RMB54.3 million as at 31 March 2024. The
decrease was mainly due to a decrease in deposits pledged
against mortgage loan to properties purchaser due to the
issuance of ownership certificate.

Properties Held under Development

As at 31 March 2024, the Group’s properties held under
development decreased to approximately RMB1,021.2
million from approximately RMB1,720.8 million as at 31
March 2023. The decrease was due to completion of Sino
Harbour e Guanlan (£/%5 e E) phase 2.

EERE WD

R-IZBZNFE=ZA=+t—BZUBERROE

WE - BERRE

RZZE-NFEF=ZRA=+—H AEEHEEME BELR
BOARESSASE L MR- E-_=F=-A=1+—HE
HEBARKEIBIAET - WMEFEHA S _NBHFAE

RERITENFRETE -

BREWE

R-ZZE-WNE=A=+—H AEAHREREVMEARE
AR 537068 MR _E-_=4F=A=+—HE|
HEBARE1 491288 - BINETEHNBRBELCEHER
BEDMZWEE MG AR EREBEFFEMR -

BVEE

ﬁﬁﬁ?{%%“ﬁ% R-T_ME=A=+—HBH#0A
'$Htt;7;_¢ A=+—HBHAARK218
o BA TR BEFTEL

BEREMZEKRBIESREE
TFRAEGFMA I ER M IFAEFEERMDARAD
B REBUZSERYELFEREATES -
_7__¢ B=+—HBHARMS7TEE TR

TWNFE=ZA=+—HHNARESTEE T - i
&%ZQAE AE)FTER ©

L

\I/tgxmﬁﬁ 52
HFFE

%Hﬁ)lﬂi_'l\tﬂi X
S H ZF o

SIEAERK

RE L E S SR FRER
R¥604B8TTALER

\ZF-=F=-A=1+—RHHOA

N\ZE_WF=ZA=ZTHHAR
KB43RBTT - MAOTEARUREMEREMAYEE
RIRRIRIBERN S EMFFOR D AEL -

PR E

R-ZE-NF=A=+—8 AEERZEFYWERN_-FT
C=EHE=ZA=1+—BHAR¥17208ABITRLENAR
1.021.2B8 7T o M TIRPNIEBeENR — BB R TAT
ﬁo

EBEREBERAT o 2023/24 F ik 15



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENWED T

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2024 (CONTINUED)

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale increased from approximately
RMB237.0 million as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
RMB765.3 million as at 31 March 2024, which was mainly
due to the combined effect of the transfer in and handover
of completed property units and the written down of
properties held for sale.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

The Group’s prepayments and other receivables amounted
to approximately RMB572.2 million as at 31 March 2024,
compared to approximately RMB761.6 million as at 31
March 2023.

The decrement was mainly due to the prepayment paid to
contractors transferred to properties held for sales upon
completion of Sino Harbour ¢ Guanlan Phase 2.

Accounts Payable, Accruals and Other Payables and
Contract Liabilities

Accounts payable decreased to approximately RMB16.0
million as at 31 March 2024 from approximately RMB59.8
million as at 31 March 2023 due to a decrease in amounts
payable to the contractors for construction costs incurred in
respect of Sino Harbour e Guanlan.

Accruals and other payables mainly comprised the accrued
construction costs and project-related expenses that were
based on the progress of project development but were not
due for payment.

Accruals and other payables increased to approximately
RMB239.7 million as at 31 March 2024 from approximately
RMB211.1 million as at 31 March 2023, which was due to
the increase in accrued construction cost for Sino Harbour
e Guanlan.

Contract liabilities which comprises sales deposits and
installments received from customers decreased from
approximately RMB1,724.5 million as at 31 March 2023
to approximately RMB929.0 million as at 31 March 2024.
The decrease was mainly due to the handover of Sino
Harbour e Guanlan phase 2.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

REVIEW OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 31
MARCH 2024 (CONTINUED)

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities decreased from approximately
RMB131.5 million as at 31 March 2023 to approximately
RMB119.4 million as at 31 March 2024, mainly attributable
to the provision of deferred tax liabilities in respect of fair
value loss on investment properties.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Cash Position
Cash and Bank Balances

In FY2024, the Group had recorded a net cash outflow of
approximately RMB22.8 million from operating activities,
mainly attributable to a decrease in accruals, other payables
and contract liabilities.

Net cash outflow from investing activities in FY2024 was
approximately RMB9.1 million, which was mainly due to
purchase of properties, plant and equipment.

Net cash inflow from financing activities in FY2024
was approximately RMB20.3 million, which was mainly
attributable to receipts from new loans, which were partially
offset by repayments of loan principals and interests.

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had cash and bank
balances of approximately RMB184.4 million (31 March
2023: RMB434.6 million), which consisted of cash and
cash equivalents of approximately RMB88.2 million (31
March 2023: RMB99.6 million) and bank balances restricted
for construction work of approximately RMB96.2 million
(31 March 2023: RMB335.0 million), and were mostly
denominated in RMB.

Bank Loans

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had total borrowings
of approximately RMB532.0 million, compared to
approximately RMB455.4 million as at 31 March 2023. The
Group’s bank loans were denominated in RMB (31 March
2023: RMB). In FY2024, the effective annual interest rates of
the bank loans were ranging from 4.45% to 7.05% (FY2023:
5.5% to 7.6% per annum).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
(CONTINUED)

Gearing Ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity
and then multiplied by 100%. As at 31 March 2024, the
Group’s gearing ratio was 26.2% (31 March 2023: 22.7%).
The Group has implemented certain loan management
policies which include close monitoring of the gearing ratio
and any changes in interest rates.

Funding and Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital
and other liquidity requirements principally from cash
generated from our operations and bank and other loans.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited to
cash generated from our operations, bank and other loans
as well as other external equity and debt financing. The
Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain
a contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group
maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of its operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash
and bank balances, other receivables and other payables
which are denominated in HK$ and United States dollars.
The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group reviews its
foreign currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During FY2024, the Company had no material acquisition or
disposal of assets, subsidiaries, associated companies or
joint ventures.

EVENT AFTER THE END OF FY2024

There was no event after the end of FY2024.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT

The Group did not hold any significant investment in FY2024
(FY2023: nil).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 March 2024, the Group had no significant
contingent liabilities (31 March 2023: nil).

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

There were 331 employees in the Group as at 31 March
2024 (31 March 2023: 333). Staff’'s remuneration packages
are determined in consideration of market conditions, the
Group’s results as well as the experience and performance
of the individuals concerned, and are subject to review from
time to time. The Group also provides other staff benefits,
including medical insurance, and grants of discretionary
incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their performance
and contributions to the Group. Employee costs, including
Directors’ emoluments, amounted to approximately
RMB47.7 million in FY2024 (FY2023: approximately
RMB47.7 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

COMPANY UPDATE AEEBRFER
Property Pre-sales YIERE

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of EHZ2-_ZT_WNFAZ+—H SEBEZWEEERXZM
properties under each project up to 21 June 2024 are 2 Z2FtE&E#LMMT ¢

summarised as follows:

Yichun

Sino Harbour ¢

Guanlan -

Residential Units Phase 2
BEEERB BN

EEE N —Hj
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 223,643 sq.m.

REtHEL AT N E v BEEEE
(R BE)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units)

EFEEEZAEERE(REMLEE)

Percentage of pre-sale

e X

Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed over to buyers as at
31 March 2024/

R-Z-NEFEZA=Z+—HAHABRER
ZEREARERB(EEEEMEE)A

Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers as at 31 March 2024/

R-ZE-NFZA=Z+—HRAABRER
Z BETEEEEAN

ASP per sq.m.*

BYHAFHEE

Expected completion date

TR EATEAK B

= ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not

handed over to buyers divided by pre-sale GFA not handed over

to buyers.

A Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows: A

Pre-sales at the beginning of FY2024 plus new pre-sales during
FY2024 less those handed over to buyers during FY2024, which
was recognised as sales during FY2024.

(1,920 units)
223,643F K
(1,9201E #11)
220,148 sq.m.
(1,889 units)
220,148 J7 2K
(1,8891E B 1)
98%
98%
112,582 sg.m.
(956 units)
112,682 J5 K
(9561E 1)
RMB907.7 million
AR
907.7HE T
RMB8,063
AR #8,0637T
Completed
B
UEEA 2 PHEEHETENT - AABRERZEEEE
ERAMABRBR 2 B AEERARE -

HWABRERZECREBEEENT : —F - MUHF¥HE
ELEN_Z_MPFAFBRESER_ZT_OHFAESER
BEREEM _ZE NP FABIREE) -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Grasping the opportunities arising from the national
policy, and moving forward steadily to achieve growth

The property market in China continued to face severe
challenges in the first half of 2024, with property sales and
prices remaining weak. However, with the government’s
recent introduction of positive policies to support the
development of the domestic property market, including
the relaxation of restrictions on home ownership, lowering
of mortgage interest rates and lowering of downpayment
requirements, the market has been stimulated by residents’
demand for new and improved properties, which will
help to speed up the de-inventorying of the industry and
maintain a healthy development of the market. It is believed
that these relaxation policies, which are based on “city-
specific measures”, “precise measures” and “one-city-
one-approach”, will continue to help restore homebuyers’
confidence and stabilise the domestic property market.
The Group will closely monitor the effectiveness of the
implementation of these policies and measures and
formulate appropriate business operation strategies in
response to the situation, so as to grasp the opportunity of
the industry’s rebound and regain its growth momentum.

In addition to existing development projects, the Group
continues to explore new business markets and push
into markets with high development potentials to ensure
the sustainable development of the Group and to identify
new business growth points in a challenging market.
The commercial space co-operation agreement dated
December 2022 (the “Commercial Space Co-operation
Agreement”) entered into between Hangzhou Gangyu,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Hangzhou Sino Harbour
Commercial Management Co., Ltd., an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, and Greentown Property
Management Group Company (4% % RIS EE R A
7)) will be delivered in the third quarter of 2024.

The development value of this project is highlighted by the
quality of the hardware, the future development plan of
the nearby areas, the demand of the nearby consumers,
the rental level of the surrounding shops and the potential
increase in the future. The Group will operate and manage
the project on its own in the future so as to enhance the
stability of the project’s future development and operation
and its revenue performance, and at the same time increase
the Group’s brand recognition in Zhejiang Province.

EERE WD

RERE
EEREE  BEATRER

2024%F EHF > PEIFMEMSDATMEBRIELE - W
KHENERGEERT - AT - BEEETO L R
NEZERNEARER  ETEERREERS - THRE
MEMBEFHERS - BURBTSERORIFT NS ZE
BMEFR - BEMRITEEBFNERTISREER - 8E
tFBGIABMER] - HBEBR] - [~ —RINFER
RERERE APEEXEELETIRE  SAEMSDE
2o AEERKZYRTELRREENERRR - WEF
HESBNEHELRE  UENTERENKE  ER
BRPE o

BRIREHRIER  AEBEFEROMNELTS - MR
EABNmGHEE  NERAKENAFEERR  EFXW
KBMMIST - SEMORBIERA - AKREE TMMNZ
BEXEEARABZE2EWNERRMMEEREYE
BEEBMARARNR S —F+ AT THNEEERE
FaR(EEEZEEEEGR) R _Z-_NFF=FE

IR A EmEEMRE - MRS RKERRS - MO
HEABNETR  AERBNESKTRARTMEENE
VRBEABNEREE - AKRERKGETHRBEETE
EMEE  EARAEERARBERELNWREEMBER
B ASEAAEEENIENmERAE

EBEREBERAT o 2023/24 F ik 21



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WD T

FUTURE OUTLOOK(CONTINUED)

Grasping the opportunities arising from the national
policy, and moving forward steadily to achieve growth
(Continued)

In the future, the Group will actively seek for such win-
win co-operation projects, which will enable the Group
to develop new markets with strategic resources, and
deepen the co-operation with local governments and other
enterprises while expanding the Company’s business
territories and enhancing its profitability and market
influence. This will bring unrivalled advantages to the
Group’s future development.

As the political tension between the United States and
China persisted, it seriously increased the uncertainty of the
development of the high-tech and biotechnology sectors in
the Mainland, which had a greater impact on the Group’s
“Big Health” business. Nevertheless, the “Big Health”
segment has always been the Group’s priority business,
and the Group has also taken the early opportunity to
actively develop other related “Big Health” businesses
during the Year in order to diversify its operational risks and
identify new growth opportunities. The Group’s subsidiary,
Pingxiang Ganghua, has commenced its operation in
2023, laying a solid foundation for the Group’s goal of
building a chain of dentistry hospitals and further planning
the development blueprint of the Group’s “Big Health”
business. During the Year, the dentistry business performed
well with strong growth momentum and is expected to
become a stable pillar of the Group’s “Big Health” business
development in the future.

Overall, the Group will continue to focus on real estate in the
future, and at the same time continue to actively develop the
dentistry business and commercial management business,
with business diversification as the direction of operation,
and maintain the development strategy of seeking progress
while maintaining stability. We will also continue to maintain
good cost control to support the Group’s development and
seek growth opportunities steadily. The Board will remain
prudent and implement a prudent and flexible financial
policy to ensure the healthy and long-term development of
the Group and to continue to create long-term investment
value for our Shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
a final dividend for FY2024 (FY2023: Nil).

AGM

It is proposed that the forthcoming AGM will be held at
Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-
39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong
at 10:00 a.m. on Friday, 20 September 2024. The notice
of the Company’s forthcoming AGM will be published on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company and despatched to the Shareholders in due
course in the manner as required by the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

The Board presents this annual report and the audited
Consolidated Financial Statements.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements. There was no significant change in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages
132 and 133 of this annual report.

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of
final dividend for FY2024 (FY2023: Nil).

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

It is proposed that the 2024 AGM will be held at Room
1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma
Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong at 10:00
a.m. on Friday, 20 September 2024. The notice of the 2024
AGM will be published on the respective websites of the
Stock Exchange and the Company and despatched to the
Shareholders in due course in the manner as required by
the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
2024 AGM

The Register of Members will be closed from Monday, 16
September 2024 to Friday, 20 September 2024, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of Shares will be
registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the
2024 AGM to be held on Friday, 20 September 2024, non-
registered Shareholders must lodge all duly completed and
signed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar and transfer office, Boardroom Share Registrars
(HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road,
North Point, Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 13 September 2024.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Further discussion and review on the business activities of
the Group as required by Schedule 5 to the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong),
including a fair review of the Group’s business as well
as future development in the Group’s business can be
found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” set out on pages 9
to 11 and pages 12 to 23 of this annual report, respectively.
The above sections form part of this report. No important
event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
Year.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties Faced by the Group
Business Risk

As a property development company, our capability to
identify and acquire suitable land for property development
is crucial to our business. Our business, financial condition
and results of operations may be adversely affected if we
are unable to acquire suitable land for property development
at prices that allow our Group to achieve reasonable returns
upon the sale of our development properties.

Policy and Market Risk

As a key economic pillars industry for the PRC’s
development, the property sector is more susceptible to
the impact of macro-economic and industrial policies.
Our Group’s performance may be adversely affected by
changes of the political, social and economic conditions in
the PRC if we are unable to respond to the ever-changing
market condition in a timely manner.

Expansion Risk

While the Group is currently principally engaged in the
business of property development, it has been exploring
other possible business areas and seeking to expand into
new business sectors. However, our experiences may not
be applicable to the new business sectors. Our Group’s
performance may be adversely affected by the failure to
expand into new business sectors.

Financial Risk

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management
is disclosed in note 33 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key Performance Indicators

Please refer to the section headed “Financial Summary” on
pages 238 and 239 of this annual report for further details.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations
that Have a Significant Impact

During the Year, the Company has complied with all the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the operations of the Group.

Relationship with Stakeholders

The Group recognises that employees, customers and
suppliers are keys to its sustainable development and has
maintained a good relationship with its stakeholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group believes that sustainable development is the
foundation for the long-term growth of businesses and
society. As a responsible property developer, the Group has
complied with the applicable laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection. The Group has submitted
environmental impact assessment report for each of the
Group’s projects in the PRC before the commencement
of construction and obtained approval from the relevant
environmental protection bureau after completion of each of
the projects.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and of the assets
and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years is
set out on pages 238 and 239 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance and cash flows of the Group for
the Year and the financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2024 are set out on pages 132 to 237 of this annual
report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in
note 26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company for FY2024
of RMB52,453,000 (FY2023: RMB18,593,000) has been
transferred to retained profits. Other movements in reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity on pages 136 and 137 of this annual report.

As at 31 March 2024, the reserves of the Company
available for distribution to the Shareholders as calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the laws of Bermuda
amounted to approximately RMB4,006,000 (FY2023:
RMB2,673,000).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During FY2024, the Company did not redeem any of
its listed securities; nor did the Company or any of its
subsidiaries purchase or sell such securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Bye-Laws or the laws of Bermuda in relation to the issue of
new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the PRC for its employees in the PRC.
Particulars of these retirement schemes are set out in note
3.14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 13 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.
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BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group are set out in note 24 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and
five largest customers amounted to approximately 0.8% and
approximately 1.4%, respectively of the Group’s revenue for
the Year.

During the Year, payments attributable to the Group’s
largest supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to
approximately 32.7% and 74.3%, respectively of the Group
total payment under construction contracts for the Year.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (who, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the number of the issued Shares) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest suppliers or
customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. WONG Lam Ping (Chairman, Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager)

Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman)

Mr. WONG Lui

Ms. GAO Lan

Non-executive Director:
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. XIE Gang
Mr. HE Dingding
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
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DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) of the Bye-Laws, Mr.
SHI Feng (the Deputy Chairman and an Executive Director),
Mr. WONG Lui (an Executive Director) and Mr. WONG Ping
Kuen (an INED) will retire from office and being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the 2024 AGM.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on such confirmations and
not aware of any unfavourably reported incidents, as at the
date of this report, the Company considers that all of them
are independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 115 to 122
of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Mr. SHI Feng, Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan,
the Executive Directors has a service contract with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 10 June
2023; while Mr. WONG Lam Ping, an Executive Director,
has a service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing on 1 April 2023. Each of these service
contracts is subject to termination by either party giving not
less than six months’ written notice to the other and each
of the above Executive Directors is subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the AGMs in accordance with the
Bye-Laws.

Each of the NED and the INEDs has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for an initial term of one
year, which shall thereafter continue year to year subject to
termination by either party giving not less than one month’s
written notice to the other and each of them is subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGMs in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors proposed
for re-election at the 2024 AGM has a service contract
or letter of appointment with the Company, which is
not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.
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EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for, among other
matters, reviewing the Group’s emolument policy and
structure of remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management of the Group, having regard to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices and making recommendations to the
Board in respect thereof for its consideration and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may declare dividends in the future after
taking into account the Group’s operations, earnings,
financial condition, cash requirements and availability and
other factors as it may deem relevant at such time. Any
declaration and payment as well as the amount of dividends
will be subject to the Bye-Laws and the Companies Act of
Bermuda, including the approval of the Shareholders. Future
declarations of dividends may or may not be reflected from
the Company’s historical declarations of dividends and will
be at the absolute discretion of the Board.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the recommendations
of the Remuneration Committee and the Board’s approval.
The emoluments are determined by the Board by reference to
the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and performance and the
results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are set
out in note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements,
respectively.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

As at 31 March 2024, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), which were required to be (a) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7
and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (b) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, recorded in the register referred therein; or (c)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code, were as follows:

(i) Long Position in the Shares
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Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors/ Capacity/ Shares held/ the Company’s
Chief executive Nature of interest interested Total issued Shares*
RN
B Fits/ ®A ERITRIDZ
FTETBAEHRSE 55 EEHE ERzZROHE waEt BRBED
Mr. Wong Beneficial owner 246,499,643
TR EnEAA
Interest of a controlled corporation 1,011,885,120
(Note @)

R EE R (A7 (@)
Interest of spouse (Note (a))
e B (M7t (a)

Mr. XIE Gang Interest of spouse (Note (b))
FR I 5t 4 Fie B (Mzt ()
Notes:

(@) 1,011,885,120 Shares are held by Extra Good, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and
the issue share capital of which is owned as to 52% and
48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan, respectively.
Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed to be interested in the
same parcel of Shares held by Extra Good and Ms. Chan
(whether by herself or through her controlled corporation)
under the SFO.

50,746,390 1,309,131,153 53.13%

5,902,663 5,902,663 0.24%

Kt

(@  1,011,885,120/% /%7 FHExtra Good# A * Extra Good &
REBREZESTIMRIHAGR - EBEBETRARTE
EREZFRIZTDRIEB2%K48% © FHLt - RIEF
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE (CONTINUED)

() Long Position in the Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(b) 5,902,663 Shares are held by Ms. Wong Man Bun, who
is the wife of Mr. XIE Gang. Therefore, Mr. XIE Gang is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares
held by Ms. Wong Man Bun under the SFO.

* The percentage represents the total number of the Shares
and the underlying Shares, if any, interested divided by
the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at 31
March 2024.

(ii) Long Positions in the Shares of Associated
Corporation

EERERITHRAR Z#R ()

i) RERHBzZHEEGE
Bist - (48)

(b) 5,902,663 FAWong Man Bunz + (Rl 5c 4 2~ )
BAE - Bt RIEFEHREEGRG - BRI AERE AR
Wong Man BunZ T35 6 2 B — 3RO P B = o

. B ER B R0 ARG () B AR
SR E= A=+ AR HETRMEE 2,464,000,000
BB

(i) REBEEIERAZFE

Number, class and
percentage of issued

Name of shares in associated

Name of Director/ associated Capacity/ corporation held/
Chief executive corporation Nature of interest interested Total

i AR

94 HEZENESRTRE
TETBRAEHRE B EZEER B @MY HE - EARBAL st
Mr. Wong Extra Good Beneficial owner 52 ordinary shares 100 ordinary shares
(52%) (100%)
FhE Extra Good EnEAA SRR LA (52%) 1008 E@A%(100%)

Interest of spouse 48 ordinary shares

(Note) (48%)

BB e (Hat) 48H% & 1% (48%)

Note: The issued share capital of Extra Good is owned as to
52% and 48% by Mr. Wong and his wife, Ms. Chan,
respectively. Under the SFO, Mr. Wong is deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Ms. Chan in Extra Good.
Mr. Wong is a sole director of Extra Good.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, none of
the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company had
any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company and any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) which were (i) notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (ii) pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, recorded
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors or their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2024, so far as is known to the Directors,
the following entity or person other than the Directors and
the chief executive of the Company, had interests or short
positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to section 336 of SFO:

Long Position in the Shares
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Approximate
percentage of

Name of Number of Shares the Company’s
Shareholders Capacity/Nature of interest held/interested Total issued Shares*
fits/ BB BARDRE BT

BRREEEB vy £33 EmROEE st B 2 A E 2 b
Extra Good Beneficial owner 1,011,885,120 1,011,885,120 41.07%
Extra Good EnEAA
Ms. Chan Beneficial owner 50,746,390
R+ EnEAA

Interest of a controlled corporation (Note) 1,011,885,120

Rt EE R (A7)

Interest of spouse (Note) 246,499,643 1,309,131,153 53.13%

ALt (fat)

Note: Extra Good is owned as to 48% by Ms. Chan, the wife of Mr.
Wong, and 52% by Mr. Wong. By virtue of SFO, Ms. Chan is
deemed to be interested in the same parcel of Shares held by
Extra Good and Mr. Wong (whether by himself or through his
controlled corporation).

The percentage represents the number of the Shares interested
divided by the number of issued Shares of 2,464,000,000 as at
31 March 2024.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2024, so far as
is known by or otherwise notified to the Directors, no other
entity or person (other than a Director or the chief executive
of the Company) had interests and short positions in the
Shares and underlying Shares as required to be recorded in
the register to be kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO.
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52% % o RIBFESF RHE KD - FRZ TR AR Extra Good
BT R A (T B S SBBE R EE) FE 2R — itk Kn+
R o

- AOLEREEENBRNBEBRUAR -2 -_NF=/A=+—H
2 217215 81 B 2,464,000,0008% A% 17 °

BREXF#BEEIN  RZTE_NF=A=+—H BES
PrasiEam  SMEEMERIALT(EFHIARAEE
TTBABRRIN R I KA R A LR AR AR
BEESIAEHRIIFEIB6HATHFENE LM KR

A
=

EBEREBMARAT - 2023/24 FH 33



DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of car park rental agreement
and office rental agreement as disclosed in note 32 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements also fell under the
definition of “continuing connected transactions” in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the aggregate annual amount
involved in these continuing connected transactions was
less than HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected
transactions qualify as de minimis transactions under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules, that is fully exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements.

The INEDs have reviewed, pursuant to Rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules, the continuing connected transaction as
set out above and have confirmed that such continuing
connected transaction had been entered into by the Group (i)
on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable
to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; and (ii) the loan facility is not secured by any
assets of the Group and is in the interests of the Company
and the Shareholders as a whole.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN ARRANGEMENT,
TRANSACTION OR CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no arrangements,
transactions or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group’s business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director or any entity connected
with a Director has a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time
during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts (except for Executive Directors’ service
contracts) concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
(apart from the Group’s business) which competes or
is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
business of the Group.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 March 2018, the Company and Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan
and Extra Good entered into a non-compete undertaking
(the “Non-compete Undertaking”) to avoid any potential
competitions between the business of the Group and Mr.
Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good.

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from Mr. Wong, Ms. Chan and Extra Good that each of
them had complied with the terms of the Non-compete
Undertaking during the Year. The INEDs have also reviewed
the said confirmation and are of the view that Mr. Wong,
Ms. Chan and Extra Good had complied with the terms of
the Non-compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance (whether for
the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITIES

Pursuant to the Bye-Laws, the Directors shall be indemnified
and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the
Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which may incur or sustain
by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duties. In addition, the
Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient insurance
coverage on Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
taken against Directors arising out of corporate activities.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report of this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

No equity-linked agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares or that require the Company to
enter into any agreements that will or may result in the
Company issuing Shares were entered into by the Company
during the Year or subsisted at the end of the Year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group had not made any charitable
donation (FY2023: Nil).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has discussed and reviewed with the
management the annual results, the Consolidated Financial
Statements and this annual report.

UPDATE ON THE DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

Changes on the Directors’ information pursuant to Rule
13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are as follows:

- Mr. Chan Kin Sang resigned as an independent non-
executive director of HuaKang Biomedical Holdings
Company Limited (stock code: 8622) on 2 April 2024,
which is listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange and is
no longer a chairman of the Appeal Tribunal (Buildings
Ordinance, Chapter 123 of the Laws of Hong Kong).
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited will retire and a resolution for its re-appointment
as the Independent Auditor will be proposed at the 2024
AGM. There has been no change in the Independent Auditor
since the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange.

By Order of the Board

WONG Lam Ping
Chairman, Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer and
General Manager

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TREBHRE

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Sino Harbour and the Group recognise that good corporate
governance establishes and maintains a legal and ethical
environment, which is essential for preserving and
enhancing the interests of all stakeholders. The Company
has adopted and has complied with all the mandatory
disclosure requirements and applicable code provisions as
set out in the section headed “Part 2 — Principles of good
corporate governance, code provisions and recommended
best practices” of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as contained in Appendix C1 (formerly known as
Appendix 14) to the Listing Rules during the Year and period
thereafter up to the date of this annual report (collectively,
the “Period”) except as disclosed in this report.

The amendments on the CG Code applicable for financial
year commencing on or after 1 January 2022 have been
adopted by the Company as its corporate governance
practices. With effect from 31 December 2023, Appendix
14 was renumbered as Appendix C1.

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and
supervising the management of the business affairs
and the overall performance of the Group. It sets the
Group’s values and standards and ensures that the
requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. A healthy
corporate culture across the Group is vital for the
Company to achieve its vision and mission towards
sustainable growth. The Board is responsible for
leading, shaping, developing and fostering a corporate
culture to guide the behavior of its employees and
ensuring that the Company’s vision, values and
business strategies are aligned to it.

By recognising the importance of stakeholders of the
Company (the “Stakeholders”) at the Board level
and throughout the Group, we strive to create values
to the Stakeholders through sustainable growth and
continuous development.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Board has set out the following values to provide
guidance on employees’ conduct and behaviours as
well as the business activities, and to ensure they are
embedded throughout the Company’s vision, mission,
policies and business strategies:

(i) Integrity — we comply with all applicable laws
and regulations, uphold the highest ethical
standards;

(i)  Excellence —we aim to deliver excellence;

(i) ~ Collaboration = we bring out the best in each
other and create strong and successful working
relationships;

(v)  Empathy — we care about our Stakeholders —
employees, supply chain and the community;
and

(vy  Sustainability — we are committed to a
sustainable future.

The Group will continuously review and adjust, if
necessary, its business strategies and keep track of
the changing market conditions to ensure prompt
and proactive measures will be taken to respond to
the changes and meet the market needs to foster the
sustainability of the Group.

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors,
including four Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping (the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer
and General Manager), Mr. SHI Feng (the Deputy
Chairman), Mr. WONG Lui and Ms. GAO Lan, a NED,
Mr. Chan Kin Sang (“Mr. Chan”) and three INEDs,
Mr. XIE Gang, Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG Ping
Kuen. Mr. WONG Lui is the son of Mr. WONG. Mr.
Chan is a nephew of Mr. WONG and a cousin of
Mr. WONG Lui. Save as disclosed above, there is
no family or other material relationship among the
members of the Board. The biographical details of
the Directors are set out on pages 115 to 122 of this
annual report.

(A)

TREBHRE

Exe®@

EXZgCHIETIEESR  URBREMNBTRITA
REBESRHEES - URFRZSZEEEEFRA
NEMFER - 285~ BUOR MEBRRE -

(i) 2B - TN B RERE AR

(i)  &F - BBz BER L &REFN—@
RREEMAIIE TIERE

(v) REL - HAEIRMANFNE - &S - HE
wRARE D R

V) AREERRE- RAZORERAFEZRNOK
7 o

AEBS B R MR (s B) BT 5RRS - Wik
HE N ET RIS - AR REREVE R E G
EHEL  HMEMSFER  REAKENAIHEE
B’ o

EEgRRANRESAN  BRENBHRTEST
MIKFEE(ERF BEFERNTERELE)  QlELE
(BIEfE) - IJEErSRALL  —RIFRTES
PRfdE A A ([REED AR = RBE Y FEHITE SR
fE BT TEERERELE - IRAEERTE
EZRTF BREEABTIRENBERTIZEENE
AeBENEEEN EESREBMITERKIE
MERNER FBESEEFEENAFREI1I58E
F122H

EBEREBMARAT - 2023/24 FH 39



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EXER®|E

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A E=20

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
(“Board Diversity Policy”) which sets out the
approach to accomplish diversity on the Board.
The Company recognises that increasing diversity
at the Board level will support the achievement of
the Company’s business objectives and sustainable
development.

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity

EREECRMNESENEZTEBRR(EEES T
BUR]) - EHIEREFEZ (L2 T - ARBR
REZQEEADRZTLAEDERARRZELE
BRABEER -
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through the consideration of a number of factors, such 1t BlatERl -~ F&  XERBEER - BHELK
as gender, age, cultural and educational background, B B ABERBFEH FBEETENECE
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length AHURAAREST BRE] - WEBZLEAXR(BIE
of service. All Board appointments will be based on MRzl EFCBEESTRIEEEZ L

merits while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity. The Board shall continue to review
the implementation and effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy on an annual basis, and committed
to further improving gender diversity as and when
suitable candidates are identified.
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Selection of candidates will be based on a range of EEARIE A A — ?5‘]%%1&%@%%%° Bt
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural Bl Fle XWERHMERS FELR - HERA

and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The ultimate decision will be
based on merits and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of a diversity of Board members. As such, the Board
has, in particular, achieved gender diversity through
the directorship of Ms. GAO Lan as executive
Director since her appointment on 13 August 2014.
It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s
business. All Board appointments will continue to
be made on a merit basis with due regard for the
benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection
of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives as stipulated in the Board Diversity
Policy.

The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
was diverse in terms of gender and the Board had not
set any measurable objectives.

Diversity in Workforce

As at 31 March 2024, among all the employees
(including the senior management) of the Group,
male employees accounted for 43.45% and female
employees accounted for 56.55%. This was due to
the combination of traditional gender roles, job nature
requiring sales and soft skills, attentiveness and low
physically demanding nature of work may appeal
more to women as the Group is engaged in the
property sales and CMC related service and dental
service, resulting in their higher presence within the
workforce. The Group welcomes all genders to join
and has taken into account gender diversity in the
recruitment process and is committed to increasing
of male workers as far as possible in the future. The
Board has not set any measurable objectives.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Executive Directors have entered into service
contracts with the Company for a specific term of
three years. All NED and INEDs have entered into
letters of appointment with the Company for a specific
term of one year.

As at the date of this report, the Company has
appointed three INEDs, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. The Board is committed to assessing
the independence of the INEDs annually and has put
in place mechanism to ensure independent views
and input are made available to the Board, and has
conducted annual review of the implementation
and effectiveness of such mechanism (s). And
Board independence is critical to good corporate
governance and to have the mechanisms in place will
ensure a strong independent element on the Board
of the Company. INEDs enhance the effectiveness
and decision-making of the Board by providing
objective judgment and constructive challenge to
the management of the Company. This is achieved
by giving Directors access to external independent
professional advice from legal advisers and auditor,
as well as the full attendance of all INEDs at all the
meetings of the Board and its relevant committees
held during the Year. Each of the INEDs has
confirmed his independence of the Company and the
Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

The Board reviews the implementation and
effectiveness of the abovementioned mechanism on
an annual basis. The Board considered that such
mechanism was properly implemented during the
Year and was effective.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Under the Bye-Laws, the Board is empowered to
appoint any person as a Director to fill a causal
vacancy or, subject to authorisation by the
Shareholders in general meeting, as an additional
Director. Where vacancies exist, the Board shall
carry out selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, qualification, integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates.

One-third of the Directors are subject to retirement
from office by rotation and re-election at each
AGM provided that every Director shall be subject
to retirement at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-Laws.

All Directors, including the INEDs, have given sufficient
time and effort to the affairs of the Group. The
INEDs have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between the Executive
Directors and the INEDs is reasonable and adequate
to provide sufficient checks and balances that
safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and the
Group. The Board also believes that the views and
participation of the INEDs in the Board and committee
meetings provide independent judgment on the issues
relating to strategy, performance, conflict of interest
and management process to ensure that the interests
of all Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses
and affairs as well as unrestricted access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary,
who is responsible for providing the Directors with
Board papers and related materials. The Directors
may seek independent professional advice at the
Company’s expenses in carrying out their duties and
responsibilities.

The Company has taken out appropriate and sufficient
insurance policies on Directors’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions taken against Directors arising out of
corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with code
provision C.1.4 of the Corporate Governance Code. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
had received for the Period to the Company.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED) A E=20
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The individual training record of each Director received

for the Year is set out below:

AERZESEZEI 2 EACEIIMT

Reading materials and/

or attending seminars/
briefings relating to updates
on the business,

operations and corporate
governance matters

FEAMXY  &gER

TEEREEREFENR

Name of Directors EEAS REEEEEE EREY
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wong (Chairman, TERE(EE - BEHITERBATE) v

Chief Executive Officer and

General Manager)
Mr. SHI Feng (Deputy Chairman) & 5e 4 (B3 /%) v
Mr. WONG Lui &aﬁai v
Ms. GAO Lan SEZLT v
NED FHTES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang PR i A= S A v
INEDs BYEHTES
Mr. XIE Gang A% Bl 55 A= v
Mr. HE Dingding BTTEAE v
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen HIRESEE v

During the Year, the Board held four meetings and
a meeting on 26 June 2024 and, amongst other
matters, approved the Consolidated Financial
Statements. At these Board meetings, the Directors

Wk o RNRETES
BEA-REBHETHBAERBRER

AEERN EFSRTHREHE IR T _WF
NAZTRBERTERAEF BB MHEFEME
€EFE L BEEIAKENEER

2R IJT Bﬁﬁ%%

discussed and exchanged their views on significant
issues and general operations of the Group, reviewed
the financial performance, reviewed and approved
the change of the Company Secretary and authorized
representatives under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance and the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of each
regular meeting is given to all Directors and an
agenda together with the Board papers are sent to
all Directors not less than three days before the date
of meeting. All Directors are given an opportunity
to include in the agenda any other matter that they
would like to discuss in the meeting. Regarding the
Board committee meetings, reasonable prior notice
or such length of notice as required by the respective
terms of reference of the Board committees is given
to all committee members.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in
preparation of the agenda for the Board meetings and
Board committee meetings. She also prepares and
keeps detailed minutes of each Board meeting and
Board committee meeting. Within a reasonable time
after each meeting, the draft minutes are circulated to
all Directors or committee members for comment and
the final and approved version of minutes is sent to
all Directors and committee members for their record.
The Company Secretary has duly complied with the
relevant professional training requirement under Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Wong is the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer. This deviates from Code Provision C.2.1 of
the Corporate Governance Code, which stipulates
that the roles of chairman and chief executive should
be separated and should not be performed by the
same individual. In view of the present composition
of the Board as well as the in-depth knowledge and
experience of Mr. Wong in relation to the operation
and business of the Company and in the industry, the
Board is of the opinion that it is appropriate and in the
best interest of the Company at the present stage to
vest the roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive
Officer in the same person as it helps to facilitate the
execution of the Group’s business strategies and
maximize the effectiveness of its operation. In addition,
Mr. SHI Feng (“Mr. Shi”), the Executive Director, is the
Deputy Chairman, and hence, there will be a balance
of power and authority for Mr. Wong as both the
Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
(CONTINUED)

Mr. Wong, being the Chairman, is responsible for
formulating the Company’s overall strategies and
policies, providing leadership to the Board and
ensuring the Board functions effectively. He would
ensure complete, reliable and timely information being
provided to the Directors and encourage the Directors
to actively participate in the Board to act in the best
interest of the Company.

Mr. Shi, being the Deputy Chairman, is responsible
for the daily operations of the Company, execution of
business policies, strategies, objectives and plans as
formulated and adopted by the Board and leading the
management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its
code of conduct for securities transactions by the
Directors, senior management and certain employees
of the Group (who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities). After having made a specific
enquiry by the Company with each of the Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with the
required dealing standards set out in the Model Code
and the Company’s code of conduct throughout the
Year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements,
which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Company and the Group as at 31 March 2024
and of the Group’s results and cash flows for the year
then ended and are properly prepared on a going
concern basis in accordance with the applicable
statutory requirements and accounting standards.

The Independent Auditor has also stated their reporting
responsibility in the Independent Auditor’s report of the
Consolidated Financial Statements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board
committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. They are in line with
the Listing Rules and are posted on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
the Audit Committee was established on 4 July 2011
with written terms of reference in accordance with the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee
comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. WONG Ping Kuen
(the chairman), Mr. XIE Gang and Mr. HE Dingding.
The Audit Committee reports to the Board and is
delegated by the Board to assess matters related to
the financial statements. Under its terms of reference,
the Audit Committee is required to perform, amongst
others, the following duties:

o monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulations and code and reporting to the
Board;

° reviewing the Group’s risk management and
internal control procedures and systems;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s risk management
and internal control procedures and systems;

o making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

° monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
(CONTINUED)

The Audit Committee held two meetings during
the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2024 and,
amongst other matters, considered and approved (i)
for presentation to the Board for consideration and
approval the draft audited Consolidated Financial
Statements and (i) audit-related matters. All minutes
are kept by the Company Secretary. During the Year,
amongst others, the Audit Committee reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the interim results and annual results of the
Group as well as financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems. The Audit Committee
reported that there was no material uncertainty that
cast doubt on the Company’s going concern ability.

Auditor’s Remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited (“BDO”), Certified
Public Accountants, Hong Kong, the Independent
Auditor, in respect of the Year amounted to
HK$1,100,000.

There is no disagreement between the Board and
the Audit Committee on the re-appointment of the
Independent Auditor, and they both have agreed
to recommend the re-appointment of BDO as the
Independent Auditor for the ensuing year at the 2024
AGM.
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(G) REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

In compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules,
the Remuneration Committee was established
on 4 July 2011 with written terms of reference in
accordance with the Corporate Governance Code.
The main responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. XIE
Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding and Mr. WONG
Ping Kuen, two Executive Directors, Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and Mr. SHI Feng.

The remuneration of senior management by band for
the Year are set out in note 12 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

The Board adopted a remuneration policy, which
prohibits the Directors from determining his or her own
remuneration. Each Director has been considered
and/or reviewed periodically with respect to his or
her individual performance, responsibilities, financial
performance of the Group, market practice and other
applicable factors.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2024 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed and recommended
to the Board for consideration certain remuneration-
related matters of the Directors and senior
management as well as the proposed Directors.
All minutes are kept by the Company Secretary.
During the Year, amongst others, the Remuneration
Committee (i) evaluated and reviewed the performance
of individual Executive Directors and senior
management of the Company in respect of FY2023;
and (i) recommended to the Board for consideration
on the discretionary bonus for FY2023 of each of the
Directors and senior management of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code.

The major duties of the Nomination Committee are
to make recommendations to the Board on the
appointment/re-appointment of the Directors, to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board, and to assess the independence of the INEDs.

The Nomination Committee comprises three INEDs,
namely Mr. XIE Gang (the chairman), Mr. HE Dingding
and Mr. WONG Ping Kuen, one NED Mr. CHAN Kin
Sang and two Executive Directors Mr. WONG Lui and
Ms. GAO Lan.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during
the Year and a meeting on 26 June 2024 and,
amongst other matters, reviewed the structure,
size and composition of the Board, assessed the
independence of the INEDs and recommended to
the Board for consideration the re-appointment of
the retiring Directors at the 2024 AGM as well as the
nomination of new Directors. All minutes are kept by
the Company Secretary. During the Year, amongst
others, the Nomination Committee (i) assessed the
independence of the INEDs; (i) reviewed the structure,
size and diversity of the Board and the board diversity
policy; and (iii) reviewed the performance of the retiring
Directors and recommended to the Board the re-
election of the retiring Directors at the 2023 AGM.

Pursuant to the nomination policy, the Nomination
Committee will evaluate, select and recommend
candidate(s) for directorship(s) to the Board by giving
due consideration to the criteria, including but not
limited to Board diversity, qualifications, experience,
independence, reputation for integrity and potential
contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the
Board before making recommendation to the Board.
The Nomination Committee may consult any source it
deems appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable
candidates, such as referrals from existing Directors,
advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the
candidate(s) by interviews, background checks etc.
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(H) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the
Board for the appointment of a Director including an
INED in accordance with the following procedures and
process:

The Nomination Committee will, giving due
consideration to the current composition and
size of the Board, develop a list of desirable
skills, perspectives and experience at the outset
to focus the search effort;

The Nomination Committee may consult any
source it deems appropriate in identifying
or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising,
recommendations from a third party agency firm
and proposals from the Shareholders with due
consideration given to the criteria which include
but are not limited to the following (collectively
the “Criteria”):

(@) Diversity in the aspects, amongst others,
of gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service;

(b) Commitment for responsibilities of the
Board in respect of available time and
relevant interest;

(c)  Qualifications, including accomplishment
and experience in the relevant industries in
which the Group’s business is involved;

(d)  Independence;

(e)  Reputation for integrity;

® Potential contributions that the individual
can bring to the Board; and

(@ Plan(s) in place for the orderly succession
of the Board;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Vi

Vil

Viii.

The Nomination Committee may adopt any
process it deems appropriate in evaluating the
suitability of the candidates, such as interviews,
background checks and third party reference
checks;

The Nomination Committee will consider a broad
range of candidates who are in and outside of
the Board’s circle of contacts;

Upon considering a candidate suitable for the
directorship, the Nomination Committee will hold
a meeting and/or by way of written resolutions
to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

The Nomination Committee will provide the
relevant information of the selected candidate to
the Remuneration Committee for consideration
of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

The Nomination Committee will thereafter make
the recommendation to the Board in relation to
the proposed appointment, and where a NED
is considered, the Remuneration Committee will
make the recommendation to the Board on the
proposed remuneration package;

The Board may arrange for the selected
candidate to be interviewed by the members
of the Board, who are not members of the
Nomination Committee and the Board will
thereafter deliberate and decide the appointment
as the case may be; and

All appointment of Directors will be confirmed
by the filing of the consent to act as Director of
the relevant Director (or any other similar filings
requiring the relevant Director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be) with the relevant regulatory authorities,
if required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to
the Corporate Governance Code and, has, amongst
others, reviewed this corporate governance report
in discharge of its corporate governance functions,
ensuring compliance with the Listing Rules.

According to the Stock Exchange’s proposal on risk
management and internal control under the Corporate
Governance Code applicable to accounting periods of
listed companies commencing on or after 1 January
2016, the Board should oversee the Company’s
risk management and internal control systems on
an ongoing basis. The Board has on 17 June 2016
delegated such responsibilities to the Audit Committee
and the terms of reference of the Audit Committee
were revised and adopted on 17 June 2016 to include
the responsibilities on reviewing the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group.

During the Year, the Board has reviewed and
performed the corporate governance functions under
the Corporate Governance Code.
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ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND

COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general
meeting of the Company held during the Year is set

out in the table below:

W)

ESRZEeHENERHELE

TR EEFHRERAFERTZEFEEH

EEZZEeRI AR ARRAGHLE -

Attendance/Number of Meeting(s) held
LEEERY, GRETRY

Annual
Audit Remuneration Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
EEpg Exg ERZEE FMWzEEE REZEE REBEEAE
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Wong ARE 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 1/1
N TEA
Mr. SHI Feng FlEsE 4/4 N/A 11 N/A 1/1
N MERA
Mr. WONG Lui AZEE 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
N TEH
Ms. GAO Lan BELL 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
A NEH
NED FHTES
Mr. CHAN Kin Sang BReELE 4/4 N/A N/A 1/1 1/1
N TEH
INEDs BYFHTES
Mr. XIE Gang SR & 4/4 2/2 11 11 11
Mr. HE Dingding ETT4%E 4/4 2/2 1 il 1
Mr. WONG Ping Kuen BENRELE 4/4 2/2 11 1/1 il
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of risk management
and internal control framework. The controls are
to provide reasonable assurance to safeguard the
Shareholders’ investments and the Group’s assets.
The systems of risk management and internal control
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems should be a concerted and continuing
process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
risk management and internal control systems are
built. It provides discipline and structure, setting the
tone of the organisation and influencing the control
consciousness of its staff. A weak control environment
foundation hampers the effectiveness of even the best
designed internal control procedure.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group has complied with the
risk management and internal control code provisions
set out in code provision D.2.4 of the Corporate
Governance Code by having adopted a three-tier risk
management approach to identify, assess, mitigate
and handle risks. The Group has developed and
adopted a strategic planning and risk management
policy, which is designed to enhance risk management
of the Group by identifying, analyzing and evaluating
the possible material risks which shall have adverse
impact on the achievement of the Group’s objectives,
including strategic risks, financial risks, market risks,
operational risks, legal and regulatory risks and
environmental, social and governance risks. Divisions
and department heads are responsible for the first
line of defence. They oversee the daily operations of
their own business units and are accountable for the
conduct and performance of their own operations.
Any incidents regarding non-compliance of their
operations with regulations and laws, failure to identify
or properly manage the risks associated with their
business units, which might lead to financial or non-
financial losses to the Group, shall be reported to the
legal and compliance department and the internal
audit department of the Group (the “Internal Audit
Function”). As the second line of defence, the Internal
Audit Function defines rule sets and models, provides
professional advices, develops work plans of internal
audit, as well as monitor and review the processes,
practices and procedures of internal controls for
all business units on a regular basis. It annually
prepares internal audit report containing findings and
recommendations for improvements in respect of the
risk management and internal controls and submits
such report to the Audit Committee for review. It also
ensures that risks are within the acceptable range and
that the first line of defence is effective. As the final line
of defence, the Audit Committee, with the professional
advices and opinions from the Internal Audit Function,
ensures that the first and second lines of defence are
effective through constant inspection and monitoring.

The Company is aware of its obligations under Part
XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules, to handle
and disseminate of price-sensitive inside information
to the public, after the information has come to
the Company’s knowledge, as soon as reasonably
practicable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

In ensuring compliance with the obligation to disclose
inside information in relation to any material changes
in the Group’s financial condition, performance of
the Group’s business or the expectation as to the
Group’s performance, the Board has established
a policy for appropriate and effective reporting
procedures which ensure a timely and structured flow
of relevant financial and operational data (the “Inside
Information Disclosure Policy”) with close regard
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information”
issued by the Securities and Futures Commission of
Hong Kong in June 2012.

The Inside Information Disclosure Policy includes,
amongst other, the following:

° establish controls for monitoring business and
corporate developments and events so that any
potential inside information is promptly identified
and escalated;

° establish periodic financial reporting procedures
so that key financial and operating data is
identified and escalated in a structured and
timely manner;

° maintain an audit trail of meetings and
discussions concerning the assessment of
inside information;

o restrict access to inside information to a limited
number of employees on a need-to-know basis
and ensure employees who are in possession of
inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;

o ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements
are in place when the Group enters into
significant negotiations with the third parties;

o disseminate inside information via the electronic
publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange before the information is released via
other channels such as the Company’s website;
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

° develop procedures for responding to market
rumours, leaks and inadvertent disclosures;

o provide regular training to relevant employees
to help them understand the Inside Information
Disclosure Policy as well as their relevant
disclosure duties and obligations under such
policy;

° document the Inside Information Disclosure
Policy in writing and keep the documentation up
to date; and

° publish the Inside Information Disclosure Policy
so that the media and other stakeholders
understand the Group’s statutory disclosure
obligations.

Any potential inside information comes to the
knowledge of any Directors or any employees of
the Group should be reported to the Company. The
materiality of the relevant information will be assessed
and, if considered appropriate, such information will
be escalated for the attention of the Board. Before the
inside information is fully disclosed to the public, the
Company shall take reasonable measures to preserve
the confidentiality of the information. In the opinion of
the Board, where the information has not been kept
confidential or there has been a leak, the Company
must issue a public announcement by way of the
electronic publication system operated by the Stock
Exchange as soon as reasonably practicable. If the
Board needs time to clarify details of, and the impact
arising from, an event or a set of circumstances
before it is in a position to issue a full announcement
to properly inform the public, the Board shall
consider issuing a “holding announcement”. There
are circumstances where confidentiality has not
been maintained and the Board is not able to make
a full announcement or a holding announcement,
the Board shall consider applying for a trading halt
in its securities until disclosure can be made. All
announcements in relation to inside information
disclosure should be properly approved by the Board
and issued to the public without delay.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The Independent Auditor has, during the course of
annual audit, considered the internal control relevant
to the Group’s preparation of the consolidated
financial statements within the scope of their audit.
During the Year, the Board, through the Audit
Committee, had annually reviewed the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group, and also reviewed the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions, and their training programmes
and budget. The Board believes that the existing
risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy.
The policy aims to provide a supportive process that
encourages and enables employees to raise concerns
about misconduct and will give them confidence
that their concerns will be properly investigated and
resolved in a timely manner with the Audit Committee.

Every reported case will be handled with
confidentiality, except where the Group is required by
law or regulation to disclose, and followed through
in accordance with the Group’s Unethical Conduct
Notification Policy & Procedures. The Group will
not tolerate any kind of retaliation for reports or
complaints regarding misconduct made in good faith.
A reporting person is assured that making the report
will not personally disadvantage him/her by dismissal,
demotion, suspension, harassment, discrimination or
bias.

All persons making reports should be reasonably sure
of the truth of their concerns before making the report.
Employees or other relevant parties are strongly
encouraged to provide their names and contact
details in their report such that the reported case
can be handled properly shall clarifications or further
information be required. The Group is committed to
protecting the reporting person’s identity and treating
all disclosures with strict confidentiality and legal
protection. In some cases, however, reports may
be submitted anonymously if the reporting person is
uncomfortable disclosing his/her identity. Such cases
will be considered as far as practicable.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (CONTINUED)

Whistleblowing Policy (Continued)

Abuse of the confidential reporting process will not be
tolerated. All reports must be made in good faith. The
Group reserves the right to take appropriate actions
against the person who makes the report to recover
any loss or damage as a result of the false report for
any report made maliciously or in bad faith. Employees
who abuse the reporting process will face disciplinary
action.

Anti-Corruption Policy

The Company also has established policy and system
that promote and support anti-corruption laws and
regulations. The Company is committed to conducting
business in an ethical and honest manner and is
committed to implementing and enforcing systems
that ensure all forms of bribery, corruption, and fraud
are prevented. The Company has zero tolerance for
corrupt activities.

Corruption can be described as: giving or receiving
anything from any person (usually money, a gift,
loan, reward, favour, commission or entertainment),
as an improper inducement or reward for obtaining
business, employment or any other benefit. Corruption
can therefore include, but are not limited to:

o gifts and excessive or inappropriate
entertainment, hospitality, travel and
accommodation expenses;

° payments, whether by employees or business
partners such as recruiters, labour service
providers or consultants; and

o other ‘“favours’ provided to supervisors, such
as making unwanted advances, payments or
promises.

The Company will not make donations, whether in
cash, kind, or by any other means, to support any
political parties or candidates. We recognise this
may be perceived as an attempt to gain an improper
business advantage.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the remuneration of the members
of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Information of Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report for the Year by
band is set out below:

Remuneration band (in HK$)
FENEEE ET)

(L)

TREBHRE

ESROREEREFH

RIFEEREATRIT AR EEA 5K - FIFHERA
FRIEENSREEBZEEFE I —H2AFE
BREEETERER)KEFMIZREES D) &
wmr

Number of individuals

A

Nil to 1,000,000

Z 1,000,000
1,000,001 to 2,000,000
1,000,001 %2,000,000

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Sir KWOK Siu Man KR
(“Sir Kwok”) as the Company Secretary with effect
from 21 February 2024 in place of Ms. YUE Sau Lan
(“Ms. Yue”) who has resigned on 31 January 2024.
Immediately following Sir Kwok’s appointment as
the Company Secretary on 21 February 2024, the
Company complies with the requirements of Rule 3.28
of the Listing Rules.

Sir Kwok was nominated by SK2 Corporate Services
(HK) Limited (“SK2”) to act as the Company Secretary
and SK2 has been providing certain corporate
secretarial services to the Company pursuant to an
engagement letter entered into between the Company
and SK2. The primary person at the Company with
whom Sir Kwok has been contacting in respect of
company secretarial matters is Mr. LAU Ka Ho, Billy,
the Group’s financial controller.

Ms. Yue and Sir Kwok attended over 15 hours’
relevant continuous professional development training
during the Year pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

All members of the Board have access to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary. The
appointment and removal of the Company Secretary
has been/will be subject to the Board’s approval at its
meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to the Shareholders in a
timely manner through various channels. Annual
and interim reports are printed and sent to all
Shareholders by post as requested. The Company
has complied with the provisions of the Listing Rules
by posting announcements, notices, interim reports,
annual reports and the Shareholders’ circulars on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Notice of the AGM is delivered to all Shareholders
not less than 21 clear days prior to the date of
the meeting, setting out details of each proposed
resolution, voting procedures (including procedures for
demanding and conducting a poll) and other relevant
information. As at the beginning of the meeting, the
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll
will be explained by the chairman of the meeting.
Vote results are released by way of publication of an
announcement.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can Convene a Special
General Meeting

According to bye-law 58 of the Bye-Laws, Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the voting rights at general
meeting of the Company, on an one vote per share
basis, in the share capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
have the right to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

Procedures for Sending Enquiries to the Board

Shareholders should direct their questions about
their shareholdings to the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, the contact
details of which are set out as follows:

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited

Room 2103B, 21/F., 148 Electric Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

Telephone:
Facsimile:

(852) 2153 1688
(852) 3020 5058

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone:
By post:

(852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre,
37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,

Hong Kong

By email: ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
Procedures for Making Proposals at the
Meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general
meeting.
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(O) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)
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Procedures for Making Proposals at the
Meetings (Continued)

General meetings also provide a useful forum for the
Shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The
Chairman, as well as the chairman of each of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee, or in their absence, members of the
respective committees, are available to answer
questions from the Shareholders at AGMs and special
general meetings.

Management ensures that the Independent Auditor
shall attend the AGM to answer questions about the
conduct of audit, the preparation and content of the
Auditor’s report, the accounting policies adopted and
Auditor’s independence.

The Board has established a Shareholders’
communication policy and the Company reviews it
on an annual basis to ensure its effectiveness. During
the Year, the Board has reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Shareholders’ communication
policy including steps taken at the general meetings,
the handling of queries received (if any) and the
channels of communication and engagement in place,
and considered that the Shareholders’ communication
policy has been properly implemented and is effective.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated
bye-laws of the Company (the “new Bye-Laws”)
at the 2023 AGM which was held on 22 September
2023, so as to, among others, comply with the
updated Listing Rules and CG code which came into
effect on 1 January 2022.

Pursuant to Rule 13.90 of the Listing Rules, the
Company has posted the new Bye-Laws on the
respective websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SCOPE AND REPORTING PERIOD

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Group”)
is pleased to publish the Environmental, Social, and
Governance (the “ESG”) report, highlighting its ESG
performance, with disclosure reference made to the ESG
Reporting Guide as described in Appendix C2 of the Listing
Rules (the “Guide”) set out by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

The Group is principally engaged in property development in
the second and third tier cities in China, whereas the head
office of the Group is located in Hong Kong. The property
project includes residential properties, detached housing,
apartments, retails as well as commercial properties.

In addition, the Group conducts pharmaceutical inspection
business through its subsidiary Zhejiang IPS, and the
Group has also continued actively expanding dental service
business in Pingxiang, Jiangxi.

This ESG report covers the Group’s overall performance in
two subject areas, namely Environmental and Social, of the
business operations in China and Hong Kong from 1 April
20283 to 31 March 2024, unless otherwise stated.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The Report is prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide”
set out in Appendix C2 to the Listing Rules of the Stock
Exchange. The contents covered herein are in compliance
with the mandatory disclosure requirement and the provision
of “Comply or Explain” as well as four reporting principles
of materiality, quantitativeness, balance and consistency
required in the Guide.

Materiality — Materiality assessments have been carried out
to identify material environmental and social issues that
have major impacts on investors and other stakeholders,
the significant stakeholders, procedures, and results of
the engagement of which are presented in the section
“Stakeholder Engagement” in the Report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERWE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES (CONTINUED)

Quantitativeness — Key performance indicators (“KPI”s)
have been established, and are measurable and applicable
to make valid comparisons under appropriate conditions;
information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions,
and/or calculation tools used, and sources of conversion
factors used, have been disclosed when applicable.

Balance — The Report presents the Group’s performance
during the Reporting Period in an impartial manner, avoiding
choices, omissions or presentation formats that may unduly
influence readers’ decisions or judgements.

Consistency — Consistent statistical methodologies and
presentation of KPIs have been used to allow meaningful
comparisons of related data over time.

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION

Mission

The sustainable development of the Group consists not
only of establishing environmental, health, and safety
stewardship, but also setting up a people-oriented and
integrated system. The Group strives to provide different
kinds of properties with cozy amenity and lifestyles of health
and sustainability to the society.

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance

Sound corporate governance attracts investment, protects
rights of shareholders and stakeholders, and enhances
shareholder value. The Group is committed to accounting
for its shareholders with a highly transparent and open
attitude.

The Group’s business sustainability strategy is based
on integrity, ethics, green innovation, originality, quality
and safety, and shareholders’ value. With such strategy,
green property for sustainable future will be achieved. The
Group is fully committed to resource-efficiency innovations,
environmental and social friendly operations. Such
engagement enables the Group to operate its business
with greater transparency and effective risk management
framework. The Board oversees the process to engage
stakeholders, identifies material topics, and oversee the risk
management framework.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

SUSTAINABILITY MISSION AND VISION
(CONTINUED)

Vision on Environment, Social, and Governance
(Continued)

The Group also holds a high standard in business ethics
and invest in sustainable businesses. It is committed to
improving quality of the communities and the environment,
whilst providing long-term returns to its shareholders

Sustainability Governance

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s
sustainability strategy and reporting. The sustainability
plan of the Group is developed based on results of ESG
Reports and regular reports from senior management of
its subsidiaries, which is reviewed on an annual basis and
adjusted as needed to align with the long-term business
strategy of the Group.

Furthermore, the Board is in charge of assessing and
managing ESG-related issues, which shall ensure the
sustainable and responsible growth and operation of the
Group.

BOARD STATEMENT

As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group recognizes
the significance of quality management of the environment
and activities in promoting sustainable economic
development. The Group is also well aware that its
corporate responsibilities to society and the environment run
parallel to operational performance. As such, we endeavour
to continuously improve the environmental performance
of our operations in order to minimize any impact on the
environment.

Looking ahead, we hope to maintain steady and efficient
sustainable business development and promote sustainable
development together with our stakeholders, thereby
fulfilling our corporate and social responsibility to create a
promising future.
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EEEEH
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RE  HERERWE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group communicates with key stakeholders through
daily interactions to understand their concerns and
expectations on ESG issues. Through regular engagement
sessions, the Group obtains valuable feedback and reviews
areas of attention which will help the business to meet its
potential growth and be prepared for future ESG challenges.
Communication channels are as follows:

FOESH

AEEBBEAREHEIBRNEBBIN - ATHERHA
THIRE  HEREARENEBANE - BRATHLES
& AEBESEENRERR  YHEIFHETRS
RE - E-REFBPONAEEERERIERER  Bif
HWREIARRIERE - L8 NEAME - BERBHIIWT

Stakeholders Possible Issue of Concern Communication Channels
B E T RERAE R RE BERE
Shareholders and investors ° Corporate governance system o Annual General Meeting (AGM) and
R RIEEE o  EEARBR other shareholder meeting
e Business strategies and s RRBAFAERHEMBRERE
performance o Annual Reports and Interim Reports

. EIGERSERIA
° Corporate transparency and o

reputation

s DEFHEHEBE

o  FEmERTPHEmE
Announcements and Circulars
o  AERBEK

o Company website and email

o A ElAguh & B E

Customers and business partners o Property and service quality o Customer Satisfaction Survey
B REBRHE s YXHERKEE s XEPFMEEHRE

o Delivery time
o AT I

. Pricing
e XfE
Employees o Rights and benefits

(== o HEFEEF

o Remuneration and compensation

o HENEWE

. Career development and training

o BRFREIE
° Working hours
o TIFRFM

° Progress Meetings

o  EEEE
o Communication with staff and
management

e HETREREMNZER

° Trainings, Seminars, and Briefing
Sessions

gl g RETE

° Performance Reviews

ES - ERE

. Intranet

o NEEA

o Employee communication meetings

e Occupational health and safety o [EEERE

o BEREEHAZTE e Employee handbook
e Working environment e [EEFM

o IEIRIE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - ARERRE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Stakeholders
B0E

Possible Issue of Concern

A RERE VR RE

&SR

Communication Channels

Suppliers and subcontractors

HERkDEA

Media, NGOs, and the public
e SEBUN AR N AR

Supplier management
HErmER
Customer service

B PR

Community environment
HRRIE

Employment and community
development
EEEtEERE

Social welfare

HEEF

o Supplier Management Meetings and

Events
o (HEMETHEEHELH
° Supplier Review
e fHERES
° Site visits
o EMIFFG

° ESG Report

e  ESGHE

o Community activities

o  HEFED

° Employee voluntary activities
e [EEEIEH

o Community welfare subsidies
o HEEFHEEL

° Charitable donations

s EERH

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi
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RE  HERERWE

STAKEHOLDER MATERIALITY

The Group values input and feedback of its stakeholders as
they have substantial contribution to the Group’s business.
Internal and external stakeholders have been involved in
regular engagement activities to share views regarding the
Group’s operations and performances. The Group has
specifically engaged its senior management, staff, clients,
and customers to gain further insights on ESG material
aspects and challenges during the Reporting Period.
Based on the feedback collected from different groups of
stakeholders, a materiality matrix was developed.

KO EEEM

ROBEUAREXEBERRS At AKREERFNHEN
EZHREBARE - ABBNELIINSENE-—BETHSH
BE) DERFUAEEXHLERKRANER - RIS
HE - AEERFIRRESAERE BT  TPEEE
SERY  BERFE-STHRE HENEANERSR
BLkE - AEBEREBERATRANFHEREINER
[e8 - HIEERIEREME -

Materiality of Different Topics from Stakeholder Engagement
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Internal Assessment on Importance to Business

REBAMFEHEBFHNERN

70

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited < ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - ARERRE

STAKEHOLDER MATERIALITY (CONTINUED) BFHEEEM(E)
A. Environmental C. Operational
A BIE C. ¥E
Energy Al Supplier Management C1
EEV e e e
Water A2 Intellectual Property c2
X M ERE
Air Emission A3 Data Protection C3
JE RHEERR BRHRIE
Waste and Effluent Ad Customer Service C4
SEIK BP R
Other Raw Materials Consumption A5 Product/Service Quality C5
H b R R A Em/ REEE
Environmental Protection Measures A6 Anti-corruption C6
RIRIE I R&S
Climate Change A7 Community Investment c7
RIREL HEKRE
B. Employees
B. €&
Employment B1
(A
Occupational Health and Safety B2
BEREREEZS
Development and Training B3
EEY T
Labour Standards B4
BT AR

According to the matrix, the most material topics to the RIEH LM  HAEEFHERAEREEEREELR

Group’s stakeholders and its operations are, B

e Labour Standards o B TAR|

e Product/Service Quality o  Em/REHEE
e Development and Training o EEREEI

e Customer Service s EPRH

e Occupational Health and Safety o BEREHLTZE

The Group strictly complies with the statutory requirements  ANEBE S FHE A EANEZHBB RS ETEAR - WEHRHIEH
in respect of the identified material aspects. Corresponding B RZB%& T &, S5 ERENEREHEBER - A&
management practices and policies are being formulated & {5 &R 3 () & 2 BIIF BB AEBECR - BREENR
and/or implemented following the identification of these  ZE7ERHE - HE@REARHEMNER KRR »

issues. The Group will continue to improve its ESG

management and performance by actively communicating

with its stakeholders and constantly improving its internal

policies.
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RE  HERERWE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK

The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback on our
environmental, social and governance approach and
performance. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with us via email at enquiry@sinoharbour.com.hk.

A. Environmental

Types of emissions the Group contributed towards
in the Reporting Period were mainly due to
petrol, electricity, water and paper consumption.
Business operations of the Group do not involve
the consumption of packaging materials, while
production-related air, water, and land pollutions are
regulated under national laws and regulations. These
include, but not limited to the followings:

° Environmental Protection Law of the PRC

o Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution

° PRC Emission Limits of Air Pollutants (DB44/27—
2001)

o Water Pollution Prevention and Control Law of
the PRC

° PRC Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants
(DB44/26-2001)

o Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes

° Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Pollution by Environmental Noise

72

BFHEERRKE

AEBBIFHHEHRMNRE e REREHRERR
REREER - MTEAESBRY BTHERSK
PZE BETHER - B Benquiry@sinoharbour.com.
hk °

i

A =B
RmEME  AEREEENFRDEZRERER T
B KRR  ARENEHEET S LER
BEME MELAEEBENZER - KEHI5RA
REFEARERAME - BRETRR

ity

s  HERBRARE

o HBERRBRMIAE

o HEIRE)SAYBERIRE(DB44/27-2001)

o HBKIREAE

o HREIK)E LY R E(DB44/26-2001)

o  HEEREYISRRENAE

o HEREISRIAA
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

Since the Group’s operations consist mainly of
property development with construction work
outsourced, it does not have a material consumption
of natural resources and the production of hazardous
wastes. However, sales office and administration
office may inevitably produce non-hazardous
waste and consume fuels. Therefore, the Group
places the highest priority on reduction of the non-
hazardous wastes and limitation of gas consumption
by vehicles. Currently, the Group is not aware of
actual environmental risks on the Group’s business,
strategies and financial performance.

Since the reporting scope for this Reporting Period
has further expanded to other medical-related
operations in the form of ophthalmic medicine and
service business, as well as cell culture business, an
increase of electricity consumption and GHG emission
is inevitable compared to the Last Reporting Period.

The Group understands that electricity and water
consumed, as well as medical wastes generated in its
business operations, contribute to the consumption
of natural resources and poses a minor risk to public
health and the environment. Therefore, electricity
and water saving initiatives were highly promoted
and implemented in its workplace, medical wastes
were treated cautiously according to the Integrated
wastewater discharge standard (GB8978) of the PRC
and the Group’s guidelines during the Reporting
Period. Details of electricity and water saving initiatives
and handling of medical wastes are discussed below
in the corresponding sections.

Total floor area coverage for the Group was
16,824.73m2,

RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)
A. BREE

AEENEBEIERMEFRE  BETIREI2INE
TEMS B AFRRAERORNERBIARE
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WEELBEZEEY RERME - Ait - AEEHK
MO EERZYRRAEHO TUREREIRESD
ZE - BH AEBAYARBIEAERS - R KL
MBRROEMERRTER -

ARAREHENRERELE - S EREEMER
MEERARMBERREEBARARIZE ¥
%) HibE F—REMEMEL - BEERERE
PR EE AR R B PTIAN -

AEETHIFEANERKARRBEETEED
BEBEZRVEEURAERBERL SRR MR
FEREMER - Bt AEERBREHEBELT
1ES5 PR R NHEATER BEAKHE 1 - ARIBH BIE)5KER
BHFRR%E(GBBI7T8) R AN R B M E R FHEE B E
EEY) - BHEEHKERANBEEZYRIENFS
R T XHEEELF -

AEBBEEMER16,824.73F 7K »
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

74

Environmental (Continued)

1.

Emissions

()

Air Emissions

The Group consumed liquefied petroleum
gas (“‘LPG”) and natural gas as stationary
fuel for canteen operation and petrol as
mobile fuel for automobile operation during
the Reporting Period which accounts for
its major sources of air emissions, which
include nitrogen oxides (“NOXx”), sulphur
oxides (“SOx”) and particulate matter
(“PM").

KOEERREBER
A BRRE
1. HRY
() ERPEK

RBEHEA - AREERBRELHAR
(MRAEBHER D R ARIERREZEDN
Bl E ML - WERURERTELEDN
BEBMH  ELBRAEEERNIR
BERUR - BRASLEDTEELD)) -
ey ((matwl) REny ([ B\
i) -

2023/24 2022/23 2021/22

Type of Air Emission amount (kg) amount (kg) amount (kg)

—E-=-—NE 8- /== —E-— = F
BEREEM M ER HE(FR) BE(FR) HE(TR)
NOx 47.73 42.35 52.71
AEY
SOx 0.11 0.12 0.43
ety
PM 4.35 3.87 4.75
EER k)

The emissions intensity is 2.84 g NOXx,
0.01 g SOx, and 0.26 g PM per m? of total
area, or 147.32 g NOx, 0.33 g SOx, and
13.43 g PM per Group employee. This
respectively represents a 21.76% increase
for NOx, a 6.35% decrease for SOx, and a
21.64% increase for PM in area intensity,
as well as a 20.35% increase for NOx, a
7.43% decrease for SOx, and a 20.24%
increase for PM in employee intensity
compared with Last Reporting Period.

EREBEAEET FREEBEIEN2.847%
REIY ~ 0.01HEL YW K0.2652 58
WY SNEREBE THW147.327F
f1b¥ - 0.33F A b K% 13.435 TR
Yo B F—SREHMMAL  BEAOASA
t¥ ~ HEYRBERNYEREE S 7
EFAT21.76% - TR T6.35% & EAT
21.64% DA EE F—3REEIEMEL - B
ITHRE/Y - Fmaltt kBN YR
BRED R LT T720.35% « RFET7.43%
K EF720.24% °
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A.

Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

Scope and Operation of
Emissions

REEREE

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)

A BRRE

1.

Emission Sources

HBORIR

B ()
(i) BEREEN

2023/24 2022/23
GHG Emissions GHG Emissions GHG
(tCO.e) (tCO%e)
—EB-=/-—ME —B-- /"= Z—EZ
BEREHR BERBHMK P}

(B-EtHEE) M-SLKREE)

2021/22
Emissions
(tCO.€)
-/ZZ%
ERBHER

(S REE)

Scope 1 Direct Emission

EE1EESR

Scope 2 Energy Indirect
Emission

EE28 R BN

Scope 3 Other Indirect
emission

EESE M EEEN

Total

@t

Area Intensity (kgCO,e/m?
total area)

EBEHFHEE (FR-SLH
EE/THREER)

Employee Intensity
(tCO.e/Group employee)

ETHHEE

(M-S HEE SEET)

Combustion of LPG and natural
gas in stationary sources "¢’

EERORCARRAR
RARIRE

Combustion of petrol in mobile
sources "’

BRRN SRR

Purchased electricity "2 ¢

M\,ﬁ\%% j]s%fé}‘? '3

Electricity used for processing
fresh water and sewage "7’
BREERKRGKEE N
Paper disposed at landfills "o *
HIER BRI MBI
Business air travels "o

mEEIE

28.46 31.16
9.52 9.68
18.94 21.48
945.94 899.25
945.94 899.25
18.99 19.85
9.82 11.42
8.12 8.43
1.05 0.00
993.39 950.26
59.04 52.28
3.07 2.75

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi

85.55

7.55

78.00

840.40

840.40

15.96

9.44

6.52
0.00
941.91

58.35

2.89
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R - HEREBRS

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

76

Environmental (Continued)

Emissions (Continued)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

Note 1: Emission factors were made reference to
Appendix C2 of the Main Board Listing
Rules and their referred documentation
as set out by Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited, unless stated otherwise.
Scope 3 emissions were only calculated
based on the available emission factors
from the referred documentation.

Note 2: According to CLP 2020 Sustainability
Report, CLP 2022 Sustainability Report,
and CLP 2023 Sustainability Report:
Emission factor of 0.37 was used for
purchased electricity from CLP in Hong
Kong in 2021/22, emission factor of
0.39 was used for purchased electricity
from CLP in Hong Kong in 2022/23, and
emission factor of 0.39 was used for
purchased electricity from CLP in Hong
Kong in 2023/24.

Note 3: According to Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC (2019), (2022),
and (2023): Emission factor of 0.6101
was used for purchased electricity in
Mainland China in 2021/22, emission
factor of 0.5810 was used for purchased
electricity in Mainland China in 2022/23,
and emission factor of 0.5703 was used
for purchased electricity in Mainland China
in 2022/283.

Note 4: CO. emissions from the Group’s business
air travels were reported in accordance
with the International Civil Aviation
Organisation (ICAO) Carbon Emission
Calculator.

There was 993.39 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent greenhouse gases
(“CO.e”) emitted from the Group’s
operation in the Reporting Period, mainly
comprising of carbon dioxide, methane,
and nitrous oxide. The annual emission
intensity was 0.06 tCO,e/m? and 3.07
tCO.e/employee, which represents
a 12.94% increase and 11.64%
increase from the Last Reporting Period
respectively.

ﬁﬁ%uiﬁﬁﬁ)
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

1.

Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

As the Covid-19 pandemic has largely
subsided during the Reporting Period, the
Group has resumed its use of business air
travel. Nevertheless, the Group will strive
to reduce business air travel in the future
by prioritising teleconference meetings and
other electronic communication.

The Group strives to continually improve
its sustainability practices and reduce
its overall emissions and impacts on the
environment. Regarding air emissions,
due to the Group’s business nature,
it considers the relevant air emissions
generated as insignificant. However, it still
pays attention to the limited air emissions
that are generated by their electricity
consumption and vehicles. The Group
strives to mitigate its energy consumption
as much as possible.

Consequently, the Group is not aware
of any significant issues on energy
consumption and disposal.

Additionally, in the aspect of GHG
emissions, the Group is aware that its
principal GHG emissions are generated
from the petrol consumption of vehicles
(Scope 1) and purchased electricity (Scope
2). Hence, the Group has adopted the
various measures to mitigate the direct
GHG emissions from petrol consumption
in its daily operation.
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Greenhouse Gas Emissions (Continued)

The Group has developed preventive
measures for contractors to better
manage the emission on sites.
Contractors are also required to set up
on-site preventive measures for emissions
control. For property management, the
Group has installed a mechanical exhaust
system in underground parking lots. The
system measures the concentrations
of the gaseous emission to ensure the
concentrations are maintained within the
safety range stipulated in the standard that
required by the Group.

The Group had previously set the target
to achieve a 5% reduction in overall
emissions intensity in 10 years from
2021/22, or by 2031/32. See below for the
detail breakdown of the Group’s progress
towards its emission reduction target.

FOERRRERGE)
B (8

B ()

(i)

i SR RE B A ()
AEEDRABABIERNER - UKE
S EIE TH M PRI - A BB IRAS E
T TR - AERIHE - EEE
BME  AEBERHMTEESLZER
MEPER RS - ZR A ERBHERAR
B NHERREHFEASEZSNET
MREMREN L ZHEA -

REBEFCREBERE T =—/
R _T=— /= _E810FER#
BEERE B R ES5% - AEBMREIRHER
BEEZAEMERFBOT

Reduction
2021/22 Target by 2023/24
Type of Emission Figures 2031/32 Figures % Change
—B=-/
—g=—/ == —E-=
BRESR —ZHEHE AIHOR B B R “MEHIE %t
Total Non-GHG Air
Emissions Intensity 3.59 g/m? 3.10 g/m?
NOx, SOx, and PM total area total area
3;}25% Ry en " o eb
(m&Y - malmm 3.50% /F ;K 3.10% /“F K
AJIRA BT R F) “BEIE BEE
Total GHG Emissions 58.35 kg 59.04 kg
Intensity (Scope 1, CO.e/m? CO.e/m?
Scope 2, and Scope 3) total area total area
BERRR AT 58.35F 7 o 50.04F % e
(#E1 - BWE2REHEI) —aftiEE/ —AILIREE
FRBEE I RBEE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Waste
Hazardous Waste

The business operation of the Group
generated 9,435.69 kg of hazardous
waste during the Reporting Period, which
represents a 6.25% decrease from the
Last Reporting Period. The hazardous
waste production intensity was calculated
at 0.56 kg/m? and 29.12 kg/employee,
which represents a 1.28% increase and
0.11% increase from the Last Reporting
Period respectively.

Hazardous waste generated by the
Group consists mainly of used batteries,
computer hardware, and solid and
liquid clinical waste. Hazardous waste is
collected by registered recyclers for further
handling and processing.

Non-hazardous Waste

The Group’s waste was mainly generated
from its construction sites and office,
including non-hazardous waste types
such as construction waste, food waste
in the canteen and paper in the office.
All the construction work of the Group
are outsourced to contractors but the
Group by no means to turn a blind eye
on their operation. The Group has set
up monitoring system to identify areas
of improvements. A transparent and
verifiable waste recording system is set up
on each property to enable performance
monitoring.
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Waste (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste (Continued)

To promote waste separation at source,
waste streams are made readily available.
Procedure for reduction of construction
waste and office waste by implementing
arrangement of recycling of office waste
management.

A total of 6,876.40 kg of non-hazardous
waste, mainly food waste from the canteen
of the Group’s operation, was generated
during the Reporting Period, which
represents a 0.89% increase from the
Last Reporting Period. The non-hazardous
waste production intensity was calculated
at 0.41 kg/m? and 21.22 kg/employee,
which represents a 9.00% increase and
7.74% increase from the Last Reporting
Period respectively.

A total 1,692.48 kg of paper has been
used for daily office operations such as
documents printing and deliverables
packaging.

FOERRRERGE)
B (8

B ()

(i)

BEEY (B

BEEEY (B

RIGERE EWERMHE - R
TREEYOD R - A% B H ERDEE
BEROEBLAEEREMNRERF  BRE
TRREABRAEERZYMELELHE -

RREHE  AEEMNEELELEESE
BEE%)6,876.40F 7% » FEAEEE
8 F—3RE AR I00.89% © FHE H A E
EEEYEERER0M TR FHAK
21.22F 5%,/ A » DRI £ —REHIR I8
H109.00% K8 IN7.74% °

XHTH SNYBREAENAEE
TEHFRH#ALFR1,602.48F 72 °
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

1.  Emissions (Continued)

(i)

Waste (Continued)
Non-hazardous Waste (Continued)

During the Last Reporting Period, the
Group had set the target to achieve a 5%
reduction in hazardous waste generation
and non-hazardous waste generation
intensity in 10 years from 2022/23, or
by 2032/33. See below for the detail
breakdown of the Group’s progress
towards its waste generation reduction
target.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEBRELBHRE

BFHERRREE
A, RE(E)
1.  HHY &)
(i) EEY(4E)
EmEFEZEY(E)

RE—REHME  AEEDRILBE
B2 -/ —=ZF810FREI=F=
TR BEEERYELRES
BERERYMELTERES% AEERER
HpRE B R EAERFBAOT

Reduction
2022/23 Target by 2023/24
Type of Emission Figures 2031/32 Figures % Change
—g8=-/
—g=-=/ ==F —E-=
BRES “ZEHE AR BE B 2 “HFEEE % &1t
Hazardous Waste 0.55 kg/m? 0.56 kg/m?
Generation Intensity total area total area
IR v -5% » +1.28%
BEEBEENELTE 0.55F 5,/ F 75K 0.56F 5,/ F 75K
HEE MEE
Non-Hazardous Waste 0.37 kg/m? 0.41 kgCOe/m?
Generation Intensity total area total area
BEBERVELEE 0.37F 5%,/ FFHK -5% 0.41F5% +9.00%
HHEE —SikiEE
FIOREEE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2. Use of Resources

()

Energy Consumption

The Group aims to minimise environmental
impacts in its operations by identifying
and adopting appropriate measures in its
operations. All contractors are notified to
implement such policies and measures
on resource utilisation. Regular review is
conducted on its energy objectives and
targets to seek continuous improvement in
the Group’s energy performance. During
designing and planning phases of its
properties, preference is given to energy
saving building materials and equipment.

The total energy consumption by the
Group was 1,773,211.60 Kilowatt-hour
(“kWh”), which represents a 6.06%
increase from the Last Reporting Period.
The overall energy intensity is 105.39 kWh
per m? total area and 5,472.88 kWh per
employee during the Reporting Period,
representing a 14.58% increase and
13.26% increase from the Last Reporting
Period respectively.

FOERRRERGE)
B (8

BRER

()

BEFEFE
REBEEBERHNRENEEL I -
BARHEBHNREFERERE I
BAFMBABERNITEBERERHK
KR -  AEETHOELEREZ
HIEE  BRERRENBENRS - &
MERMRTEBERE  AEBELE
FAERBE R SEM B IR 384 o

REBRAGERERE A1,773,211.60
FEE((FRE]) - 8 E—R4 HAR8E M
6.06% > RIREHAME » BEERTEA
105.89F FLEF, /5 K 48T 75 12 5,472.88
TEE, A 2 BI8 E—3RE EAR N
14.58% [ 18 h113.26% ©

2023/24 2022/23 2021/22

Direct/indirect energy sources = Raw Consumption = Raw Consumption = Raw Consumption
—E-= /ZNE —E-— /=% —E-— /= F

HiEBEERRR R RUEFEE REMEEEE RMRERE
Petrol 7,288.36 Litre 8,269.82 Litre 29,326.00 Litre
;i 7,288.367t 8,269.827t 29,326.007t
LPG 1,258.00 kg 1,265.00 kg 1,512.50 kg
BAL AR, 1,258.00F 52 1,265.00F 5% 1,5612.50F 5%
Natural Gas 2,811.00 m® 2,877.00 m® 1,465.64 m®
RAR 2,811.003Z 5 3K 2,877.0037 75K 1,465.643 77 K
Electricity 1,663,301.19 kWh 1,5652,578.63 kWh 1,382,058.94 kWh
S 1,663,301.19F LB 1,552,578.63F ELFF  1,382,058.94F FL s
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R - ARERRE

to IEA Energy Statistics Manual and 2006
IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse

Gas Inventories.

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHRERRREGE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A, RE(E)
2. Use of Resources (Continued) 2. EZRERHGE)

Energy Consumption (Continued) () BEFHFE(E)

2023/24 2022/23 2021/22

Consumption Consumption Consumption
Direct/indirect energy sources (kWh) (kWh) (kWh)
—EZ= ZE —sE-=- /== —E-— /==
HiEEEERRR HER(TRE) HER(TRE) HEE(TRE)
Petrol 64,590.47 73,288.30 259,891.12
i 64,590.47 73,288.30 259,891.12
LPG 17,634.77 17,632.34 21,082.15
BAL AR, 17,534.77 17,632.34 21,082.15
Natural Gas 27,785.17 28,437.55 14,487.06
KRR 27,785.17 28,437.55 14,487.06
Electricity 1,663,301.19 1,552,578.63 1,382,058.94
S 1,663,301.19 1,552,578.63 1,382,058.94
Total 1,773,211.60 1,671,936.82 1,677,519.27
e
Area Intensity (per m? total area) 105.39 91.98 103.91
HRZEE(EBTAREARR)
Employee Intensity
(per Group employee) 5,472.88 4,832.19 5,145.76

EEEZE(BEKEESR)
Note:  Conversion factors were made reference Bfet - BBREAFH2EEREREELRST T

Mk —EBRFRABRERELCEME
BERZREREEEREME
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.  Use of Resources (Continued)

()

Energy Consumption (Continued)

In total, eleven office operations in China
and one office operation in Hong Kong
are included in the scope of this report.
The electricity consumption by the twelve
offices of the Group was 1,663,301.19
kWh, with 14,637.00 kWh consumed
in Hong Kong Office and 1,648,664.19
kWh consumed in the twelve offices in
China, which represents a 7.13% increase
from the Last Reporting Period. This
accounts for an energy intensity of 98.86
kWh/m? and 5,1383.65 kWh/employee,
representing a 7.48% increase and 6.24%
increase from the Last Reporting Period
respectively. The Group encourages staff
to adopt energy saving measures through
reminders and email. For example, by
switching off unnecessary lighting and
electronic appliances.

The Group had previously set the target
to achieve a 5% reduction in electricity
consumption intensity in 10 years from
2021/22, or by 2031/32. See below for the
detail breakdown of the Group’s progress
towards its emission reduction target.

FOERRRERGE)
B (8

BRER (&)

()

BEJREFE (4B)

AR+ —EETFENREENL —EE
BEAHRBRINALARENEHE - A&
B+ B ERMAEEA1,663,301.19
TES Hb HENREEREEAH
14,637.00 F ELB » REM+ (@A EE
NAEE A1,648,664.19T B » & F—
WS HAME IN7.13% - gER % E 598.86
TFB, K K5,133.65T FLAF, A
D RNE E— RS HARIEINT7.48% K 18 N
6.24% o ANEEFBIZEZHE L EHEE)
BTETHERER  MBEBETKHEHE

ERETRES -

ANEFBLEMERIBAE BT =-—/
T oFRI0ERNEIZE=— = ZFR)
ERRHERERES% - A TXHEBEAE
EEEIREERE RN AER -

Reduction
2021/22 Target by 2023/24
Type of Emission Figures 2031/32 Figures % Change
—E=—
—E -/ =—fF5H —ZE=-=
EHESR —FHE KR BE B R —WFHE %21t
Electricity Consumption 85.61 kWh/m? 98.86 kWh/m?
Intensity total area total area
. -59 15.489
RERE 85.61F FL B,/ E 98.86F FLEF ’ “
T OKMEER T OREER
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

2.  Use of Resources (Continued)

(i)

Water Consumption

Water consumption by the Group was
15,009.10 m?®, which represents a
16.17% decrease from the Last Reporting
Period. The water consumption intensity
is calculated to be 0.89 m®/m? and
46.32 m®/employee representing a 9.43%
decrease and 10.47% decrease from the
Last Reporting Period respectively. It is
noteworthy that the water consumption
figures for two out of the twelve offices
was unavailable as it was managed by
the management company of the office,
however the consumption of said locations
were insignificant.

Since GHG emissions from water
consumption are insignificant, the Group
has not set any reduction targets.
Nevertheless, the Group reminds its staff
to reduce water usage whenever possible.

Freshwater consumed for the Group’s
daily business operations is supplied by
municipal freshwater supplier, and the
Group has had no problem in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose. The Group did
not consume significant amount of water
through business activities and the water
consumption was considered minimal. The
Group has set up procedures for water
conservation measures.
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RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)

A BRRE

2. EBRER#&E

(i)

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi

FHK

REEBHAKE A15,009.1032 5 K » &
F—REEERAD16.17% c (FEHH A
KB /0.893 75K F 5K K46,32
SRHKSAN DRI E— s R
9.43% N A 10.47% - BEB T EHW
B T ZENEETEREREERY
XEENREE  BREZESEWE
WEEMNAKERE LM EED
FKENK »

MARAAKBEEREERMAR
B E A E IR B E A R EE B
= BAEEDEIRES TEATERD
R e

AEBABRBLEERKAKETR
HKHEEMHRE  NEERSKAER
AR EY EEMER - EEXBKED
FAKETEEAAENKER -
HRKERRE) - AREEHERF
HERBENKFE I o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

86

Environmental (Continued)

2.  Use of Resources (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Water Consumption (Continued)

There is a monitoring system for
overlooking the water consumption in
the construction site. The Group has
incorporated various water conservation
apparatus in its building designs, including
central water reuse facilities and water-
saving toiletries to efficiency manage water
consumption from cradle to grave.

Packaging Material

The Group’s businesses did not involve
any use of packaging materials; hence no
data nor information is presented in this
report.

3. The Environment and Natural Resources

()

Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment

The Group has strictly complied with all
national and local laws and regulations
in relation to environmental protection
and the use of natural resources during
the Reporting Period under review. To
alleviate its impact on the environment and
natural resources, the Group has followed
green building concept in the development
of real estate. The Group will continue
to adhere to the safety, harmony and
green development concept and make
unremitting efforts to create a resource-
saving and eco-friendly corporation in the
future.

FOERRRERGE)
A. BREE

2. EBRER#E

(i)

(i)

AR (&)
BETITHEREZERZASGEANRKE - K
5 0 1 55 R AN SRR KRR
g7 sk ok (51 PR 38 16 TR K B A B8 L
BEIREEHEREAIAETEBKE RS
% o

BRI
A R TS R AE 7 B AR 68
A E A RS 2 WA B
¥ o

3. RERXARER

()

RIEEDHRENEATE

RBEHHE > FAEEBRBETEHERE
Rk R RAERERN A BR LT
ERER - RBRDHRERKAERN
TE AEBEFMEREPERESRE
BRERR  ARRMBEERRFL22 M
whEReBERES X TEWE N 1T
EERE IR R AR -
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R - ARERRE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) ErnEERREGE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A, RE(E)
3. The Environment and Natural Resources 3. RERAAZRGE)

(Continued)

(i) Significant Impacts of Activities on the
Environment (Continued)

The Group has established and
implemented various controlling and
mitigation schemes. In particular, the
Group’s real estate development. All
projects are required to demonstrate
environmentally responsible building
practices.

By committing to green concept, the
project demonstrates a comprehensive
improvement on various environmental
criteria including site plan, water efficiency,
energy and atmosphere, material and
resources, and indoor environmental
quality.

Noise Mitigation

The Group strive to reduce noise pollution
at every construction site. For short-
term impacts caused by the works during
construction, the Group controls noise to
within established standards and guidelines
through implementation of mitigation measures
such as the use of temporary noise barriers
and silenced construction equipment to
reduce noise generation. The contractors are
required to implement noise control measures
in accordance with the relevant laws and
regulations.

() REEZBHRENEAZEE

AEECEYYETZEERLGET
K- LEERMWERES  MEERBZA
HITHRBABEMNEEEE -

AEBANETHERRE  FBEBHE
SEERBBETYESEZENE  ZF
BEBR TS - Ak¥aE - gERE
KRR MHEBERARERNRZEE -

[EERE
AEEAOFRLBERETHNRESR -
RERBREPRRTIRENNENZE £ %
EaBERRRRERERFETEEREEND
RERCBRENEL - BRI EREDRM
MRERIESIRENBER - AREHARIEA
BRVERERERR S EBIERE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A. Environmental (Continued)

4.

88

Climate Change

A warming planet creates a wide range of risks
for business, from disrupted supply chains to
rising insurance costs to labour challenges.
With the increasing threat of climate change
and the associated physical damage, change
in market perception and shift in preference of
the public towards more environmentally friendly
products and services, the financial, reputational
and strategic risk implications are becoming
increasingly prominent. The Group recognises
that climate change will undoubtedly be of
increasing concern to the Group and industry
as a whole for the foreseeable future, and thus
the Group also agrees with the latest scientific
findings of the Intergovernmental Panel on
Climate Change (the “IPCC”) regarding climate
change.

Starting from Last Reporting Period, the
Group has been disclosing its climate-related
information in alignment with the four core
elements, namely, Governance, Strategy, Risk
Management, and Metrics and Targets of TCFD
recommendations on climate-related financial
disclosure.

(1) Governance

Due to the nature of business as a
property development company, it is likely
climate change poses significant impact
on the Group’s business operation.
Strategies on climate change are
considered to be ESG-related issues, and
thus its management is delegated to the
ESG task force team.

For further details of the Group’s ESG
governance, please refer to the section
“Sustainability Mission and Vision”.

FOERRRERGE)
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EHRE/ERHFREASEORR - 1EHE
EPE - RERECA T AESB BB - BEE
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GBS L AR AR IRRE @ LR DR
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)
4. Climate Change (Continued)

(i)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)

A BRRE

4. RIREL(H)

Strategy (i) EHE
However, the Group has identified relevant AT - ANEEE R RIEERE R
climate-related risks and assessed their b - WRTMHHBEVBZE - 2358
potential financial impacts. The climate RixERR  ERNE&HE - BERTZER
risks identified, their time horizon, trend, SENBEV BT EHINNT -
and the potential financial impacts
affecting the Group are shown below.
Climate Risks Time horizon  Trend Potential financial impact
RAR LR W ik BEMBRE
Physical Risks Acute Short term Increase Extreme weather events with increased
L BEE BRE 55 53 il severity during cyclones, hurricanes,
storm surges and floods can cause
supply chain interruption by bringing
damage to local infrastructure, potential
damage to offices and disruption to
human resources.
FERGE - BRAL - BRI HKER -
BAAREHNREREGEM &
B AR REN R - RO EE
BBERERHANERENTE -
Mg ftEE i -
Chronic Long term Increase Longer-term shifts in climate patterns
3. ~H Yl can increase capital costs, operating

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi

costs, costs of human resources and
increased insurance premium.
RIREA KR AL INE A
A BEEA - ANERBATRR
=
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHRERRREGE)
A. Environmental (Continued) A, RE(E)
Climate Change (Continued) 4. STIREL(E)
(i) Strategy (Continued) (i) RHEE(E)
Climate Risks Time horizon  Trend Potential financial impact
RAR B R W ik BEMBYE
Transition Risks Technology Long term Increase During the transitional period, the
EAE R il & )l Group expects increased procurement
expenditures to introduce new and
alternative technologies, and the
additional cost of adopting/deploying
new practices and processes.
FEEAME - NEETEF IS MRE
X PASBERT R KRR -
BINRA,/ BEFTHRNTIZNK
N o
Policy and Legal Short to medium Increase Implementation of tightened
R Mok term i environmental laws, stringent
B E A H requirements on climate disclosures
and carbon pricing system increases
operating costs.
EBRERRENER URIRESKE
BERIR ER AR EERRIEM T E
Market Short term Increase During the transitional period, the Group
% 552 53 | might face a decrease in revenue due
to higher environmental requirements
of clients, if no strategy has been set
accordingly.
FER ARG - 30 B T AR R
AEENREREFHRRESIES
M E R AR DR E
Reputation Short to medium  Increase Stakeholders’ concerns on climate-
BE term 0 related issues of the Group might
REAH dampen the investment sentiment of
investors, impacting the stock price
and market capitalisation of the Group,
and hence increasing the liquidity risk.
BhEHARERGEASENER
AReEREENRERE &
REEORENTE - EMEMmne
R o
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)
4. Climate Change (Continued)

(i)

Strategy (Continued)

The Group recognises that extreme
weather events may negatively impact
daily operations and has accordingly
prepared contingency plans for these
situations. In cases of extreme weather
such as typhoons or heavy rain, the Board
shall execute procedures to resume and
maintain operations as soon as possible.

However, the Group views climate change
not only as a risk to mitigate, but also an
opportunity for the Group to transition into
a more environmentally friendly enterprise.
To echo with international concerns on
climate change, the Group will begin
assessing the short-, medium- and
long-term materiality of climate-related
risks and opportunities for the Group.
Currently, the Group has introduced
green design and building process for
the real estate development projects to
mitigate the effects of environmental and
other destructive hazards. The Group will
continue to monitor the impact of climate
change that potential will bring to the
Group in the coming year and react in a
responsible manner.
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(i)
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)
4. Climate Change (Continued)

(i)

Risk Management

An ESG risk assessment was conducted
based on assessing the possibility and
impact of each identified risk into three
levels: high, medium and low. Risks are
then prioritised and classified into the
overall risk levels, high, medium and
low based on the possibility and impact
ratings.

FOERRRERGE)
B (8

SRR E L ()

(i)

R EHE

RE - e RERRRETER TG
EECHEAEROATEERTE XD
BE - PREZEFH - ARERER
BERRMERTETRETELRNF X
DRE - PREEREARER -

Risk levels Definition of the overall risk levels

[ B 4% ERERIERER

High Risks at this level may have serious consequences. It is highly likely that there
will be some impacts to the Group and hindrance for the Group to achieve
strategic goals.

= %% R [ AT EEBREER  BEAURHEAERERK —EXE - WH
AR EZERREERE -

Medium Risks at this level may have serious consequences, but they are less likely
to occur. Conversely, the consequences could be minor in nature, but the
probability of occurrence is higher.

aa ZEFEBEEEAREER  BEENARUER)D - R - BROM
AR - ERENREERRS

Low Risks at this level have limited harm and consequences for the Group to
achieve its strategic goals, and the probability of occurrence is low.

& ZEROAREAEFRERNEREAFENEENERAR - BEENKEX
BIK -
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

A.

Environmental (Continued)

4.

Climate Change (Continued)

(i)

Risk Management (Continued)

The Group has identified its risk profile
based on the climate-related risks
suggested by the TCFD recommendations
on climate-related financial disclosure.
All climate-related risks are assessed to
be in high risk levels according to the risk
assessment.
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RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)

A BRRE

4. RIREL(H)

(i)

mREE ()
AEEDRETCFDM RIXIA R M BE S
TR B0 122 5% BT AR A5 B0 SR AR B8 TR B Bk
HREBAR - RIBERFG - AEER
RAEENERREERSEABRER -

Overall risk level Management Approach

EEAE

Climate risks
RixER BERERSR
Physical Acute Medium
iz BE i
Chronic
i=4E3
Transition Policy and Legal High
k23] BRIEE =
Technology Medium
53} i
Market High
mi5 =
Reputation High
L =

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi

- Prepared relevant contingency strategies
for extreme weather events, such as work-
from-home arrangements for non-essential
employees

- HERIGRREMN T BRSO - 0
RIEVEBTLHERIIE

- Engaged with professionals to provide
advice on climate-related issues

- ZERIXAIHRKEEMZEBRRERERZ

- Continuously monitor the latest climate-
related regulations and trend

- FEEERMORIEEEER LBY

- Further adopt green technology and
materials for use in advertising billboards
and posters

- RESERMEWRE-—TRAZERER
ot

- Diversify supply chain and customer base
- HEREREPEZITIE

- Continuously monitor the latest climate-
related regulations and trend
- FEEESNNRIEERERLBE
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
A. Environmental (Continued)
4. Climate Change (Continued)

(iv)

Metric and Targets

To measure the level and impact of the
Group’s climate-related risks, the Group
monitors metrics and indicators to ensure
an effective and quantitative assessment.
The Group monitors and reviews its Scope
1, Scope 2, Scope 3 GHG emissions (in
tCO.eq.), total GHG emissions (in tCO.eq.)
and GHG emission intensity (in tCO.eq./m?
total area, and in tCO.eq./Group
employee) regularly. The GHG emission
data and information about target setting
are shown in the section “Emissions” of
this Report.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social
1.  Employment and Labour Practices
() Employment

The Group had a total number of 336
employees as of 31 March 2024. See
below for the detail breakdown of the

RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOEERRE @
B. #®
1. ERREIEH
O B

BHE_T-_NF=A=+t—H £A5H
HAE3B6HEE - FLRMTEEFE -

workforce.
2024 2023

—B-NEF —=E-=
Total Workforce as of Number of Employment Number of Employment
31 March Employees Percentage Employees Percentage
REA=+—HZEELEH EEA™ EREE S EEA™ EEBDL
Employment Type
EREER
Full Time 331 98.51% 333 98.81%
a3
Part Time 5 1.49% 4 1.19%
i
Employee Category
EEEH
Senior Management 51 15.18% 60 17.80%
BRERE
Middle Management 75 22.32% 74 21.96%
HRERE
Frontline and Other Staff 210 62.50% 203 60.24%
AT#R R EAME S
Age Group
FiHiE Bl
1825 62 18.45% 55 16.32%
26-35 145 43.15% 148 43.92%
3645 76 22.62% 76 22.55%
46-55 34 10.12% 35 10.39%
56 or above 19 5.65% 23 6.82%
563K A =
Gender
4 5l
Male 146 43.45% 157 46.59%
S
Female 190 56.55% 180 53.41%
g
Geographical Region
ih @
Mainland China 322 95.83% 329 97.63%
Hh A3
Hong Kong 14 4.17% 8 2.37%
E
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

()

Employment (Continued)
Work Policies

The Group has formulated policies in
determining the working hours and rest
periods for employees in accordance
with local employment laws. Apart from
the basic leaves, such as annual leaves,
employees are also entitled to additional
leaves, such as maternity leave, childcare
leave, marriage leave, and compassionate
leave, if such leave periods are granted in
accordance with the relevant employment
laws, and leaves are in accordance with
the provision of the local employment
regulations.

The Group did not note any cases of
material non-compliance in relation to
employment during the Reporting Period.

Competitive Compensation and Benefits
Package

Employees are entitled to basic salary
with various allowance as per their job
positions, age and extra work hours, year-
end bonus on performance. Basic social
insurance including pension, medical,
work-related injury, unemployment
compensation and maternity. Various
types of leave are provided including
annual, sick, work-related injury, marriage,
maternity and compassionate leave. The
Group regularly reviews employees’ salary
together with business growth and market
price.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

()

Employment (Continued)
Internal Promotion

Internal promotion and job opportunities
are offered to existing employees and
selection is based on the monthly reviewed
work capability, attitude, and quality of
work of the employees on a point scoring
system. Employees are encouraged to
discuss their goals in job advancement
and career development.

Equal Opportunity and Diversity

A diverse and skilled workforce is
crucial for its business. The Group is
committed to create and maintain an
inclusive and collaborative workplace
culture. It is dedicated to providing equal
opportunities in all aspects of employment
and maintaining workplace that are free
from discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment against any individual based
on race, religion, colour, gender, physical
or mental disability, age, place of origin,
marital status, and sexual orientation.
The Group also strives to ensure that
complaints, grievances and concerns,
including whistleblowing, are dealt with
promptly and confidentially. The Group
has zero tolerance on sexual harassment
or abuse in the workplace of any form.

Employee Communication

No major activities were carried out due
to the pandemic. However, the Company
does occasional packed catering for its
workers and carry out mini activities for
workers to interact.
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)

B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices

FOERRRERGE)
B. #&#)

1. EERZIERE)

(Continued)
() Employment (Continued) ) 1EEGE)
Turnover EERKER
A total number of 76 employees left RmEAEA - HBE7T6RESHALAS
the Group during the Reporting Period, CEEEBEMALER22.62% M
contributing to overall turnover rate TREEBEAMNSIINEE MK EGF
of 22.62%. See below for the detail 15 e
breakdown of turnover figures by
employee group.
2024 2023
—E-MEF —E-=
Turnover Figures as of Number of Turnover Number of Turnover
31 March Employees Rate Employees Rate
REA=+—BZRAEE EEAH A= EBEA™ VNS
Employment Type
EREER
Full Time 75 22.66% 92 27.62%
Part Time 1 20.00% 1 25.00%
Employee Category
EEEH
Senior Management 4 7.84% 7 11.67%
mREERE
Middle Management 8 10.67% 10 13.51%
RRERE
Frontline and Other Staff 64 30.48% 76 37.44%
AR R EAES
Age Group
FE 4R
1825 18 29.03% 24 43.64%
26-35 42 28.97% 40 27.03%
3645 6 7.89% 13 17.11%
46-55 8 23.53% 14 40.00%
56 or above 2 10.53% 2 8.70%
563% A £
Gender
451
Male 30 20.55% 42 26.75%
S
Female 46 24.21% 51 28.33%
i
Geographical Region
&
Mainland China 76 23.60% 93 27.96%
H L A i,
Hong Kong 0 0.00% 0 0.00%
B
Overall 76 22.62% 93 27.60%
2
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(i)

Employee Health and Safety

The Group is committed to provide
and maintain a safe and healthy
working environment for the benefit of
our employees, subcontractors, and
suppliers. It has set out clear terms for
project management approaches and
commitments to health and safety. The
Group reviews the policy annually, or
when incidents arising determine a need
to review, to ensure that the procedure
remains relevant and appropriate.

The Health and Safety system includes
main-contractor and subcontractor
responsibilities, and the management’s
commitments to safety and health. The
policy also states the requirement of
sub-contractor to provide sufficient and
appropriate resources at the site. The
system is reviewed at intervals, or when
there is a change of operations that
requires other sources and personnel
management.

In addition, the Group has monitored the
contractors to ensure if enough various
occupational health training programmes
which aim to protect workers from health
hazards relevant to the construction
industry such as noise, dust, toxic gases
and vapours has provided.

The Group haven’t collected any work
injury figure from the contractors.
The Group is not aware of any non-
compliances during the year.
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHERRREE
B. Social (Continued) B. #=(@&)
1.  Employment and Labour Practices 1. EERXZTFHEHEGE)
(Continued)
(i) Employee Health and Safety (Continued) (i) EERFEHZT(HE)
For the internal management during the MRIBEEABHRNIBEIEF - REF K
Reporting Period, the Group did not note MEMABAREEEZ S EZEFHOEKX
any cases of material non-compliance EIER o WERMKBSTBR M A=
in relation to health and safety laws and ER o BEEAERATEE -

regulations, and strictly complied with
national and local laws and regulations,
including but not limited to the followings:

Occupational health and safety laws and regulations complied in different regions

TR ENBERERZ 2ERRER

Hong Kong The PRC

B8 A El

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance o Law of the PRC on the Protection of

o BELZEREEED Production Safety

o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance . FEZEEEE

o [EEHERD e Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance
of the PRC

o HETIEREED

2023/24 Occupational Health and Safety Data
SECE /NS RERERTZHIE

Work related fatality 0
ETITERERMILT A A
Fatality Rate 0.00%
TR
Work injury cases >3 days 0
T{5>3H
Work injury cases <3 days 0
T{5<3H
Lost days due to work injury 0
EIHBELXIERR

2022/23 Occupational Health and Safety Data

TR/ CCEHERERTZHE

Work related fatality 0
ETEREMILTHAE
Fatality Rate 0.00%
TR
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Employee Health and Safety (Continued)

RE - HEBRELBHRE

FOERRRERGE)
B. #&#)

1. EERZIEHR(E)

(i) EERFEZZE(E)

2021/22 Occupational Health and Safety Data
B /o FRERRRARTREE

Work related fatality

E TERERMIL T B AR
Fatality Rate

RS

Development and Training

The Group provides comprehensive
career development and training to
employees. Training topics include
orientation, anti-corruption, occupational
health and safety, fire safety, professional
medical technology lectures, and content
management. During the Reporting
Period, 164 employees, or 48.81% of all
employees received 2,338.07 hours of
training, and the average training hour per
employee (inclusive of employees who did
not receive training) was 6.96 hours.

0.00%

R R

AEEAEEREZANBERRE R
Jl - FIMEBEBEABRESE  k=E
5o BiERRETE A BEEE
HMEEMNARREE - RRELHH -
1642 EE((HEB B E48.81%)EXT
2,338.071&/ NS T - BREE(BIE
WREZEINEE) WEHEZIEEA
6.961E/)\F o

(i)

Percentage of
Trained
Employees
FiEEES

Average
Training Hours

FHEUEY

By Gender

5l

Male

S

Female

2

By Employee Category
EEEH

Senior Management
mRER

Middle Management
hRER

Frontline and Other Employees
AR N E At g B

54.11% 7.50 hrs
7.50/\BF
44.74% 6.54 hrs
6.54/)\FF
41.18% 6.87 hrs
6.87/\BF
60.00% 6.91 hrs
6.91/)
46.67% 7.00 hrs
7.00/\BF
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

1.  Employment and Labour Practices
(Continued)

(iv)

Labour Standard

The Group strictly complies with local
laws and does not provide employment
to children before they reach the legal age
to work as defined by the International
Labour Organisation (“ILO”) Convention
and local regulations in Hong Kong and
China.

The Human Resources and Administration
Department of the Group strictly complies
with local laws and conducts recruitment
based on all the employment requirements
in each respective. Personal data will
be collected during the recruitment
process to assist in the selection
of suitable candidates. The Human
Resources Department will also ensure
the compliance at all operations and
facilities by checking original identification
cards upon recruitment. If any violation is
involved, it will be dealt with in the light of
circumstances. The Group also sources
its candidates through legal and legitimate
sources. The HR department reviews each
applicant’s resumes to ensure they are
of appropriate legal age before engaging
them for interview.

FOERRRERGE)
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)

2.  Operating Practices

()

Supply Chain Management

The Group has established a vendor
performance assessment and monitoring
system to provide the Purchasing
Department with a structured and
systematic way to assess suppliers and
sub-contractors. A comprehensive,
impartial and transparent bidding
procedure has been developed for
selecting building materials, equipment
and services from contractors or suppliers.
All contractors and suppliers are expected
to meet environmental and occupational
health and safety policies required by the
Group for ensuring compliance during
the tendering procedure. Supplier and
sub-contractor evaluations are based
on product quality, ability in meeting
contractual requirements, previous project
references and delivery capability. Tender
Committee is responsible for overseeing
the entire tendering process to combat
unfair business practices.

Suppliers and sub-contractors’
assessments will be conducted
periodically, and the results of the
evaluations, both positive and those
needing improvement, will be promptly
shared with the vendors. Suppliers who
consistently fail to meet the Group’s
requirements may be subjected to
suspension for future supply.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has
engaged 54 suppliers for office supplies,
cleaning supplies, food ingredients, online
recruiting services, hotel arrangements,
and drinking water. All of them were from
various provinces in the PRC.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED) BFHRERRREGE)
B. Social (Continued) B. #E(HE)
2. Operating Practices (Continued) 2. EEBEHGE)
(i) Product Responsibility (i)  EmEIT
Service Quality Assurance AR7%E 2R F

In order to ensure service quality is being
maintained, the Group has implemented
the quality policy and code of conduct
as internal guide for quality control. The
Group is dedicated to deliver quality
products and services which satisfy the
needs and requirements of our customers
and interested parties by continually
improving the effectiveness of the quality
management system.

The Group has also established a set
of procedures in handling customers’
feedbacks or complaints in a professional
manner. Upon receiving product or
service-related enquiries or complaints,
reviews will be conducted immediately.
After complaints are settled, customers’
satisfaction will be evaluated. The Group
has received no complaints about the
products with regards to health and
safety, advertising, labelling or any privacy
matters relating to products and services
provided and method of redress during
the Reporting Period.

RRERBEERRN—  AEBEE
BERRMTREMMEREEEENRN
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Product Responsibility (Continued)
Consumer Data Protection

The Group respects the values and rights
of customers’ information assets, and
strictly complies with the customers’
information security management systems
and standards. In order to provide high-
quality services, we are determined to
strengthen the protection of customers’
privacy. In addition, the Group adheres
to the PRC Cyber Security Law. It has
implemented firewall, anti-virus, and anti-
spam solutions for our IT systems to
prevent leakage of confidential information,
which are upgraded constantly.

There has been no complaints on the
Group’s services regarding the areas of
Data Protection.

Anti-corruption

The Group has zero toleration on
any corruptions, frauds and all other
behaviours violating work ethics. It values
and upholds integrity, honesty and
fairness in the way it conducts businesses.
As spelt out in the internal control manual
and project bidding management system,
the Group has formulated related policies
on the control and prevention of bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering in
each business operation and trade activity.
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R HBEREBRSE

STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)

(i)

Anti-corruption (Continued)

All employees should be alert for
occurrences of fraud and be aware that
unusual transactions or behaviours could
be indications of fraud. Employees will be
subjected to disciplinary actions if they
are found being engaged in fraudulent
activities. Disciplinary actions include
termination of an individual, or prosecution
to the appropriate law enforcement and/
or regulatory agencies for independent
investigation, depending on the situation.

Whistleblowing Mechanism:

In order to further maintain and achieve
the highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability, the Group
has formulated a reporting procedure.
While management is responsible for
detecting irregularities, employees are also
encouraged to report fraudulent activity
immediately to the Head of Department, or
where that is not possible, to the Director
when they discover or suspect such
activity. Whistle-blowing policies were
implemented to all stakeholders to report
suspected misconduct, malpractices
or fraudulent activities. Reported cases
shall be investigated by the Group’s Audit
Committee and executive management.
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STAKEHOLDERS’ FEEDBACK (CONTINUED)
B. Social (Continued)
2.  Operating Practices (Continued)
(i) Anti-corruption (Continued)
Whistleblowing Mechanism: (Continued)

During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not note any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations
of bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering, including but not limited to
the “Prevention of Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance (Cap 201)”. The Group did not
work with any contractors or suppliers
who failed to comply with the laws,
regulations and the Group’s policies.

Anti-corruption Training:

To ensure that its employees familiar with
anti-corruption topics such as identifying
bribery, extortion, fraud, and money
laundering, the Group had carried out
217.4 hours of anti-corruption training
during the Reporting Period for 38
employees, with an average training hour
of 5.72 hours per employee.

3. Community Investment

As the business continues to evolve and
develop, the group has remained steadfast in its
commitment to make a positive change in the
communities. The Group firmly believes in its role
in invigorating the communities through sharing
its prosperity. Understanding that different
segments of the communities all have their own
distinct challenges, the outreach programs have
been developed to address the particular needs
of each group.

FUTURE DIRECTIONS FROM THE GROUP

Looking forward to the coming years, the Group is fully
engaged in promoting sustainability culture into its business
operation, practice and daily behaviour to its employees
and contractors. Greater performance is expected from
green design and the integrated sustainable development
management approach that values stakeholder’s
expectations.
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RE HERER

APPENDIX - HKEX ESG REPORTING GUIDE INDEX i #% — B¢ X FTIR IR

wE

CHERERREESIRS

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page
—RIEBERBARENES R =P/
Environmental
BRI
Aspect A1: Emissions
[EEAT : HERY
General disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 72
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
— AR ER BRBEROAERBER - FUKR MBS - BERBEEEEYD 72
EEEN - @QBE  RO)ETHEITAGEAZENEBEAZRRN
BB K} -
KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. 74
RASEAE DR IRAT A PR iR A K AR B EUE - 74
KPIA1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where appropriate, intensity. 75
RS AE IR IEAL.2 RERBAENER(MER)EE - 75
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 79
RASEAE IR 1IRA1.3 FEABEEEVHRERWEREE - 79
KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, where appropriate, intensity. 79
BRIERURIZEA1.4 FEABREEEMEER(WEREE - 79
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and results achieved. 77
RBRAE BURIRA1.5 HAURIEBEE BB b R AT R - 77
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, 79
reduction initiatives and results achieved.
RASRAE IS TEAL1.6 HEEEERBERENMN L  RIEESEENEBITEAR 79
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R - ARERRE

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Page

—REBERBARENES it BR

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BEA2: EREA

General disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water and 82
other raw materials.

—MRIREE BERERER(BIERER - KEEMEMEDBUR 82

KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type in total and intensity. 82

RS E HETRA2.1 RENESNEER SLHERERBEERTE 82

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity. 85

BASEE IR IRA2.2 BFEKEREE - 85

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and results achieved. 84

RS E IR IRA2.3 A eEIRE AT B R ATERR - 84

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for 85
purpose, water efficiency initiatives and results achieved.

BSEE IR 1RA2.4 At SREGE A KR Rl B ERI R RE - A RBRF AR E 5 8l R P 85
% o

KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products and, if applicable, 86
with reference to per unit produced.

RABEAE B 1RA2.5 B mTAREMENEER WER) BEEERES - 86

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

[EEA3 : BIERAAREIR

General Disclosure Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant impact on the environment 86
and natural resources.

— R BIREITABRBERRAERERERNZEHEE - 86

KPI A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment 86
and natural resources and the actions taken to manage them.

BB 4E 1R A3 HMEFEDERERRARERNEAZERDRNEEEEZEN 86
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—REBERBARENES it BR

Aspect A4: Climate Change

[EEA4 : RIRE1L

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related 88
issues which have impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer.

—MRIREE BRI REHER LA GHBETAEETENEARBEBEFENR 88
% o

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have 88
impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions
taken to manage them.

RSB IR RA4 1 HAE R R HETAEETENERREEBER - REHTT 88
@;ﬁjj o

Social

e

Employment and Labor Practices

BREREIER

Aspect B1: Employment

EBEB1 : &R

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 96
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and
other benefits and welfare.

—MRIKEE ERAFMRRE BEREA ITEREH - RY - FEHE 2T 96
£~ REGRAREMFBRENN © @BER - RO)EBTHETARE
AZEBNEBEELROINER -

KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age group and 95
geographical region.

RASEAE I 1RB.1 RIER - BIFEE - FRARKNEE SRS EE - 95

KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. 98

RSB RUIEEBT .2 RIER - FeilRI MinREI DB EEIMAKLLE o 98
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Aspect B2: Health and Safety

[EHEB2 : RREZE

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 99
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

— MR BRRMHZ2TERERREESREBEMLEN - @BE  RD) 99
BTHRTABEAZENHBERLRDINER

KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities. 100

RG4S IR 1EB2.1 EATTHEABRLE - 100

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. 100

BABAE RUIEEB2.2 AIEEAIIERS - 100

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how 99
they are implemented and monitored.

BSEE 5 1RB2.3 R PAER ANV B R R B 22 210 - AT RERT X - 99

Aspect B3: Development and Training

[BEBS : &R RE

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging 101
duties at work. Description of training activities.

— MR BRRAERERITIEBRENAH I REERBUR - #HtFIES - 101

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee 101
category.

RS2 45 IS 1EB3. 1 RURIREEENESHNZIEER DL © 101

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and 101
employee category.

RS A R 1EB3.2 RIERNEEERIED - BREETHI I FIIRE - 101
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Aspect B4: Labor Standards

[EEB4 - & T#A|

General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 102
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
preventing child or forced labor.

— R BEMIEET KRGS TH - @BK : RO BETFHETABEATLE 102
BRI EE LRI ERL -

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child 102
and forced labor.

R4S 5 1EB4. 1 s B Ef AR RET REHET - 102

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. 102

A I EB.2 B EFRER BN ERE @ISR ERIE L5 o 102

Operating Practices

EEEN

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management

[EEBS5 : ftrEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply 103
chain.

—MRIREE ERMHEENIRE R G RARBER - 103

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. 103

RASE 45 WIS 1RB5. 1 muwmE D HEREE - 103

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging supplies, number of 103
supplies where the practices are being implemented, how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB E I 1EB5.2 MAERRERHERNED  MERTEBENNHEREE - UKk 103
BRABPINMITRERITE -

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks 1038
along the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB 4E 5 1EB5.3 A SR HEREERGNRE L gRBRAES - A RAEEHR 103
TREERTE -

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable 103
products and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

RS E I 1EB5.4 R E AR 2 2 B RRE m MRV BB - LA KRBT 103

MEERITEA ©
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Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
[EEB6 : EmEE
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 104
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to
products and services provided and methods of redress.
— MR BRMREHEMIRBNREREZ Y BS  SERLESEEUARE 104
FOTER - (@BR - RO)ETHEITABEAZENRRER AR
HER} o
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for 104
safety and health reasons.
RS AE 1R B6.1 EENCEXERBBTRALZE MEFREAMARKN B DL 104
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service-related complaints received and how 104
they are dealt with.
RS 4E 5 13B6.2 BERAD B on MRTS IR AR BB A S B 5 0% o 104
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual 104
property rights.
RASEAE IR 1RB6.3 it B A o R AR PR AN EERE B A 1B B » 104
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. 104
RS AE I 15B6.4 HiE SRTERIERERBWIEF - 104
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they 105
are implemented and monitored.
RS E 5 13B6.5 HAUEE EERMRE RALBEBER - U RABREAITRERT X - 105
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Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
BEB7 : K&ES
General Disclosure Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant laws 105
and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating to
bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.
— R BRANTILERRS - B - HGEFROARBEER - @B 5 RO)ETHETA 105
BERZENHEBERIOERNER -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought 107
against the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RS E 1R BT .1 RERMABETASEEERETEEEANE SHFARENEA R 107
FELbER o
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing procedures, 106
how they are implemented and monitored.
RASRAE IR REBT.2 b s R BRI - A RABBERITRERTE - 106
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. 107
RS E IR 1EBT.3 fimEE R B TIRENRESE - 107
Aspect B8: Community Investment
[EEBS : #HtEHRE
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the 107
communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its activities take
into consideration the communities’ interests.
— R ER BN E2ERTRETAEENELROFZENBRRELERLED 107
B BRI aS B BUR e
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution. 107
RS E 1R B8 1 T EREE - 107
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed to the focus area. 107
RASRAE IE1RB8.2 EEIHEMPBAER 107
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAIRMAN AND EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

WONG Lam Ping ((E#K), aged 69, has been appointed
as Chairman and an Executive Director since 1 April
2020 and the Chief Executive Officer and the General
Manager since 22 May 2020. He is also a member of
the Remuneration Committee. He has over 30 years of
property development experience since he established Pan
Hong Co., Ltd. in 1983. He was an executive director and
chairman of the board of directors of Pan Hong Holdings,
a sister company of the Company and the issued shares of
which are listed on the SGX-ST (stock code: P36), from 3
January 2006 to 31 March 2020. He is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company, namely Leping City Fenghuang
Jincheng Industry Co., Ltd. and Jiangxi Ganghua Medical
Management Co,. Limited. Mr. WONG also sits on the
boards of several investment holding companies. He was a
director of Chaozhou Jinaote Sanitary Ware Ltd.

Mr. WONG completed a post-graduate course in Economics
of Science and Technology and Management from Zhejiang
University of Technology in the PRC in 2000. He holds an
honorary degree of a Doctor of Business Management from
Armstrong University in the United States of America.

Mr. WONG is one of the Controlling Shareholders. He is the
father of Mr. WONG Lui, an Executive Director and an uncle
of Mr. CHAN Kin Sang, the Non-Executive Director.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

SHI Feng (F1#), aged 66, became the Deputy Chairman,
and an Executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also a
member of the Remuneration Committee and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. SHI is responsible
for the management of project plans, quality control,
coordination with contractors, and the management of the
Company’s subsidiaries. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
in September 2002 and was an executive director of Pan
Hong Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the PRC ({3 A K H BT 8 T 2 &F) in 1987.

Mr. SHI graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, Mr. SHI was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department of
Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under the
Ministry of Metallurgy (f& TEZE -+ ZA XA A
(5 T BZ)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an engineer
at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of Light
Industry (& T 3= D% from 1983 to 1992, where
he specialised in the structural design of buildings. Mr. SHI
subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou City,
Guangdong Province (BEREBMMEESEBRAF) in
the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general manager,
responsible for real estate development and technical
construction management. Between 1999 and 2002, he
was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co., Ltd. (4
STEHIN=2FFTAHMRAR) in Huzhou City, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC.

WONG Lui ((£%), aged 41, became an Executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. WONG is mainly responsible for the
operational management and development of the projects
of Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan (F§ & 4L A 8lJiE) and Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (#EJNZE# FEFT) in the PRC. He joined
Pan Hong Holdings in October 2007 as the assistant to
the chairman of Pan Hong Holdings responsible for the
formulation of business strategy and management of Pan
Hong Holdings. He was appointed as the deputy project
manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia
City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“dX Asia City”)
in 2008 and was mainly responsible for management of
construction works. He was also appointed as the general
manager of the Company’s subsidiaries, Fuzhou Pan
Hong Kai Xuan Property Development Co., Ltd. (“Fuzhou
Pan Hong”, /I & E #E R B R A 7)), Hangzhou
Ganglian Real Estate Company Limited (“Hangzhou
Ganglian”, fiNEH B Z B R A F]) and Jiangxi Hanyun
Incubator Limited (‘Hanyun Incubator”, ;T 7% B i7{L 25
BRAE]) in 2009, 2014 and 2015 respectively and was
mainly responsible for the formulation of business strategy
and the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong, Hangzhou
Ganglian and Hanyun Incubator.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Mr. WONG is now a member of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference of Jiangxi Province,
the PRC and a standing committee member of Jiangxi
Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. WONG is the son of Ms. CHAN and Mr. WONG Lam
Ping and a cousin of Mr. CHAN King Sang, the Non-
Executive Director.

GAO Lan (5/&), aged 58, joined the Group in June 2010
as the director of marketing and administration. She has
been re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing
since November 2013 in order to concentrate on the
Group’s marketing affairs. Ms. GAO was appointed as an
Executive Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member
of the Nomination Committee.

Ms. GAO graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(TP T KXE) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (B & AX£2), in 1987 with a bachelor’'s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was
certified as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as a class 2
constructor in 2003.

Ms. GAO has extensive experience in the construction
and real estate development industry. She worked at
the technology division of the real estate department
of Nanchang City Municipal Engineering Development
Co., Ltd. (METMMH ITEMEEGR A A]) from 1987 to
1993. She joined Hainan Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (/&
IR (M E)EE]) in 1993, acting as the director of the
chief executive officer’s office, and as the deputy general
manager of Hainan Huan Li Real Estate Development Co.
Ltd. (BFEIR FEHERZEBMR A F). Ms. GAO was the
deputy general manager of Shanghai Jing Ja Immovable
Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (F/E8 & EREERE HA
B PR A &) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006 to 2009, she was
the deputy general manager of Nanchang Lan Di Consultant
Co., Ltd. (FA B EHEER AR A 7). Afterwards, she joined
Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (I8 BEXBRET
‘A \]) as the general manager from 2009 to 2010 before
joining the Group.
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EEREREEEBCBEFE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. CHAN Kin Sang (FRf4), aged 72, became the NED
on 1 April 2020. He is also a member of the Nomination
Committee. He is currently a partner of Messrs. Kwan &
Chow, Soalicitors. He obtained a bachelor’s degree in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong in 1979 and a post-
graduate certificate in Laws from the same university in
1980. He has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong since
April 1982 and has been admitted as a Notary Public since
April 1997 and a China-appointed Attesting Officer since
January 2000. Mr. CHAN has also been a Fellow of The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors since August 2004.

Mr. CHAN has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of each of GoFintech Innovation Limited
(formerly known as China Fortune Financial Group Limited)
(stock code: 290) since July 2014 and Pak Tak International
Limited (stock code: 2668) since April 2018, which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. CHAN
was an independent non-executive director of Huakang
Biomedical Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 8622)
between 26 November 2018 and 2 April 2024, which is
listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN held directorships in a Singapore listed company
and a PRC listed company. He was a non-executive director
of Pan Hong Holdings from 14 August 2006 to 31 March
2020. He also acted as a director of Guanghe Landscape
Culture Communication Co., Ltd., Shanxi (stock code:
600234) from June 2016 to October 2020, which is listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHAN is a nephew of Mr. WONG and Ms. CHAN and a
cousin of Mr. WONG Lui, an Executive Director.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

XIE Gang (#Ml), aged 59, became an INED on 4 July
2011. He is also the chairman of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee and a
member of the Audit Committee. Mr. XIE was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which period he was responsible
for the operation of the representative office and matters
relating to establishing branch companies for AXA group.
From 2003 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales, etc. Mr. XIE graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

HE Dingding (27T T), aged 47, became an INED on 1
August 2018. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee. He has more than 16 years of extensive
experiences in capital markets, corporate finance,
investment and finance, and corporate management
through working in investment banks, advisory firms and
listed companies in Singapore and Hong Kong since
2005. Mr. HE has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of each of () China New Consumption
Group Limited (formerly known as State Innovation Holdings
Limited and Beaver Group (Holding) Company Limited)
(stock code: 8275) since May 2021, the issued shares of
which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, and (i)
Mobile Internet (China) Holdings Limited (stock code: 1439)
since 20 March 2023, the issued shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He has also
been appointed as an executive director of Link Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8237) since 2 May 2023, the issued
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. HE was an independent non-executive director of
China Kangda Food Company Limited, the issued shares
of which were listed on the Main Board of both the Stock
Exchange and the SGX-ST (stock codes: 834 and P74,
respectively), between August 2012 and June 2015 and
Crown International Corporation Limited (stock code: 727),
the issued shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange, between May and September 2021.
Mr. HE was a non-executive director of Perfect Group
International Holdings Limited, the issued shares of which
were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3326) between March 2017 and February 2018.
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BIOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREEEBCBEFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Mr. HE graduated from Nanyang Technological University,
Singapore with a bachelor’s degree in civil engineering. Mr.
HE was awarded the CFA Charter by the CFA Institute in
September 2006.

WONG Ping Kuen (EA#), aged 37, became an INED
on 1 June 2020. He is the chairman of the Audit Committee
and a member of each of the Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
over 11 years of experience in the accounting, finance and
investment industry. He founded Credito Capital group in
September 2015 and is currently the managing director of
each of Credito Capital Consulting and Appraisal Limited,
a private company incorporated in Hong Kong, and Beijing
Credito Capital Investment Fund Management Co. Ltd.,
a private company incorporated in the PRC. Between
December 2011 and July 2014, Mr. Wong worked in latia
Ltd, a company previously listed on Australian Securities
Exchange and he was responsible for its restructuring
as financial controller. He also worked in Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to November
2011.

Mr. WONG has been appointed as (i) an independent
director of Al Transportation Acquisition Corp (stock symbol:
AITR) since 15 March 2023, the issued shares of which are
listed on Nasdaqg Stock Exchange; and (i) an independent
non-executive director of WWPKG Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 8069) since 1 May 2023, the issued
shares of which are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. WONG graduated from The Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology in 2008 with a bachelor’s degree
in accounting and information system (double major).
He obtained a master of business administration degree
from Peking University, the PRC and a master of business
administration degree from National University of Singapore
in 2015.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

CHAN Heung Ling (M%), aged 65, is one of the
founders of the Group. She is the director and general
manager of the subsidiary, Sino Harbour Limited. She has
engaged in property development since 1990s and has
experience in this area for over 20 years. She participated
in the property business of Pan Hong Holdings and was
the deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Holdings from January 2006 to June 2011 and chairlady of
the Group from July 2011 to March 2020. Ms. CHAN is the
wife of Mr. WONG, and is the mother of Mr. WONG Lui, one
of the Executive Directors.

QIU Si Yuan (5B 8JF), aged 64, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. QIU joined Pan Hong Holdings as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. QIU has worked in the construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (F
WTERDTIRARAR) (formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (& T 2
ERDERETER) from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. QIU was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (47
KAk SRR AR AT as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Holdings
thereafter. Mr. QIU was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.
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EEREREEEBCBEFE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

LAU Ka Ho, Billy (8|X %), aged 39, has been the Group’s
financial controller since 1 August 2018.

Mr. LAU joined Pan Hong Holdings as the group financial
controller and company secretary on 31 July 2017 and
was responsible for the finance and accounting functions,
statutory compliance and corporate governance.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Holdings, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu, Hong Kong from September 2008 to
September 2012, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu CPA LLP
(Beijing Branch, China) from October 2012 to November
2014 and Deloitte Touche Financial Advisory Service Limited
(Shenzhen, China) from December 2014 to June 2017. Mr.
Lau is a member of CPA Australia. He obtained a bachelor’s
degree in commence majoring in accounting, finance and
financial planning from the Deakin University, Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

R

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
EERE 1 +852 2218 8288 EHTFHEA11188
{#H : +852 2815 2239 JKLHI>2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages
132 to 237, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2024, and the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2024, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (‘"HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

Refer to notes 3.4, 4 and 6 to the consolidated financial
Statements

The Group recognised revenue from sale of properties
held for sale of approximately RMB832 million for the year
ended 31 March 2024. Revenue arising from the sale of
properties held for sale is recognised at a point in time
when customers accept the properties, unless at the
time of entering into the contract, the sales and purchase
agreement satisfied the criteria for recognising revenue
over time by containing an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and the performance of
the Group does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group. Revenue from sale of properties held for sale
is recognised upon the transfer of control of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers. The revenue
recognition is dependent on the contractual arrangements
for the sale and the laws in the relevant jurisdiction and may
require significant audit effort and management judgement.

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Reviewing the legal advice provided by the
Group’s legal advisor, including the legal advisor’s
interpretation of the applicable laws and the
implication on the assessment of the enforceability of
the right to payment;

- Assessing the competency, experience and objectivity
of the legal advisor engaged by the Group; and
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

REVENUE RECOGNITION ON SALE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE (CONTINUED)

Audit response (Continued)

- Reading the terms stated in the sales and purchase
agreements, and obtaining evidence regarding the
transfer of the control of properties, including checking
to acceptance letters, on a sampling basis, to assess
whether the criteria for revenue recognition set out in
note 3.4 to the consolidated financial statements have
been met.

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Refer to notes 3.10, 3.11, 4, 19 and 20 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group has significant properties held for sale and
properties held under development in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) which together represent the largest
category of assets on the consolidated statement of
financial position of approximately RMB1,787 million as at
31 March 2024.

Properties held for sale and properties held under
development are stated at the lower of their costs and
their net realisable values based on independent external
valuations.

The determination of the estimated net realisable value of
these properties held for sale and properties held under
development is critically dependent upon the Group’s
estimation of future selling prices and construction costs to
complete their projects.
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R

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

ASSESSMENT OF NET REALISABLE VALUE OF
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE AND PROPERTIES
HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (CONTINUED)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Involving an auditor’s valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations;

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used;

- Assessing the appropriateness of the Group’s
estimated selling prices, on a sampling basis,
by comparing them to, where available, recently
transacted prices and prices of comparable properties
located in the same vicinity as the development
projects; and

- Assessing the construction costs and interest
expenses estimated by the management based on
underlying documentation and reasonableness.

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Refer to notes 3.6, 4 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group owns a portfolio of investment properties
comprising commercial offices and shop units, located
in the PRC. Investment properties were significant to the
Group as they represented approximately 36% of the total
assets of the Group as at 31 March 2024.

These investment properties are stated at their fair values
based on independent external valuations.

The valuation process involves significant judgement in
determining the appropriate valuation methodology to
be used, and in estimating the underlying assumptions
to be applied. The valuations are highly sensitive to key
assumptions applied including premium or discount on
quality of properties, discount rate, and vyield rates i.e. a
small change in the assumptions can have a significant
impact to the valuation.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

VALUATION OF INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Audit response

Our audit procedures included:

- Evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of external valuer;

- Involving an auditor’s valuation expert to assess the
appropriateness of the methodologies used and the
reasonableness of the key assumptions adopted for
the valuations; and

- Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in this
regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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B ZHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our
audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our

audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Hung Yun, Andrew

Practising Certificate Number P0O4092

Hong Kong, 26 June 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

2024 2023
—EomE ZEC-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥ T ARBTF T
Revenue WA 6 891,657 247,460
Cost of sales SHE AR (595,628) (149,927)
Gross profit EF 296,029 97,533
Other income and other gains and losses, ~ EAthUg A LA K& E fib Uk 25 I &5 48
net pe | 6 (25,244) 27,839
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER (45,971) (19,040)
Administrative expenses EREM (68,594) (72,270)
Operating profit KRR 156,220 34,062
Finance costs B AN 7 (11,461) (762)
Profit before income tax BR AT 18 Bt Az Rl 8 144,759 33,300
Income tax expense FriSHif X 9 (113,354) (22,321)
Profit for the year F R A 31,405 10,979
Other comprehensive income Hih 2k (B HRFE)
(net of tax)
Item that will not be reclassified to BreEfsEEE%2ER
profit or loss
Changes in fair value of equity instruments AR ERE f ZEW TR
at fair value through other comprehensive ~ ZS#E T B 2 A 4 EZE
income (3,000) (4,500)
Item that may be reclassified HEBEWEEHI>BEERZZ
subsequently to profit or loss EHE
Exchange differences on translation of MEIRINEBI Bk
financial statements of foreign operations & i =78 1,585 2,041
Other comprehensive income for the  FREMEEKE
year (1,415) (2,459)
Total comprehensive income ARG
for the year 29,990 8,520
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

mEEERER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

2024 2023
—EomE ZEC-=fF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
MtaF AE¥FT ARBFT
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: LA T A L FE(G & REF,
(&) :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIETZS DN 52,453 18,593
Non-controlling interests IR A (21,048) (7,614)
31,405 10,979
Total comprehensive income RTATEAEZERZELE
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBEA A 51,038 16,134
Non-controlling interests FEIE R (21,048) (7,614)
29,990 8,520
Earnings per share for profit FRAQXTEE ABIEERZ
attributable to the owners of the BRBAALKS)
Company during the year
(in RMB cents)
- Basic and diluted -BEAXREE 11 2.13 0.75
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mE B RS IR L R

As at 31 March 2024 R=F—PIF=F=+—H

2024 2023
—EomE ZEC-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥TFT ARBTF T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB REE 13 56,334 38,860
Investment properties B 14 1,536,990 1,491,150
Right-of-use assets FRAEEE 15 15,138 22,689
Intangibles mILEE 16 = 2,083
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 B E Ah 2 E Uz 51 BF
comprehensive income JEREE 18 5,650 8,650
Deposit paid [RENEE & 21 4,171 -
Pledged deposits EHERER 22 5,500 5,500
Deferred tax assets BERIEEE 25 38,275 20,375
1,662,058 1,589,307
Current assets REEE
Properties held under development GRS 19 1,021,217 1,720,798
Properties held for sale FEME 20 765,333 237,021
Prepayments and other receivables FEAT BRI B H A B IR TR 21 572,182 761,625
Tax recoverable AR EIHIR - 1,909
Contract cost assets BHRKAEE 6 5,049 25,099
Pledged deposits EHEAER 22 48,773 54,930
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTA R 22 184,415 434,572
2,596,969 3,235,954
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable FETBR R 23 15,994 59,829
Accruals and other payables FE AT FRIE N E b B A SR8 23 239,711 211,149
Contract liabilities BRBE 6 929,002 1,724,458
Lease liabilities HEAE 29 9,598 5,334
Provision for tax MR 323,306 237,766
Bank loans RITERK 24 68,450 66,900
1,586,061 2,305,436
Net current assets RBEEFE 1,010,908 930,518
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 2,672,966 2,519,825
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R E BRI &

As at 31 March 2024 R=F—F=H=+—H

2024 2023
—EomE ZEC-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥T T AREFT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank loans IRITER 24 463,500 388,500
Lease liabilities HEBE 29 79,707 19,503
Deferred tax liabilities RLERIBEE 25 119,421 131,474
662,628 539,477
Net assets FEE 2,010,338 1,980,348
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the AREEE AELER
Company
Share capital A& A 26 20,735 20,735
Reserves e 27 1,713,137 1,662,099
1,733,872 1,682,834
Non-controlling interests EERER 276,466 297,514
Total equity ERBE 2,010,338 1,980,348
These consolidated financial statements on page 132 to &R E 13252378 2 BBHRERERZZE_WF A

237 were approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 26 June 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

“HAHEESTSMERKRETER  UHUTEFARE

=

Wong Lam Ping

Wong Lui

SEMROK
Director
S

xE
Director

EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEREDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 B E = F —NF=A=+—HIFFZ

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company
LN PN 5

Fair value
through other Property Non-
Share Share Statutory ~ comprehensive  revaluation  Exchange Retained controling Total
capial premium’ reserve”  income reserve” TESeve eserve” profts* Total inferests equity
BARER
AhzEhE %
’E ROEE  EERE SERE  EfEE  EXER DA B HERER  EafS
AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000 AWB000
NEETT  ARETT  NEETR NEETT  ARETT  AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFT  ARETR
Note27)  (Note 277f)) Note 271)) - (Note 27)
(Wstemy)  (Wzong) (Wromy) (W)
A1 Aprl 2022 R-5-"%#MA-A 20,735 565,212 137,845 (15,857) 58,600 (11,295) 963,808 1,708,948 305,128 2,014,076
Transaction with owners EEEAIRS
Diidend paid to owners of the Company BRERTREALRE - - - - - - (82,248 (42,248) - (42,248)
Proffoss) for the year EnEH/ (B8 - - - - - - 18593 18593 1614 10979
Chenges in fair value of equity instruments at far -~ 24 BN LB 2ENETIE
value through other comprehensive income CRETEZ DA ERY - - - (4500) - - - (4.500) - (4500)
Exchange diferences on ransiaion of fnenciel ~~ ABNEREBRR 2
statements of foreign operations EfZE - - - - - 2041 - 2041 - 204
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENEES - - - (4,500) - 2041 18,593 16,134 (7614) 8520
Transfer to statutory reserves BRELTHE - - 5,064 - - - (5,064) - - -
At 31 March 2023 H-§2z§2f=1-8 TSN 100 QB B0 054 WE09 16E% WS4 198038
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEDBER

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

KAAERAERRR
Fair value
through other Property Non-
Share Share Statutory ~ comprehensive  revaluation  Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium* reserve*  income reserve* reserve reserve* profits* Total interests equity
RAAER
EhdAE I
Bx  REEE  ieRE TERE  ERRE EXGE  EFER B FERRE  RaEE
RMBOOO  RMBUOWO  RMBUNO RMBOOO  RMBUWO  RMBUWO  RMBUWO  RMBUWO  RMBUWO  RMBUON
ABRTE  ARBTR  AREFR ARRBTE  ARETZ  AREFE ARBFE ARETR AREFL AREFE
(Note27))  (Note 271 (Note 27(ii)) - (Note 27(iy)
(e (htn) (Hitertiy) — (Htnt)
At 1 Aprl 2023 WZFZZEMA-A 20,135 565,212 142909 (20357) 58,500 (9,254) 925080 1,662,634 07514 1980348
Proftoss)for the year Fmit/ (E8) = = = > > = 52453 52453 (21,048) 31405
Changes in fa value ofequity nstuments at farvalue (24 ERERAERETIE
{hvough other comprehensive income (REIEZDAERD = - = (3,000) - - - (3,000) - (3000)
Bxchenge differences on translation of financial i
statements of foreign operations - - - - - 1,585 - 1,585 - 1,585
Total comprehensive incone for the year - - - (3,000 - 1,585 52453 51,038 (21,049) 29,090
Transfer to siatutory resenies - - 1,255 - - - (1,255) - - -
At 31 March 2024 W-Z-MEZA=1-8 20,13 565,212 144,164 (23,357) 58,500 (7,669) 976,87 1733872 216466 2010338
* The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1,713,137,000  * HERBEBEHEARE1,713,137,000t (ZZE==F : AR

in surplus is included as reserves in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2024

(2023:RMB1,662,099,000).

#1,662,099,000) st A—E - NE=A=+—H2HEAH%

RREKZ FHEA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n'lfgfigiggilnbigii%%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

2024 2023
“ENEF =%
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AR¥TFT AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEERERE
Profit before income tax B P45 75 A1 A 144,759 33,300
Adjustments for: HTHIIEEELFAE -
Interest income FEMA 6 (3,524) (3,669)
Interest expense MEFX 7 11,461 762
Amortisation of intangibles mIEEEE 8 233 466
Depreciation of property, plant and W - BELEETE
equipment 8 12,325 10,921
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENES 8 3,953 8,816
Written off of property, plant and equipment 5% % ~ = K& & 8 = 73
Written down of properties held for sales MU E ¥ 8 18,815 -
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BELRREBREBSE
equipment 6 - 4,423
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FRAEEERERE 6 = 5,000
Impairment loss on intangibles B EERMERE 6 = 577
Loss on written off of intangibles MEH B & E 2 B8 6 1,850 -
Loss allowance on deposit paid and other B &4 K H ih fE UL B 7 85
receivables BREE 8 10,250 5,448
Net fair value loss/(gain) on investment BEMEREZ N E/BE
properties sale (Wzs) 558 6 29,259 (18,702)
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary 1R {EHE — KB A R 2 Uz 6 = (13,551)
Operating profit before working capital LBEASEIA 2 LE RN
changes 229,381 33,864
Decrease/(increase) in properties held FERMEREENERL
under development and properties held (38 hn)
for sale 175,649 (273,160)
Decrease/(increase) in deposits paid, and ~ BEf1&Z < RIBM B R HAL
prepayments and other receivables e IE R A, (35 00) 176,364 (89,191)
Decrease/(increase) in contract cost assets & KIBAE &/, (& 40) 20,050 (17,743)
Decrease/(increase) in restricted bank SR EIRITASR A (8 I)
balances 238,778 (137,459)
(Decrease)/increase in accounts payable  JEFTBEFX CRiA) 18N (43,835) 29,932
(Decrease)/increase in accruals, other FESTFRIA - HfhFEAFRIA K
payables and contract liabilities AHBEECRD), (766,894) 659,002
Cash generated from operations KEFTEAIR S 29,493 205,245
Interest received B U B 3,524 3,669
Income tax paid B PTEH (55,858) (85,792)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WETEN ) HEEHE
operating activities JFEE (22,841) 123,122
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
wh 3 IE%/}ILE%

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z - F—

“HFE=RA=1+—HIFE

2024 2023
—EomE ZEC-=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
BtaF AE¥FT AREFT
Cash flows from investing activities RETHEERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BB E Y% - BE & RE (15,222) (7,879)
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIEHE—HEHE QR = (17,767)
Additions of pledged deposits Mg TR (568) (24,542)
Withdrawals of pledged deposits REE TR 6,725 17,630
Net cash used in investing activities KE TS 2 F5E (9,065) (32,558)
Cash flows from financing activities BETHEERESRE
Dividend paid to owners of the Company B &R a#EAE A2 E 35(b) = (42,248)
Proceeds from new bank loans FRITESRBRIA 35(b) 120,000 280,000
Repayments of bank loans BEIRITEK 35(b) (43,450) (290,590)
Repayments of principal portion of lease BEHEEAE ARSI
liabilities 35(b) (21,610) (12,046)
Interest paid EAHLE 35(b) (34,656) (22,313)
Net cash generated from/(used in) financing &t & Z&NFTE L~ (FTH)#E 2
activities JHEE 20,284 (87,197)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReRRSEBYRD),
cash equivalents B hnEEE (11,622) 3,367
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net R &8T5 243 2,041
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of £ ##H& RKIREZEY)
the year 99,603 94,195
Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRESRRESEEY
the year 22 88,224 99,603
Analysis of the balances of cashand BRENBESEEYEHIIT -
cash equivalents:
Cash and bank balances B& MIRTTA 184,415 434,572
Less: restricted bank balances A ZIRBRITEE R (96,191) (334,969)
88,224 99,603
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 17.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 132 to
237 have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs
which collectively includes all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”)
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
and statement of financial position of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2024 were approved for
issue by the board of directors (the “Board”) on 26
June 2024.

—REHR
EEEREEERAR(EAAT IR _E——F—H
AERBEERE-NN\—FRaEEAFEETMK
VRAERERBRETAT c ARAGEMEEAR
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11,
Bermudalt R A R]z E EEE M BN H B JLEEAL
T S SRR 837395 AL P 2 R BEE 1215 o

ARBZEBEBAREZER - XRARMBARZ
EREBENMET

HNE1R2EEF7E 2 REVBRREBERS
AR ((BEEAEHTA])EHRZEEMIEHRE
R (BIEMEEAZEBUBHRELED FHDET
ER(EBETERDERBE)MBE - RV B®R
ENBREEERAMEIREEHEXIMER AR
FBE LR EHRAD ZEBEERT -

BE_ZT_MF=-A=+—HLFEZAKERS
MBEBRRRARBDMBRARCR T _MOF A
“tHARARERES(EEEDIETIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has adopted, for the first
time, the following new or amended standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new or
amended HKFRSs”) issued by the HKICPA which
are relevant to the Group’s operations and effective
for its consolidated financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2023.
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
Related Amendments
Amendments to HKAS  Disclosure of Accounting
1 and HKFRS Practice  Policies
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting

Estimates
Amendments to Deferred Tax related to
HKAS 12 Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction
Amendments to International Tax Reform —
HKAS 12 Pillar Two Model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments
to HKAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Making
Materiality Judgements)

The HKICPA issued HKFRS Practice Statement 2
— Making Materiality Judgements in March 2021
to provide entities with non-mandatory guidance
on how to make materiality judgements when
preparing their general purpose financial statements
in accordance with HKFRS. In April 2021, the
HKICPA issued amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS
Practice Statement 2. The amendments aim to make
accounting policy disclosures more informative by
replacing the requirement to disclose ‘significant
accounting polices’ with ‘material accounting policy
information’. The amendments also provide guidance
under what circumstance, the accounting policy
information is likely to be considered material and
therefore requiring disclosure.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

aitE%E

RAFE  AEEEREMUATHEBSHOAE
FEmEAREEEHBEYN _FT_=FM0A—H
Fia 2 FERREZ ARV BRMRER T LB
FIER (ERTAR K R E (AT REBTEBUBRE
R -

BERAMBREERETR RRAORAEBER

BRI EANSIRRERE STHREE
PHRELNEH RS
F2R(BFTAK)

BAGRERE8H SRR ZER
(BRI )

EAGREE 125 HE-RFELZEERAR
(BRTA) FEREIE IR

BB ERE 125 RMIE - R
CHES HRA

B BEZRE(FRETEREIS - BEHER2
2IUREBMBREENEELEE2R -HEE
PEAE H H B S 7T 45)

R-ZBE-_—F=F BFEGHMLSEMTEEY
BREEJNEHASHE2N - REBEEELHEG - &
ERERBEAMBREENFEBE RV B HRERE
AR B 2 M H B ER R OF SR B RS - M-
—FMA - BEGIEASEMT HEGFHEFE
HRBBUBREENEH RS EIRZER] - ZF
EAEENKBIEZGRRER DR KEETZE
SRTBRIZAE  KMBEHRERERNOEHABERRE
BEM ZFER TS BRRERAERERE
2MATHEZBERREMHES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments
to HKAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
and HKFRS Practice Statement 2 — Making
Materiality Judgements) (Continued)

These amendments have no effect on the
measurement or presentation of any items in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group but
affect the disclosure of accounting policies of the
Group.

The adoption of other new or amended HKFRSs
and HKAS did not have any material impact on the
Group’s results and financial position for the current or
prior period. The Group has not early applied any new
or amended HKFRSs that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.

The following amended HKFRSs which are potentially
relevant to the Group’s consolidated financial
statements have been issued but are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group:

Amendments to HKFRS  Sale or Contribution of
10 and HKAS 28 Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture®
Amendments to HKFRS Lease Liability in a Sale and
16 Leaseback!
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-
current’
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants'
Amendments to HKAS 7 Supplier Finance
and HKFRS 7 Arrangements'

Amendments to HKAS  Lack of Exchangeability?
21

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2025
N No mandatory effective date yet determined but available

for adoption

The Group is in the process of making an assessment
of what the impact of these amendments is expected
to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has concluded that the application of these
amendments will have no material impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

-2 360

B BEZRE(FRETEREIS - BEHER2
2IURBEBMBREENEELEE2R -HEER
HE4E ) R 8 5T 2S) ()

ZEEUBBAEEGEMBRRAERMBEED
AERZIELTE  WEFEAKEIITHRRE

Ego

RAREMHTREETEAMBREENREALE
AHERIYESARERARESEEBENEE R
MBERARELETFNEATE - AEELERFEN
TR A HIRE AR E R G BT B A
B E LR -

NTEARERAVBRREEHBIEETER
PHRESHEASKERMEFRRER  BAEEL &
RERERM

EEUBESAAUF0R RALRABEADAAEE
REBEENESY  HIMHETEAEE
CoES

BRWHREER ERELORZHNEE
F165% (BRT &) BE

ARG EFIR KEESBAREHIE
(ERTA) mEy

ARG EAFIR MR IERE AIE

CiES)
EEEHANETHRE  AEARERY
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION

The accounting policy information adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated. The adoption of new or amended
HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements, if any, are disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis, except
for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVOCI”) which are stated at fair values. The
measurement bases are fully described in the
accounting policies below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgement of current
events and actions, actual results may ultimately
differ from those estimates. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity,
or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (the “Group”). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group
companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of impairment on the asset transferred,
in which case the loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

EXEHBEEN

BB A BT MR RN 2 & 3 B AR R T
X o BIESEER - BARZRAD E HERRA
AEZFIERE « RBH TR ERI HRE %
AR HH AR EGA M REZHE WA R
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3.1 mEEAE
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BEHRAREIER - I EEEFAR T X EET
R ©
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EEEREEARAT - 2023/24 =5 143



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued)

3.3

The carrying amount of the Group’s interests
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to the owners of
the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control of
the subsidiary are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the
Group’s interests and the non-controlling
interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any
difference between the amount by which the
non-controlling interests are adjusted and the
fair value of the consideration paid or received
is recognised directly in equity and attributed to
the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the gain or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between (i) the aggregate of the
fair value of the consideration received and the
fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the
previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. Amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
on the same basis as would be required if the
relevant assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is also the functional
currency of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

In the individual financial statements of
the consolidated entities, foreign currency
transactions are translated into the functional
currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange
rates ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the reporting date
retranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation currency,
have been converted into RMB. Assets and
liabilities have been translated into RMB at the
closing rates at the reporting date. Income and
expenses have been converted into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates, or at the average rates over the reporting
period provided that the exchange rates do not
fluctuate significantly. Any differences arising
from this procedure have been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in the translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from equity
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EXEBIBEKRER(E)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3.4 Revenue recognition 3.4 WARER

BEPANBARNEmERE ZEHIREREP
BiER  HeBRRBRAKERMARBZEE

Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is

transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those
goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes
and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

For revenue from sale of properties and pre-
completion contracts for the sale of development
properties in the ordinary course of business,
customers obtain control of the properties when
the properties are delivered to and have been
accepted. Revenue is thus recognised when the
customers accept the properties. There is no
other goods or services agreed to be provided
in the contract and in practice. There is generally
only one performance obligation. Payments are
usually received in advance and recognised
as contract liabilities. Costs such as sales
commission directly attributable for obtaining a
pre-sale property contract, if recoverable, are
capitalised and recorded in contract cost assets.

Chemistry, manufacturing and control (“CMC”)
related services income is recognised when the
services are provided.

Revenue from the rendering of dental services
is recognised when the services have been
rendered given that such dental services are
generally completed within a short period of
time.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss in equal
instalments over the periods covered by the
lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EBEASTBEREHGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.5 Property, plant and equipment 35 Y% BWEKRE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. The cost of an asset comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to the working
condition and location for its intended use.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. All other
costs, such as repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%
Leasehold improvement 25.0% or over the

lease terms,

whichever is shorter

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount is
higher than the asset’s estimated recoverable
amount.

Fully depreciated property, plant and equipment
are retained in the consolidated financial
statements until they are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.6

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for future
use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external professional
valuers with sufficient experience with respect
to both the location and the nature of the
investment properties. The carrying amounts
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position reflect the prevailing market
conditions at the reporting date.

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development and properties held for sale to
investment properties that is carried at fair value,
any difference between fair value of the property
at that date and its previous carrying amount
is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.7

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment, intangibles, right-of-use assets,
and investments in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer
exists or may have decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use) of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately.

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset or cash-generating unit (“CGU”),
discounted to their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU.

A CGU is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets. A CGU is
tested for impairment annually, by comparing
its carrying amount with its recoverable amount,
and whenever there is an indication that the unit
may be impaired.

When the recoverable amount of the CGU is
less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated to the assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount to each asset in the unit. However, the
loss allocated to each asset will not reduce the
individual asset’s carrying amount to below its
fair value less cost of disposal (if measurable) or
its value in use (if determinable), whichever is the
higher.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.8 Leases

The Group as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices
exist for an entity to choose not to capitalise
(i) leases which are short-term leases; and/or
(ii) leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date gave a lease term less
than 12 months. The lease payments associated
with those leases have been expensed on
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made at or
before the commencement date, less any lease
incentives received; (i) any initial direct costs
incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an estimate of
costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, unless those costs are incurred
to produce inventories. Except for right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-of-use
asset at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability. For right-of-use
asset that meets the definition of an investment
property, they are carried at fair value and for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of
land and buildings held for own use, they are
carried at depreciated cost.

The Group accounts for land and buildings
that are held for rental or capital appreciation
purpose under HKAS 40 at fair value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.8 Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
are considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable;
(i) variable lease payments that depend on an
index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at commencement date; (i) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price
of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and (v) payments
of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the
Group measures the lease liability by:

(i) increasing the carrying amount to reflect
interest on the lease liability;

(i) reducing the carrying amount to reflect the
lease payments made; and

(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modification, or
to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease
payments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EABTHEERGE)
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3.8 Leases (Continued) 3.8 HEE)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREAEA (E)
Lease liability (Continued) HEEBEE)

When the Group revises its estimate of the term
of any lease, it adjusts the carrying amount of
the lease liability to reflect the payments to make
over the revised term, which are discounted
using a revised discount rate. An equivalent
adjustment is made to the carrying value of the
right-of-use asset, with the revised carrying
amount being amortised over the remaining
lease term.

When the Group renegotiates the contractual
terms of a lease with the lessor, where the
renegotiated increases the scope of the lease,
the lease liability is remeasured using the
discount rate applicable on the modification
date, with the right-of-use asset being adjusted
by the same amount.

If the renegotiation results in a decrease in the
scope of the lease, both the carrying amount
of the lease liability and right-of-use asset are
reduced by the same proportion to reflect the
partial or full termination of the lease with any
difference recognised in profit or loss. The
lease liability is then further adjusted to ensure
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its carrying amount reflects the amount of the
renegotiated payments over the renegotiated
term, with the modified lease payments
discounted at the rate applicable on the
modification date and the right-of-use asset is
adjusted by the same amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EABTHEERGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3.8 Leases (Continued) 3.8 HEE)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) KEBEREEA ()
Lease liability (Continued) HEEEE)

Accounting as a lessor

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased assets to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group leases certain of its owned properties
under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated as short-term to third-party and
related companies.

Right-of-use assets for leased properties held
for sub-leases under operating lease meet the
definition of investment properties.

At the date of initial recognition, leased
properties held for sub-leases were assessed
whether the sub-leases classified as an
operating lease or finance lease individually
based on the remaining contractual terms
and conditions of the head lease and the sub-
lease at that date. Right-of-use assets of all
sub-leases that are classified as operating
lease are classified as investment properties
and are measured under the fair value model
in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policies for investment properties.

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised as an expense on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.8 Leases (Continued)

3.9

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)
Accounting as a lessor (Continued)

Any changes in the scope of the consideration
for a lease that was not part of the original terms
and conditions of the lease are accounted for
as lease modifications. The Group accounts for
a modification to an operating lease as a new
lease from the effective date of the modification,
recognising the remaining lease payments
as income on a either a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the remaining
lease term.

Financial Instruments
(i)  Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing
component) is initially measured at
fair value plus, for an item not at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”),
transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue.
A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured
at the transaction price.

Debt instruments

Debt instrument, including deposits paid
and other receivables, pledged deposits
and cash and bank balances that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows
where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are
measured at amortised cost. Financial
assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate
method. Interest income, foreign exchange
gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

@

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income.
This election is made on an investment-
by-investment basis. Equity investments
at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part
of the cost of the investments. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances
for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on
contract cost assets and other financial
assets measured at amortised cost.
The ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which
the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit losses. Credit losses are
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for contract cost assets using
HKFRS 9 simplified approach and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision
matrix that is based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the
ECLs are based on the 12-month
ECLs. However, when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit
risk of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative
information analysis, based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due, unless
the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be default when: (1) the borrower is
unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a
more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset
to be credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset have occurred. Evidence
that a financial asset is credit-impaired
includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the
borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a
default or past due event;

- the restructuring of a loan or
advance by the Group on terms
that the Group would not consider
otherwise;

- it is becoming probable that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of
financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group writes off a financial asset
when there is information indicating that
the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, e.g. when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be
subject to enforcement activities under the
Group’s recovery procedures, taking into
account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in
profit or loss.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on
the amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets, interest income is calculated
based on the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including accounts payable, accruals and
other payables, lease liabilities and bank
loans. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation
process.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter
period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a
loss it incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in
accordance with the original or modified
terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
issue of the financial guarantee contract.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee
contact at the higher of: (i) the amount
of the loss allowance, being the ECL
provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set
out in note 3.9; and (i) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EBEASTBEREHGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.9 Financial Instruments (Continued) 39 £WMIEGE

(vii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in accordance
with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

3.10 Properties held under development

Properties held under development which
are held for future sale are included in current
assets and comprise land held under operating
lease (note 3.8) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value
except for the leasehold land element which is
measured at cost model in accordance with the
accounting policies of right-of-use assets upon
the application of HKFRS 16. Other expenses
included (a) those costs that are incurred in
bringing the properties held under development
to their present location and condition; and (b)
a systematic allocation of fixed overheads that
are incurred on development of properties.
Fixed overheads are indirect costs which remain
relatively constant regardless of the size or
volume of the development.

On completion, the properties are transferred to
properties held for sale. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.10

3.11

3.12

Properties held under development
(Continued)

Properties held under development are classified
as current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed by
the Group, cost is determined by apportionment
of the total development costs for that
development project, attributable to the unsold
properties. The cost of completed properties
held for sale comprises all costs of purchase,
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value except for the
leasehold land element which is measured at
cost model in accordance with the accounting
policies of right-of-use assets upon the
application of HKFRS 16. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less estimated selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred
tax. Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in the profit or loss or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from
ordinary activities adjusted for items that are
non-assessable or disallowable for income tax
purposes and is calculated using tax rates that
have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of reporting period. The amount of
current tax payable or receivable is the best
estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid
or received that reflects any uncertainty related
to income tax.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.12 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities of the Group are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets of the Group are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Deferred
tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate
to the expected manner in which the carrying
amount of the asset or liability is realised
or settled and that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period, and reflects any uncertainty related to
income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income tax levied by the
same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a
net basis.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow
all or part of the assets to be recovered.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax
amounts on these investment properties are
measured using the tax rates that would apply
on sale of these investment properties at their
carrying amounts at the reporting date. The
presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied
in the property over time, rather than through
sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EBEASTBEREHGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.12 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 3.12 FiEBi 2 gt EE ()

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss
except when they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income in which
case the taxes are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or when they relate to
items recognised directly in equity in which case
the taxes are also recognised directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@  the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off the recognised amounts;

(b)  current tax assets and current tax liabilities
are presented in net; and

(c) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities; and

(b)  the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.13

3.14

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank
and in hand, demand deposits with banks and
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, less pledged deposits.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.15

3.16

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the
acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets which require a substantial
period of time to be ready for their intended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY 3. EBEASTBEREHGE
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3.17 Dividends 317 RE

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when EARHRENIRERS LERRAER - B
they are approved by the shareholders in a RAEEE FERRPRBENGEVBBREMTE
general meeting. Proposed final dividends are WiEE - FHRERREZLSIK - Bt -
disclosed in the notes to consolidated financial HRERNERRERNAERAEE -
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously

proposed and declared and consequently,

interim dividends are recognised immediately as

a liability when they are proposed and declared.

3.18 Related parties 3.18 BER

(@ A person or a close member of that @ MWM—RALENIER Bl ALZ
person’s family is related to the Group if AT ZERREBHEAEEGHE
that person:

()  has control or joint control over the ()  EP7ANE B G PR A ok [R5 il
Group;

(i)  has significant influence over the (i) BAEEBEATE %X
Group; or

(i) is a member of key management iy BAEEXARAGRRZEEE

personnel of the Group or the
Company’s parent.

Key management personnel are those
persons having authority and responsibility

EAE -

TEEBABRARNLAREERAH
EMETE - HE LR AKELE AR A

for planning, directing, and controlling the BB AR BEARNEESARAGEM
activities of the Group or the Company, BEE(THmETANITESR) -

directly or indirectly, including any

directors (whether executive or otherwise)

of the Group or the Company.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.18 Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions apply:

U)

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint
venture of the other entity (or an
associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of the
employees of the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

3. EAESFHBERERGE

3.18 BAES ()

(b) 1ﬁ'

)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi

RERTE NIEMA &Y - BIER
BERE

ZEBEASEBER -SEZKE
NGIGIE:SSYNCIRRIIE=PNCSI G ES
B A RIS EAL T A RE) -

D\

i

BAR—HEZHEATL

%E\E =1
é%ﬁ%(&z‘% SEKEREZ
Eﬁ%%@ﬂdﬁ%ﬁ% ms—EeE
REZEBE KB RRA]D °

o

ZEEDAEBREAEEEMHE
A AR BRI TR T B R
Flsta -

RaF#SIALHRERE
éﬁiﬁiﬁ \

ZEBNEMBEEZEMKER
AIRAREESAREFARRMKTT
ZEEABRS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

@iy dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.

EXEHBERER (B

3.18 BIES ()

RE

?&%%H%%’i‘?%%/\i@éx%ﬁ%/\iw 2R
TRRCE - B

|
N
no>-
H
N
fof
S
i
m
El
ﬁ
&
)
%
fh}
kul@
N 2
a3

) ZEBALTZTFRREBHFEFS :

iy MABAALZEBIREFHEZTRZ: K

(i) FMBALTZZBALTZEBIREHA
ZEBAN-

3.19 DI/

A AR T8 B 2 A SR W
BERS REARBES S BLRTLES
KR THRBHBER - BN EESBRE
WAHBER: -

Nom
okr

P

MM BREBNTE - RIFGRADFABEAN
KREFBEEERNMRBIEE - EFIfIE
g BEPRASEAR - BEDHEMKIZHA

B R EREEREZEE T EBEAL TE'J
BEREREEDEHTEEHFAE - HTBER
BERZBEDAFTEZEFEZRE - RIFT
APFETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to the
related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Fair value of investment properties, and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to investment
properties of the Group were stated at fair value in
accordance with the accounting policy. The fair value
of the investment properties is determined by a firm
of independently qualified professional valuer and the
fair values of investment properties as at the reporting
dates, and properties held for sale and property, plant
and equipment upon transfer to investment properties
are set out in note 14. Such valuation was based on
certain assumptions, which are uncertain and might
materially differ from the actual results.

4.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

EREFHEE R

AR RHGEREBEERMEMEAR(BREERR
BRTEREEM 2 G IRTAH) EITRERE -

AEEHARKEL G RERER - MATH 2 EHE
ioBEARE ROUSEHMABEERAERER - B
BT EAYRFREEE;BERAEFHENFER
ZEZRRZ B RERHBET

RENRURBRERENRZGENRZDRE

AEEERERENEZFEVMEIIRBEFTHER
BAREIR - REMEZ AR BREHBILAER
BEXMHEMET  MAREERZREMEANE
BERBENEZGENERDE BERRBZA
REERHE14 - BAGEEDREE TRRE
BT LRI EERARKRERE
8o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of deposits paid and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the collectability
of deposits paid and other receivables by determining
future cash flows. This estimate is based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. A considerable amount of judgement is required
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as
forward-looking estimates. Management will reassess
the provision at the reporting date. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will affect the carrying value of deposits
paid and receivables and thus the impairment loss in
the period in which such estimate is changed.

Net realisable value of properties held for sale
and properties held under development

Management determines the net realisable value of
properties held for sale and properties held under
development by using prevailing market data such
as most recent sale transactions and valuation of the
projects in its existing partially completed state of
construction taking into account cost of work done,
and cost to completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of new
property sales, marketing costs (including price
discounts required to stimulate sales) and the
expected costs of completion of properties, the
legal and regulatory framework and general market
conditions. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
properties held under development and properties
held for sale as at 31 March 2024 were approximately
RMB1,021,217,000 (2023: RMB1,720,798,000)
and RMB765,333,000(2023: RMB237,021,000)
respectively.

4.

EREFHERT R H B (&)

B RS R E i KRR E

AEEZEREEREEARREREF GO HER
& REMEEFRIBZ ATREE - ZEFTIERE R
EHRRREMERE ZBREL - REAEEB
EES RETWRRATEEGFTMIELEZZRR
WEBREFEMR 2B ARER - FERAKEH
o EEENRES ARSENTEEEG - WIBRE
RERRMGAAMTR  FHEZEESFEECNRE
K EWRIE 2 FREE - R AR R E B
HEZREERELTE -

FEMERRBHYEZTERFE

ERERASOIMHEERSFRITMEEBELYER
RERDTKRERER 2EEERRZREX - L&
ZREERIBZRANBEREEIRIRA)E
EREMEMRAETYE AR FE -

WEEEBEZZMO M 2T e 5 - FY
XHEX HEEBA(BREEHEMBERTZE EY
ERT7EFHRA ZEREEEBUNL—KT
T HIBHEEEL HE c AEBERBETWERS
EMER _ZE_NF=A=+—BZ2KEEEDH
LB AREEL1021,217,000C(ZE-=F : ARK
1,720,798,0007T) X A R#765,333,00070( =& =
=4 : AR¥237,021,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, which is
the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and
its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal
calculation is based on available data from binding
sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for
similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value
in use calculation is based on a discounted cash flow
model. The cash flows are derived from the budget
for the next five years and do not include restructuring
activities that the Group is not yet committed to or
significant future investments that will enhance the
performance of the assets of the CGU being tested.
The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount
rate used for the discounted cash flow model as
well as the expected future cash-inflows and the
growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. The
key assumptions used to determine the recoverable
amount for the different CGUs, are disclosed and
further explained in note 16.

Revenue recognition on sale of properties held
for sale

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised at a
point in time when the buyer obtains control of the
completed property; otherwise, revenue is recognised
over time when the Group’s performance do not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.

4.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

EREFHEET R H B (&)

FERMEERE
EEEIRSELEN I RAEBREEATKE S
(BEAAERLERAEEEREBZRKE)R
AFERE - ARERDERATIRERAFRA
ETRAORINBUEERER ST ABEESL
BRI ZTERLEEEZIREXNATE - £
BENVREBHRRREAERLG;E - REREAKR
REFzRETFL B TEEANEE A& E
TREEAD MG RRAARSELEVEER
RZERAKKRE - JRESHEERBERRSRE
A 2 B3R R IA RIBEH R &AL B E
BZREXLRBR - AREETRARSELENM
ZARE R 2 R ERNME16REE— SR
o

HERFENREZBARR

EERERCRIVMEZIEHIER - HEMEKA
REEHER - TR EAKETSREENMAZ
HBAKEME AAERARZEEAARERLZS
ESER B KB D A A SR BT T WA NIEY - WA
BERs RIRERR o

EBERERERAT 0 202324 #5% 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition on sale of properties held
for sale (Continued)

Due to the contractual restrictions with the customer,
the Group shall not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. However, it requires management
to exercise significant judgement to determine
whether there is an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date, which depends on
the terms of sales and purchase agreement and the
interpretation of the applicable laws that apply to
the contract. The Group has obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right
to payment for sales and purchase agreements.
Management uses judgements, based on legal
counsel opinion, to classify sales and purchase
agreements into those with right to payment for
performance completed to date and those without the
right.

The Group believes that its recognition basis of sales
of properties held for sale as set out in note 3.4 is
appropriate and is the current practice in the PRC.

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the amount of the provision of taxation
and the timing of payment of the related taxation.
Where the final tax outcome is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in periods in which such determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation Tax
(“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the implementation
and settlement of this tax varies among various tax
jurisdictions in cities of the PRC, and the Group has
not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
any local tax authorities in the PRC. Accordingly,
significant judgement is required in determining the
amount of the land appreciation and its related LAT.
The Group recognised LAT based on management’s
best estimates according to the understanding of the
tax rules.

4.

EREFHERT R H B (&)
HESFEWE ZBAER (@)

HREZEPZAMRE  NREBNSERHERY
FEMN NEMESURE  ALZWESLSH
AEEMELEGKAE - A EEERERE
RHABAEEREARFANTEAN SIS E K
FEHIER D 2 A 5K - Tt JSBURT B B 19 16 5k B
ARZARNZEZRRE EHNEEWERTAH
SREIBMITRNKWEGIR - AKRECESERBRRE
R-ENERERER  EEEERHERBERD
FOBERBREIECSETKBEOMBY 2 KK E
REWER S R -

AEERRMESAMB Z HEGEMXEREER
HE - WRHETREEAER -

B HA R 1R R R AE R TR A 5T

AEEEGNTRBEER ZTIE - EEHAHEB
ZE BB AR IR EREAELERHE -
HMEEBRBEERTIARRCERTE - BREZERK
SEE RS EEHRMENMECHBREESE

By 48R
o

AEEEHNTE L RER(LHBER]) - R
e PESHT ARARKEERSZHRBZATR
REEAEMR - MK E =R B BT A 5 B S
REEELHBRERZAERNFKITE - Hit - &
FE iR (ERE & B ARRE H i E N R A EE R H
i - AEEREBEEEEREHBRERANZIERBEL
ZEREMGE  ERLIMIBER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and
is identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors considered the segment from a business
perspective, including sale and leasing of properties
(“Property Development”) and other businesses
(mainly including investment and operation in CMC
process and medical service sector) (“Others”). The
Group’s executive directors assess the performance
of the operating segments based on the measure of
segment result.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

DEER

EEDHRNEAEETRPRIMAREEEH
CEEERHIASEAKT S ARBREBRET
HITEETHFESTHERNNETERSELRD
RAFHZABEREZRERNETEES I - BLFT
2IFEEME  WTEZEREBAEEES L &
EYENEERAE(WERR D REMER(EE
BIECMCHERIEREERBGITEMNREREE)([H
fo]) o REBMEMITEEINAD BES ABETHLE
D EBEYFRIR o

)

Property
Development Others Total
L E ek Hith &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARMTF T ARMTF T
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z_-_NF
ZA=+—BHLHFE
Segment revenue 2EUA 878,902 12,755 891,657
Revenue from external RENBEFZHBA
customers 878,902 12,755 891,657
Segment profit/(loss) DEIRF,(EE) 200,263 (46,952) 153,311
Less: S
Unallocated expenses* RO ER (8,552)
Profit before income tax R it 48 B¢ Alg R 144,759
Income tax expense Fri8 R 2 (113,354)
Profit for the year F @A 31,405
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERGE)
Property
Development Others Total
VIR Hth &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFr AR®TFT ARETFT
At 31 March 2024 R-ZE-MF
=A=+-—H
Segment assets DEEE 4,155,527 102,540 4,258,067
Other corporate assets HMbEERE 960
Total assets wEE 4,259,027
Segment liabilities DEBEE (2,213,954) (34,675) (2,248,629)
Other corporate liabilities HMtEaE (60)
Total liabilities FES =R (2,248,689)
Other segment information: Hith o5 HER :
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-—Z-mF
ZA=t+—HLHFE
Amortisation of Intangibles EREERH - (233) (233)
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - = LR EITE
equipment (4,409) (7,916) (12,325)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FHEEETE = (3,953) (3,953)
Loss on written off of intangibles WiEEE EERE - (1,850) (1,850)
Loss allowance on deposits paid 2 12& K& H it fE UL 08
and other receivables ZIESEEE (9,270) (980) (10,250)
Interest income FE WA 3,224 300 3,524
Interest expenses FERX (8,366) (3,095) (11,461)
Net fair value change of investment 1% & ¥ 2 A B
properties FER (29,259) = (29,259)
Written down of properties held for  #UR 1T & ¥ 3%
sales (18,815) - (18,815)
Capital expenditure on property, W - BRERE#EZ
plant and equipment BARRX (8,503) (6,719) (15,222)
Addition of Investment properties IR EWERE 75,099 - 75,099
Addition of right-of-use assets FREEERNE = 10,979 10,979
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) EBE R ()
Property
Development Others Total
LEdEk Efh =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT ARETT
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-—ZT—-=
ZA=+—BHLEE
Segment revenue 2 EBUL A 231,076 16,384 247,460
Revenue from external REMBEEZWA
customers 231,076 16,384 247,460
Segment profit/(loss) from REREEH 2
operating activities AEREF,(EE) 82,650 (41,159) 41,491
Less: DA
Unallocated expenses* RoBc&A* (8,191)
Profit before income tax R BT 48 B¢ Alg 33,300
Income tax expense FrisfiF < (22,321)
Profit for the year FREF 10,979
At 31 March 2023 R=B=-Z=F
=A=+-—H
Segment assets DEAE 4,761,122 63,136 4,824,258
Other corporate assets HhxEE 1,003
Total assets HWEE 4,825,261
Segment liabilities DEEE (2,817,562) (27,287) (2,844,849)
Other corporate liabilities HmbEaE (64)
Total liabilities wEeE (2,844,913)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

5.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5. DEERGE)
Property
Development Others Total
L E ks HAtb =X
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFIT AREFT AEET T
Other segment information: ﬁﬂﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁ*‘?} :
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-Z—-=
=A= 'i' HIEFE
Amortisation of intangibles m A EEH - (466) (466)
Depreciation of property, plant and  #1% - & E MR EITE
equipment 4,777) (6,144) (10,921)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FREEETE - (8,816) (8,816)
Impairment loss on property, plant  #1% - BE MR ERE
and equipment &8 - (4,423) (4,423)
Impairment loss on intangibles | EERERBE - (577) (877)
Impairment loss on right-of-use EREEEREBE
assets - (5,000) (5,000)
Loss allowance on deposits paid 212 & K& H it EUL X
and other receivables 2 EBERE (5,000) (448) (5,448)
Interest income FE WA 3,667 2 3,669
Interest expenses FERX - (762) (762)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HERBAR Z W 13,551 - 13,551
Net fair value change of investment & &Y% 2 AR EE
properties FER 18,702 - 18,702
Capital expenditure on property, Y - BEREHEZER
plant and equipment Fi 2 (5,943) (1,936) (7,879)
Addition of right-of-use assets FREEERE - 20,642 20,642

*

The unallocated expenses mainly consist of staff costs,
directors’ emoluments and exchange difference.

The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location of the
asset, in the case of property, plant and equipment,
the location of the operation. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, the majority of the Group’s
operation and centre of management are sourced
from its subsidiaries in the PRC, which considered
that the operation base of the Group is domiciled in
the PRC, as there is only one geographical location
and therefore, no analysis of geographical information
is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed
in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 March 2024 and 2023.

: APEERIBZRBEEINAE EXMERELERE -

BEFRRDEEMEMBME DAZEETRME
SRERE - HRYR - BB MR BRI EE 2
EEAEE - ARBEERR  AEEXRZHE
ENEERLHFRAERPTEMBAR - R R/AN
SEzZBEMUNTE Ao RE—1E:
It 8 2 5130 3B B R AT

SNBEE 2 AR EERERE o WA BB
ST6H -

é:: Ei&:%:z¢5ﬂ5+—
BB RAEE10%IA EWA ©

Bk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA  HtmAURHMBKERER

GAINS AND LOSSES

The Group’s revenue, other income and other gains

AREEAEE 2N - EMEA AR E AU s &

and losses recognised during the year are as follows: BT
2024 2023
—EolmEF B
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARTFT ARMFT
Revenue from contracts with customers RIBBE B KR ELERE155
under HKFRS 15 REEFEHZWA
Sales of properties held for sale HESEME 831,784 181,482
CMC related service income CMCHEE AR 7SI A 1,663 9,400
Dental service income M 2B R s A 11,092 6,984
844,539 197,866
Revenue from other source REEMKFEZHWA
Rental income He WA 47,118 49,594
891,657 247,460
Timing of revenue recognition under HKFRS 15 iRIEF B M IR & X B FE155%
WA Z B
Goods or services transferred at a point in time 1A 55 ZhEE 72 2 &V sk RIS 833,447 190,882
Service transferred over time RERS 872 2 AR TS 11,092 6,984
844,539 197,866
Other income and other gains and losses, Hftlg A U R HEttkHE R EE
net FEE
Exchange gain, net P 5 Y F 58 - 471
Government grants* T & B 881 950
Impairment loss on property, plant and W - BEREERESRE
equipment (note 13) (Mta#13) - (4,423)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEEREBEREE = (5,000)
Impairment loss on intangibles (note 16) \mREEREBEZ16) = (577)
Written off of intangibles (note 16) WMismE EE (Hat16) (1,850) -
Interest income L2 U A
— from bank deposits - RERITFER 3,524 3,669
Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary BIEHE—MHB AR 2 WS
(note 31) (H17E31) = 13,551
Net fair value (loss)/gain on investment properties & & ¥ 2 A1 E(E1E)
(note 14) W FRR (it 14) (29,259) 18,702
Sundry income HMIBWA 1,460 496
(25,244) 27,839

. AEED WHCRE P EABBTREZ BETREED
AXFRETTRNDREE -

The Group received unconditional discretionary grants
from the relevant government authorities in the PRC in
support of enterprise operating in specific industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table provides information about
contract cost assets from contracts with customers.

WA - E A BA R B At i 28 e 85 18 ()

TREREEFANZEHNRAEERH 2ER -

2024 2023

—EMF —FEZ=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FoT ARBFT

Contract cost assets BHIKAEE 5,049 25,099

Contract cost assets mainly related to the incremental
cost for the sales of properties.

Contract costs capitalised related to the incremental
sales commissions paid to property agents whose
selling activities resulted in customers entering into
sale and purchase agreements for the Group’s
properties which were still under construction at the
reporting date. Contract costs will be recognised
as part of “selling and distribution expenses” in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
the period in which revenue from the related property
sales is recognised. During the year, contract cost
assets as at 31 March 2023 of RMB20,050,000 (31
March 2022: RMB450,000) was recognised in selling
and distribution expenses. There was no impairment
in relation to the costs capitalised during the year
ended 31 March 2024 and 2023.

The following table provides information about
contract liabilities from contracts with customers.

BHRAEETEEYEHE ZIREKNAER -

BREEHNRAEBST R TFHERBZEEHERS
B MEREBECHEZTHERELPBEAEERTR
SHEBMNERCYMETLEEHE KA KR
ﬁ EEMEHEERABRBERGE2ERERE
REHERDHERIZ—85 - REAFE - HE
:g:zi:ﬂ:+ AZAaHRAEEARE
20,050,000t (ZE-—F=/F=+—H : AR%E
450,00070) R AHELDHEER - #HE-_ZT 11
FNZFTZ_F=-A=+—HLFE HMEEHEE
AL AN 2 FME o

2024 2023

—EmEF —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFTr

Contract liabilities AHEE 929,002 1,724,458

Contract liabilities mainly related to the deposits
received from customers for sales of properties.

BHEAETEHENEEMERETRPRR ZEESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER 6. WA HAUREMYEREE(E)
GAINS AND LOSSES (CONTINUED)
Contract liabilities of approximately RMB872,105,000 RZZEZ=Z=F=ZA=+—H aRBBEHARK
as of 31 March 2023 (31 March 2022: 872,105,000(ZFE==F=A=+—H : ARH
RMB144,734,000) were recognised as revenue during 144,734,0000) R AF AR AT F BRI E 2 I
the year from acceptance of properties by customers A MRZEZNFR - =F=A=+—HZ
and the contract liabilities as at 31 March 2024 and EHBERBRARPIE 2 BIWMAE -
2023 were arising from the advance considerations
received from customers.
As at 31 March 2024, contract liabilities or the RZEZMNF=A=+—H AHEEXRER
aggregated amount of the deposits received from SERBENRBRTRATFRIM ZE2BEY
the remaining performance obligations under the BARMQ929,002,000 (=T =F : AR¥
Group’s existing contracts was approximately 1,724,458,0007T) ° Lt & REIETEH A BT P BRI
RMB929,002,000 (2023: RMB1,724,458,000). FERF R CIA o AEEGH A& FEFTRARK12
This amount represents revenue expected to be BABE)(ZZE==F : 248 A) BRIEHUA -
recognised in the future from acceptance of properties
by customers. The Group will recognise the expected
revenue in future, which is expected to occur in the
next 12 months (2023: 24 months).
FINANCE COSTS 7. ®MERE
2024 2023
—E_ME —EC=HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFT
Interest charges on financial liabilities REBHEEATERz2EMEBE
stated at amortised cost: ZREME
Bank loans RITERK 31,164 21,551
Lease liabilities HE&E 3,492 762
34,656 22,313
Less: amount capitalised in properties held B BWERMEERFEF
under development M TR (23,195) (21,551)
11,461 762

The weighted average capitalisation rate of borrowings
was 6.3% (2023: 4.7%) per annum for the year.

FR - EBEZINEFHEREEAETFE3%(ZEZ
=EAT%) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. FRFTBBIAIEF

2024 2023
—E-E —ZEC=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Profit before income tax is arrived B BT84 Al A1) Ty 68408k
at charging/(crediting): Gt A AT S IBBEZES :
Auditor’s remuneration ZE A B & 1,042 997
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense R ABRANTFTEXAABIE
including following expenses: INTEM:
— Cost of properties held for sale sold - HERFEMERE 546,907 122,822
— Written down of properties held for sale — S EWEMOR 18,815 -
Amortisation of intangibles (note 16) B EEHIEMWHZ16) 233 466
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% - W= &R EITE
(note 13(b)) (K155 13(b)) 12,325 10,921
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 15) FRAEEENEWH15) 3,953 8,816
Loss allowance on deposits paid and other BfTiee REAERGRIE 2
receivables EEEE 10,250 5,448
Written off of property, plant and equipment MW ME - BEREE - 73
Short-term lease expenses HHHEERY 422 134
Outgoings in respect of investment properties ~ HEFEREAE S WA Z
that generated rental income during the year REMEBB X 5,651 2,425
Employee costs, including Directors’ EERA(BEZEEHE)
emoluments (note 12) (Mtat12)
— Wages and salaries -ITENRES® 45,033 43,650
- Retirement benefit scheme contributions — —RIREHIET AR -
defined contribution plans TE R G B 2,667 4,019
Less: amount capitalised in properties held W BWEREERFES
under development L E (2,117) (5,354)
45,583 42,315
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FifB5FmX
2024 2023
—E-NE TR
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR FT
Current tax - the PRC ENHAREE -
Current year AFEE
- Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) - EMEHR(RERESH]) 60,561 10,347
- LAT - T HhIR(EF 82,746 3,258
143,307 13,605
Deferred income tax (note 25) IEFEFT S8 (f7#25) (29,953) 8,716
Total income tax expense FriEiB X %E 113,354 22,321

CEMGHRDIMETELE ZMB QR 2t ER

EIT has been provided on the estimated assessable
profits of subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25%
(2023: 25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2023: 5%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred
upon transfer of property ownership. There are
certain exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

Bl F1E25% (2T = =4 : 25%) fE L B4 -

BIEPESEMERE - HINSIREERFINGE
TEMEEZ MNP RZBEHMKRSEEBNAAE
Bl AEBMBRAZEINMEHRME AR (ZTE==
& 5%) e

THIEEREZ T HERIIEENAREREI0%E
60% =M - L EE ZIBEREEYERFRIER
AHRFAY - BRI ERERAN - FERAE - &
EBEMENERRAX - BANMERARER
REL - HE-REEMEAESTHL - HEEE
B ABB R IR B (EE BT BB R B8
20% - HERMEMELBERESHBAHRS -
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e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on
the first Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$”) HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million (2023: 16.5% on the first HK$2 million of the
estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million).
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising in
or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

Reconciliation between income tax expense and
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:

P8 X (5])

HAERF RNz a2aE8B t((BxT])A8.25%:t
BEEBANGH > M2E BB TN EW G ERFRER
LA16.5%T EBABFGH(ZE =4 : B2AEATT
et ERRFHEFIA16.5% i K2 E BB T A Efbst
R T A 16.5%5T ) o AR AN B R Z M EF
ERYEEESEERESTMGFERES -
WA EEH BB RIS HRE -

REAREGEMGHRAXEG RN 2 HEN
T

2024 2023
—EomEF —E=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TF T ARMFIT
Profit before income tax B P15 15 A1 A 144,759 33,300
Tax on profit before income tax, calculated at B ET 1S B A FIBIR
the rates applicable to profit in the jurisdiction BEBRERERRN 2
concerned HRAMEE 36,190 8,325
Tax effect of non-taxable income BARBBAZHIBTE (1,101) (1,731)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses TR 2 & 14,721 8,631
Provision of LAT for the year FALHIBER S 82,746 3,258
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable FE T IR ER 2 R EPIEH
ZBIERE (20,686) (815)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMIBE B HIERE 1,484 4,653
Income tax expense Fris%ipa s 113,354 22 321
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

DIVIDENDS 10. ®RE
2024 2023
—E-E —ZEC=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE¥FT AREFT
Final dividend paid in respect of prior year at mE—FEEEREBERA
HK$0.01 per ordinary share 0.01 BT 2 KERK & = 42,248

On 28 June 2022, the directors proposed a final
dividend of HK$0.01 per ordinary share, amounting
to approximately HK$49,280,000 (equivalent to
RMB42,248,000) for the year ended 31 March 2022,
and formal approval by the shareholders was obtained
at the annual general meeting held on 30 September
2022.

The directors have resolved not to declare final
dividend to the shareholders for the years ended 31
March 2023 and 2024.

EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount
is based on the profit for the year attributable to
the owners of the Company of approximately
RMB52,453,000 (2023: RMB18,593,000) and the
weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,464,000,000 (2023: 2,464,000,000) during the year.

The diluted earnings per share is the same as the
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no dilutive
potential shares during the current and prior years.

11.

RZEBE-—FRA-FTNH BEFEZRNEHZC
E-F A=t HIEFERARESR L ER
0.0187T * 4£#49,280,0008 L (HHERARE
42,248,0007T) * WERZZEZZF LA =+HETT
ZRERFAG SRR IERALE -

EEDERTESHEE S -_=FE R - - ME
ZAZT—BUEFEIRMNKRERE

RRAFEBEABERN 2 BREF

ERERABFIDREARREE AEMLFR
WA ARKEES2 453,000 0(ZTEZ=F: A
R ®18,593,0007T) &4 A & i i o0 #& F 19 &
2,464,000,0008% (== = =4 : 2,464,000,000/%) 5t

b

ﬁo

AR ASEEAFERBEFREAL EEEEETR
0 MEREERNESREXAZNER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 12. EEFH - A EBRSFHNALIREREEENS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(a) Directors’ emoluments () ES=HE
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to the RIE ETR A KRB R RG] 3 AR E T
Listing Rules and the disclosure requirements BoEFMeMT
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as
follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
-4 BANER
#e  RELEN B B st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR  ARRFr  ARMFT  ARETT  ARET%

Year ended 31 March 2024 HZ-Z-ME=f
=t-HLFE

Executive directors HTEE
Mr. Wong Lam Ping (M. Wong’) kR ETEE]) 875 = 256 = 1,131
Mr. Shi Feng RESE 265 = = = 265
Mr. Wong Lui IREE 567 - 153 33 753
Ms. Gao Lan REXRT 241 = = = 24
Non-executive director FHITEE
Mr. Chan Kin Sang REEEEE 258 = = = 258
Independent non-executive directors B iTEE
Mr. Xie Gang RREIEE 110 = = = 110
Mr. He Ding Ding BT T#% 110 = = = 110
Mr. Wong Ping Kuen BMELE 164 = = = 164

2,590 - 409 33 3,032
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-ZT-=%=7

St-HIEFE

Executive directors HIEE
Mr. Wong et 875 - 289 - 1,164
Mr. Shi Feng hBEE 265 - - - 265
Mr. Wong Lui yask e 567 - 174 31 772
Ms. Gao Lan BELZL 241 - - - 241
Non-executive diiector FHITEZ
Mr. Chan Kin Sang RiExE 247 - - - 247
Independent non-executive directors BV EHTEE
Mr. Xie Gang bk 105 - - - 105
Mr. He Ding Ding ETTR4 105 - - - 105
Mr. Wong Ping Kuen EMERE 157 - - - 157

2,562 - 43 31 3,066
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

()

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

There is no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2023: nil).

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest emoluments
in the Group include three (2023: three)
directors, whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments
of the remaining two (2023: two) highest
paid individuals, whose emoluments fell
within the salary bands of HK$1,000,001 to
HK$2,000,000, for the years ended 31 March
2024 and 2023 were as follows:

12.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

ExFH LR FMALIRSREEEMS

(&

(a)

(b)

EZHE @)
FR BEEENEIRERETOHS 2%
BT =F:\|)-

TEREHMAL
AEBRAERESFMALTEE=R2(ZE ==
FZRESF EMeHEHRN L 2HE - 8
E-F_NFER-FE-_=ZF=ZA=+—H81t
FE O BTITMEB(CE-_=F WAB)E=5H
B A 1= 2 Bl (G & & /> F-1,000,001 78 L=
2,000,000/ L0 R

2024 2023

—EmEF —E=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFr

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e R REMER 1,838 1,688
Discretionary bonuses [l=pan 311 428
Retirement benefit scheme contributions RORE T B R 33 31
2,182 2,147

No emolument was paid by the Group to any of
the directors or the highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group,
or as compensation for loss of office during the
year (2023: nil).

Senior management emolument

The emoluments paid or payable to members of
non-director senior management were within the
following bands:

(c)

FR - AREREATNEEIREHFMAL
SAMERIBN S ERINA S I AR B1Z 2 22D
SEEREE(C T o= - ) -

EREEEWS
BN SN EESREEENE 2 e HE
mT -

2024 2023

—EmE —EF-=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 721,000,000/ 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 2
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Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% -  BERRE
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings  improvement Total
SR HE
Hini i AE BTF NEEE 5t

RMB000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000
ABHETT  AREFT ARETT AREFTT ARETT

At 1 April 2022 R-E-—£mMA—§H
Cost % 22,833 3,878 8,919 49,112 84,742
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (11,534) (3,800) (2,346) (17,734) (35,414)
Net carrying amount REFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328
Year ended 31 March 2023 BZ-Z-=f=R=+
—AILLEE

Opening net carrying amount HOERFE 11,299 78 6,573 31,378 49,328
Additions NE 1,047 828 - 5,104 7,879
Depreciation neE (2,391) 7) (1,423) (9,461) (13,282)
Deemed disposal of subsidiary RIEHERB AR

(note 31) (H17£31) (569) - - - (569)
Write-off s - (79 - - (79)
Impairment (note 16) REMFE16) (4,423) - - - (4,423)
Closing net carrying amount BREEFE 5,863 826 5,150 27,021 38,860

At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023 R=FB==%

ZA=t-HEK
—E-=fNA-H
Cost B A 14,349 4,626 8,919 54,216 82,110
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (8,486) (3,800) (3,769) (27,195) (43,250)
Net carrying amount REFE 5,863 826 5,150 27,021 38,860
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BRERRZE @)
(CONTINUED)
Computers
and other Motor Leasehold
equipment vehicles Buildings improvement Total
BRK e
HithR s RE BF MEHE At

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARETZ

Year ended 31 March 2023 BZ-2-=F
ZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount HOERRFE 5,863 826 5,150 27,021 38,860
Additions NE 2,376 - - 12,846 15,222
Transfer from right-of-use asset BEREEESR
(note 15) (Hii£15) 14,577 = = = 14,577
Depreciation neE (4,523) (94) (1,035) (6,673) (12,325)
Closing net carrying amount HRREEFE 18,293 732 4,115 33,194 56,334
At 31 March 2024 R-ZB-MF
=A=+-H
Cost AR 31,302 4,626 8,919 67,062 111,909
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERAE
impairment (13,009) (3,894) (4,804) (33,868) (55,575)
Net carrying amount IREFE 18,293 732 4,115 33,194 56,334
At 31 March 2024, the Group’s buildings of R-ZTE-_MFEZA=Z+—HB AEBEB AR
RMB4,115,000 (2023: RMBS5,150,000) were pledged 4,115,0007C(ZE= =4 : ARKS5,150,0007T) 7
for bank loans (note 24) of the Group. EFRERIRARER ZRITERFIH24) -
Notes: Btat -
(@)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. @ AEEBBIZEFMRFER -
(o)  Depreciation charges have been included in: () WEMRIZEA:
2024 2023
—E-NE —TE-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FTT ARMFT
Consolidated statement of financial position 4RE ISR TR
— capitalised in properties held under development - ERNMIERFRERYE - 2,361
Consolidated statement of comprehensive income REEENER
- selling and distribution expenses - HERDIHER 29 29
- administrative expenses -EEER 12,296 10,892
12,325 10,921
12,325 18,282

EEEREEARAT - 2023/24 =5 187
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Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. BEWE
2024 2023
—E-OEF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFT
At beginning of the year REH) 1,491,150 1,410,742
Transfer from properties held for sale BRFS Y EER = 97,196
Additions NG 75,099 -
Net fair value change charged to the Nk BaHFe2mlEE
consolidated statement of comprehensive ZRAREEE)FE
income (29,259) (16,788)
At end of the year NGNS 1,536,990 1,491,150
The investment properties included property interest ?ﬁﬁ%% BREUAPE T ERERE - HEER
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring EN=FE_FTHANF s A ZE_=F: ZTQ

from 2043 to 2054 (2023: from 2043 to 2054). As
at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group,
the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

As at 31 March 2024, investment properties
of approximately RMB1,120,950,000 (2023:
RMB1,146,670,000) were pledged against bank loans
of the Group (note 24).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 29).

During the year ended 31 March 2023, properties held
for sale with carrying amount of RMB61,706,000 (note
20) were transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental, rather
than for sale in the ordinary course of business of the
Group. The fair value gain of these properties upon
transfer to investment properties was approximately
RMB35,490,000.

fiif ANFZE)ER R_E_NFR =
zf_i A=+—8 AEEETEREMEHR
SEEMERSR AEEZEIPEVEZERMR
7% NEE A RIS )%J:ﬁﬁ*ﬁff%s” i N0 48 % £ [ 1
WHEENFRNEEMBRIMERZEREME -

RZE-_WF=ZA=Z+—H BEWEHA
R#1,120,950,000 (= —=F : AR
1,146,670,00070) FA{EIR IR AL B 2 IR1TTE K (FI5E
24) o

REMEDRBLEMENE TIERET (3E29) -

BE_ZT-_=ZF=ZA=+—BItFE  EFAEAA
R61,706,0007T 2 FE W (20 B E =R EY)
¥ FRAAZEMENRBEFNEE=-FFT UL
EHETHERDAS  MIERLTEBAFESRBRE
FHE  ZEEBEEREMEIVEZ A RBERS
#5 AR#35,490,0007T °
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2024, leased
properties with carrying value of approximately
RMB75,099,000 were recognised as investment
properties as properties were held for sub-leases
under operating lease and met the definition of
investment properties. The fair value change of
investment properties upon transfer to investment
properties was minimal.

The total net fair value loss of investment properties
of approximately RMB29,259,000 (2023: gain of
RMB18,702,000) was charged to profit or loss for the
year.

The fair value of the investment properties at 31 March
2024 and 2023 was revalued by Jones Lang LaSalle
Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuer who have
the recent experience in the location and category of
property being valued, which was based on the direct
comparison approach, assuming sale of the property
interests in their existing state with the benefit of
immediate vacant possession and by making reference
to comparable sales transactions as available in
the relevant market while appropriate adjustments
and analysis are considered to the differences in
location, size and other characters between the
comparable properties and the subject properties;
the income approach by taking into account the net
rental income derived from its existing leases and/or
achievable in the existing market with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the leases,
which have been then capitalised to determine the
market value at an appropriate capitalisation rate;
and the discounted cash flow analysis that requires
periodic net cash flows to be forecasted over the life
of the investment and discounted at a risk-adjusted
opportunity cost of capital to arrive at a project value,
taking into consideration the year by year net cash
flows, and having regard to the assumptions made
relating to rental growth projections, vacancies and
rent free.

14.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

BREYE(E)
HE-_Z-_NME=ZA=+—HILFE  FHEHNE
AR#E75,090,000c 2 HEWMEEREBREDE
REAZSWEDREBECEHERSESMT - BFA
WEMEZTEE HEREEZREMEBRIEAVER
BB -

HEWEZRAAREEEBEFEAXDARSE
29,259,000 0 (= = =4 : Wz AR¥18,702,000
T ETAFERE -

BREMER T -_NFR-_FE-_—_=F=f=+—
BRAREHEEEBRGEEDEMBMNE LK
Bl B S v B A EREEMEMPEHITE
EFERERERARETENGHE - HEDNUE
BLLEEAKE  BRMERIEERAMRRENE
REHE  YLEMREAMSAIEZUELEEER
5 HAUELREMEREEMELANE  RERE
HEG A ZE2FEHBERBEDN - LKACE
BIRE A REBHEREHEMERE SKERKT
BEARBzHSWAFE  THEEZEEER
WAELEERE  BHSBAREE ZEAREL
KEREUABTMISEE U RETERE SR
ENN  BEEEOMAREEFHRIENESE
RERETFHE  WIREAZRRFAERK S AR
LESHEEEE EPeZEpHES RGN - =
BERNRAATEZ BRER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of

14. REWFH)

the opening and closing fair value balance is provided

BREMRZ AAEREIRERN
RERAABBBRZEERIINWT -

A

BFF & » F1)

below.
2024 2023
—E_MEF —EC=HF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FOEH (BT FER R
18) 1,491,150 1,410,742
Transfer from properties held for sale B S Y R = 97,196
Additions NE 75,099 -
Change in revaluation of investment properties T AEMRA 2 R EWEEH
included in other income o) (29,259) (16,788)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring fair value) FARER(EIREERRR
18) 1,536,990 1,491,150
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for the year R =ZA=+— B EE
included in profit or loss for assets held at 31 ABR 2 FRAREE
March (note 6) (B518), Wz 28 (Hf:F6) (29,259) 18,702
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14.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 14. REWHEGE)
The following table shows the significant unobservable TRIREEBRANFFTBHERTA]ERGAH
inputs used in the valuation model. 7% o
Fair Significant Range of  Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs  to fair value
AR EART TARE TABEHA
L/E EER HERN BEBAYE WAHEBZEE HEEALENBR
Commercial offices in the 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/premium (20.1)% = (11)%  The higher the discount, the
PRC approach on quality of the (2023: (10)% — lower the fair value; the
property 2.9%) higher the premium, the
higher the fair value
hECEERDE 3 EEEH®E MELR L (E)/ (20.1)%-(11)% EES  DAEME
Py | (Z2z=%" RENE  AREER
(10)% — 2.9%)
Commercial offices in the 3 Discounted cash flow  Discount rate 8%  The higher the discount rate,
PRC approach (2023:8%) the lower the fair value
HEZEERLE 3 RERHEREE  HRE 8% HMEREHSE AREBE
(ZZ==%:8%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Direct comparison (Discount)/premium (39.4)% = 1.3%  The higher the discount, the
approach on quality of the (2023: (6.5)% ~ lower the fair value; the
property (41.7)%) higher the premium, the
higher the fair value
REZEHER 3 EEMRE MELR L (E)/ (39.4)%-1.3% #rEHME  ARESE
H1E (ZZ==F: wEES  ARELR
6.5% —41.7%)
Shop units in the PRC 3 Income approach Term yield 2.5%=6.3%  The higher the term yield,
(2023: 2.5%) the lower the fair value
hEl BREL 3 WAE TR E 25%-63% MEAKEERMS AAEME
(ZTZ=F:25%)
Reversionary yield 3% -6.8%  The higher the reversionary
(2023:3%) yield the Iovver the fair value
EHkEE 3%-68% ‘EHEUEZHS LLEBE
(ZTZZF : 3%)
There were no changes to the valuation techniques F NG E R
during the years.
The fair value measurement is based on the above ARnEFEDNERLIME s e k&xEAE(EE
properties’ highest and best use, which does not differ BERABRITEER) -

from their actual use.
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e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

15. FHEEE

Premises leased

per own use Machinery Total
HEEBRAME Mg st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AEETF T ARETF T ARETT
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-_“FMA—H 12,803 3,060 15,863
Additions =T - 20,642 20,642
Depreciation e (3,075) (5,741) (8,816)
Impairment (note 16) BB (K 16) - (5,000) (5,000
At 31 March 2023 R=EZ=HF
=HA=+—H 9,728 12,961 22,689
At 31 March 2023 R-EZ=
=HA=+-—H
Cost A 16,496 18,920 35,416
Accumulated depreciation and 2FHTE MORE
impairment (6,768) (5,959) (12,727)
Net carrying amount REFE 9,728 12,961 22,689
At 1 April 2023 R-ZE-_=%MA—H 9,728 12,961 22,689
Additions NE 8,809 2,170 10,979
Depreciation e (3,399) (554) (3,953)
Transfer to property, plant and BEEEYE  BEX
equipment (note 13) BB (M 13) - (14,577) (14,577)
At 31 March 2024 R-Z-MEF
=A=+—H 15,138 - 15,138
At 31 March 2024 R-ZZMF
=A=+-—H
Cost PR 25,305 = 25,305
Accumulated depreciation 2FhE (10,167) = (10,167)
Net carrying amount RERE 15,138 = 15,138
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16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

INTANGIBLES 16. B EE
Customer
Copyright relationships Total
hix A EFB& et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBFT ARBFT
At 1 April 2022 R-E--FMA—H
Cost AR 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and REH BB NORE
impairment (9,630) (4,349) (13,979)
Net carrying amount REDFE 2,370 756 3,126
Year ended 31 March 2023 BE-—ZT=-=
ZA=+—HLEE
Opening net carrying amount B9 ER A FE 2,370 756 3,126
Amortisation BgH (287) (179) (466)
Impairment DERIE] - (577) (577)
Closing net carrying amount iR AR R B 2,083 - 2,083
At 31 March 2023 and R-IEZ=5F
1 April 2023 =Z=A=+t—HK
—E-_=H#WmWA—H
Cost BN 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and REHEEE NORE
impairment (9,917) (5,105) (15,022)
Net carrying amount REFE 2,083 - 2,083
Year ended 31 March 2024 BE-Z-_NF
ZA=+—BLEE
Opening net carrying amount B9 EREFE 2,083 = 2,083
Amortisation i3 (233) - (233)
Written off T as (1,850) = (1,850)
Closing net carrying amount HRREFE - - -
At 31 March 2024 R=T=-M%F
=A=+-8
Cost D% 12,000 5,105 17,105
Accumulated amortisation and T8 NORE
impairment (12,000) (5,105) (17,105)
Net carrying amount REFE = = =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

16.

INTANGIBLES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended 31 March 2023, management
identified impairment indicator on the Group’s CGU in
relation to the provision of CMC related services (“the
CMC CGU”) due to decline in financial performance
in its CMC related services caused by tighter market
condition. For the purpose of impairment testing,
certain intangibles, property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are allocated to the CMC
CGU. The Group assessed the recoverable amount
of the CMC CGU and impairment of approximately
RMB577,000, RMB4,423,000, RMB5,000,000 (note
6) was made on intangibles, property, plant and
equipment (note 13) and right-of-use assets (note 15)
respectively for the year ended 31 March 2023.

The recoverable amount of above CGU has been
determined based on value in use calculation, which
is arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out by
an independent professional valuer. This calculation
uses cash flow projections based on the most recent
financial forecast approved by the directors of the
Company covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 2% and an estimated pre-tax
discount rate of 21%. The growth rate do not exceed
the long-term average growth rate for the business in
which the CGU operates.

As at 31 March 2024, copyright in relation to
the Group’s CMC related services amounted to
approximately RMB1,850,000 (2023: nil) was written-
off to its recoverable amount of nil based on its
fair value less cost of disposal determined by the
management of the Group as there was alternatively
cost-effective tools in the market to provide CMC
related services without the copyright of the Group
and this gave adverse effect on its resell price.

16.

BTEE(H)

BE_T_=-F=-A=1+—HLFE AARXERERK
TSR ERCMCHBERG < MBERRTE - &
BEZMNEAEERICMCHBREEHE IR E

Eih(FCMCﬁﬁEE B ) ZMETR - stE
AAME  BETEVEE WE BEEREBAUAR
ERREEDRECMCREEA RN - AEEFE

TCMCREeEA BNz AWEEE  REE-ZE=
ZF=ZA=Z+—HULEFEIRREFLEE WE
5 R (M sE13) R A& = (MY FE15) fE R
BEHARKS77,0000T + ARMEA4,423,0007C « AR
#5,000,0007T (i 5£6) °

tAReELABU 2 AIRESREIREEREE
HET MERBEFENREBEBELZEXGERME
TZHERE - ZeTENDREBEARRESAILER
ERFHR O MPHRAEARSRERD -
BehFHzREREEMBTERR2%MMAFTH
AIBEIR R21%HEE - WREXFBBRCELBUL
EEBZRBFIGERE -

MR-ZZ-WMF=ZA=+—H - "EBCMCHEIRS
FTo% R B 2 B840 B AR 1,850,000 (=2 ==
F5) BEREBEAEEEEBETNAABRLES
RAMEZE A WE¢REE > RRAMS EEEM
Bl ABEN T ERECMCHEBRY - MEBAER
REERRE - SEHASEERENTHZE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. RHEBARZEE
(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MZE_NF=A=+—H xEZWEBERF
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (FBARBRARDZFFEHINNT

March 2024, were as follows:

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMAL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH R/ ERER B ME TEER
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin United States dollar 100% = Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI")/Hong Kong (US$")1
REREES ESAEIA) A52100 - REER
(%BR4aBE)) /B4
Sino Harbour Bio Technology BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment holding
Holdings Group Limited
ABRABE/BA E A52100 - REBR
Sinotech International Holdings BVI/Hong Kong USS$1 100% = Investment holding
Limited
AERARE/BE 1ET BHZI0 - RESR
Sino Harbour Technology Limited BVI/Hong Kong US$1 100% = Investment holding
ABRRES/BA ES A52100 - REER
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ERRRAF &R 10,0007 - 100% REHER
Enrich HK. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
BHEBREARAT Bl 100/87T - 100% %ERR
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC/Mainland China 1S$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IESHAELEREERAT  +B/TER 25,000,000% 7T - 100% FHERE
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property - PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
BIABAREREREERAR T8/ TERD AR 100,000,0007T - 100% RiHERE
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(‘Nanchang Dingxun’)
BERABEERAR B/ RER AE100,000,0007 - 55% RHERE
((HERA))
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RHE R Fz#= (&)

(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each @ MZE_NF=A=+—H xEZWEBERF
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 (ZFERBRAR) ZHBEINNT - (8)
March 2024, were as follows: (Continued)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMAL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH Rx/Efgs B BiE IEER
Nanchang Gangyun Enterprises PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000 - 100%  Commercial
management Co., Ltd management
HEAMNEERERAT hE/hERD ARE1,0007 - 100% BEER
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC/Mainland China RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd. (‘Fenghuang
Jincheng’)
#ITRESHESERAR hE/RERD A B %:24,500,0007C - 51% RBHERE
(BEEH)
Leping Runfeng Real Estate PRC/Mainland China RMB6,000,000 - 51%  Property development
Development Co., Limited
LYTEERUWEREERAT  PE/PEMD AR 6,000,000 - 51% RBHERE
Sino Harbour Development Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
WEERER AR Bl 18T - 100% REER
Sino Africa Investment and Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Development Group Limited
PHRELXREEERLA &R 1007 - 100% REER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co., PRC/Mainland China RMB420,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Limited
RMNBBRERERAT hE/hERD ABR%420,000,0007C - 100% FHERE
Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co.,  PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 - 50%  Property development
Limited (note ()
IEELEXARARWY T8/ TERL AB#100,000,0007C - 50% EHERE
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31

March 2024, were as follows: (Continued)

17. RMIB R Az (E)
@ M-E-_NF=ZA=+—H TEWERA

(BERERAR) ZFFBEIIMAT « (

)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMAL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH Rx/Efgs B BiE IEER
Capital Manager Investment Limited ~ BVI/Hong Kong US$50,000 - 100%  Investment holding
ARRRES/BE 50,000% 70 - 100% RE#R
Jiangxi Sino Harbour Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
IEEBNBERAR hE/hERD AB%30,000,0007C - 100% RERR
Sinotech Digital Company Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
EVHEER LA Bl BT - 100% %ERR
Jiangxi Hanyun Incubator Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Investment holding
IEERFBERAR hE/hERD AB%10,000,0007C - 100% REER
Guangxi Gangrun Bio Technology ~ PRG/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Transferand
Limited consultation services
BREBENRMERAR e/ PR AR 10,000,007 - 0% BN RFEARY
Zhejiang IPS Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 - 80%  Provision of CMC
Technology Company Limited related services
MIZABERBARAA E/PEA, AR 60,000,007 - 80% HRECMCIEBRE
Jiangxi Ganghua Medical PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51%  Investment holding
Management Co., Limited
IRBEREERERAT E/hEN, AR 10,000,007 - 51% RERR
Pingxiang Ganghua Dentistry PRC/Mainland China RMB11,000,000 - 51%  Provision of dental
Hospital Co., Ltd services
EREZNRERARAF hE/RER AR 11,000,007 - 51% REOBBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

17.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2024, were as follows: (Continued)

17.

M B 2 B 2 s ()

@)

R-E-_NMFEF=ZA=+—H TEWERA
(ZERERAR) ZFBHININAT « (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly  activities
EMAL/ BRTRARERR
RREH RYREFEH R/ ERER B BiE IEER
Forest Construction Technology Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited
BARRENRARAA Bl BT - 100% %ERR
Hangzhou Gangze Enterprises PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000 - 51%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. management
RNBRCRERERAT hE/hERD AR#100,0007 - 51% MEEER
Hangzhou Sino Harbour Commercial - PRG/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd. management
MMEEHRERERAA hE/TERD A 10,000,007 - 100% BEER
Hangzhou Gangyu Business PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100%  Commercial
Management Co., Ltd management
RNBBLEERARLT hE/RERD AF%10,000,0007C - 100% BXER
Note: BiEr

On 30 March 2018, the Group and Jiangxi HongKel.ong
Industrial Limited (“Jiangxi HongKeLong”), which held
the remaining 50% equity interests in Jiangxi Ganghong,
entered into a designated operating agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which subject to the fulfilment
of certain conditions, Jiangxi HongKelLong designate all
the rights and responsibility of the management, operation
and financing of an undeveloped project in Yichun City,
Jiangxi Province (the “Undeveloped Project”) to the
Group and all the future costs and revenues in relation to
the Undeveloped Project will belong to the Group with a
compensation of RMB244,000,000 payable by the Group
to Jiangxi HongKelLong.

All conditions under the Agreement had been fulfilled
in prior years. The Agreement became effective and
all assets and liabilities of the Undeveloped Project are
beneficially owned by the Group and Jiangxi Ganghong
ceased to be a joint venture of the Group and became a
subsidiary of the Group after the completion date.

RIE—N\EZA=Z1H AEEETHLITREES
RAR(CIABRER]) GEHTIALE T50%MK48) 7]
EELE R (ZBED - B - 55 TIHREERE -
TR ERSMNTIREEEM 2 RkHEER ((RER
BEHDWER  ZEEBEMBRENMEEMNRETHET TR
£E - MAFEEENMARRKARKRAEBRARE
C REEERIEARRE S A R244,000,0007TH)
HE -

ZMHEBETOMBREERBEFEENX - ZHHD S
B MARBREMAEENBERAAEEEGHE
B mRERBEE  IEBATHAREEA S X
WA BAEEMHBRRF

198  sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24



17.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

17. RKE 2Rz (&)

Set out below are the summarised financial ) TXHIEBEHAEEMSBEN 2 FFIERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RS2 8
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERZ -
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group.
Nanchang Dingxun HERA
Summarised statement of financial position BN RE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2024 2023
“ECEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Current B
Assets BE 595,517 609,402
Liabilities afE (117,254) (110,395)
Total net current assets RBEERELRE 478,263 499,007
Non-current IEFRE
Assets BE 29 29
Total net non-current assets B EEFELE 29 29
Net assets BEEFE 478,292 499,036
Accumulated non-controlling interests BT EERERS 213,366 222,701
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. REB AR 2= (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMEAREERARLETHE RS2 8

City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHE - (8)

have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued) HERAE
Summarised statement of comprehensive PHENZEEE
income

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023

—ENEF —ZEZ=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TFT ARBTF T

Revenue WA 4,307 16,522

(Loss)/profit before income tax BRATISHAT (B518), % F (20,634) 4,187

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2HE(ER),WEHEHE (20,744) 3,715
(Loss)/profit allocated to non-controlling 7 Bt FEIERER >

interests (&518) %7 (9,335) 1,671

200 sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24



17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17.

(b)

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Nanchang Dingxun (Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

TH B 2 B 2 s ()

b) TXHINEBHAEEMSEEA 2 FFEEE
@2 B A R & S R 2 i RLUEL & 52 B

BERBE - (8)

8 & A ()
BERBRUE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+t—-HLHFE

2024 2023
“ECEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMELHSRE
Cash used in operations KEFTARS (4,011) (19,738)
Interest received A B 40 118
Net cash used in operating activities ARET BT 2 F 5 (3,971) (19,620)
Cash flows from investing activity RETHMEEHESRE
Withdrawals of pledged deposits REEHEIRFH 6,202 2,704
Net cash generated from investing activity REFETEEH 2 FHE 6,202 2,704
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RE&ERREZEY
equivalents #in, OBd) B 2,231 (16,916)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#IR & MRS EHEY
the year 8,423 25,339
Cash and cash equivalent attheend of HXBEERBELEEY
the year 10,654 8,423
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RMIB R Az (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMEAREERARLETHE RS2 8
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERZ - (8)
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “YmBEBREH
Summarised statement of financial position BN RRE
As at 31 March
R=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-IEF T =fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBTFT
Current mE
Assets BE 214,758 222,244
Liabilities BE (52,439) (52,439)
Total net current assets RBEEFEEAE 162,319 169,805
Net assets BEEFE 162,319 169,805
Accumulated non-controlling interests 2 EERER 79,536 83,204
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17.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. RMIB R Az (E)
() Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEZERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMBEAREERARLETHE RS2 8
City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHE - (8)
have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng Y hmEREH(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of comprehensive 2HENZEEE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLFE
2024 2023
—EME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTF T ARETT
Revenue WA - -
Loss before income tax FRFTISHiATE 1B (7,486) -
Total comprehensive income 2HEWN SR (7,486) -
Loss allocated to non-controlling PEFIFERERZEE

interests

(3,668) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

17. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 17. REB AR 2= (E)
(b) Set out below are the summarised financial () TXHINEBHAREEM S EEKN 2 IEERE
information for Nanchang Dingxun and Leping meMEAREERARLETHE RS2 8

City Fenghuang Jincheng, the subsidiaries that BERHE - (8)

have a non-controlling interest which is material
to the Group. (Continued)

Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng “YhmEREH(E
(Continued)
Summarised statement of cash flows BEREHRHE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023
—EmF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETFT

Cash flows from operating activities RETEHEERSRE
Cash used in operations KETARE = (86,145)
Net cash used in operating activities ARE T B AT A 2 FEE = (86,145)
Cash flows from investing activity RETEMEERSRE
Decrease in amounts due from subsidiaries & Y Ff B8 A &) 28R = 86,144
Net cash generated from investing activity KEFTETELH T FRE = 86,144
Net decrease in cash and cash ReRBEESEEY

equivalents WA R - 1)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of ~ F#3R 4 RIS HEY

the year 2 3

Cash and cash equivalent at the end of FRBEERBESEHEY
the year 2 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

18. BAAERAEfEZERSEIRZERHEE

2024 2023
—E-mE —E-=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARETT
Equity instruments measured at FVOCI RO EREMEE WS
PIBRETE 2 IRET A
Unlisted equity investments REMRERE 5,650 8,650

As at 31 March 2024, within financial assets at
FVOCI, balance of approximately RMB4,000,000
(2023: RMB6,000,000) represented carrying amount
of 5.23% (20283: 5.09%) of equity interest in Jiangxi
Longyu Medicine Co., Limited shares held by the
Group and balance of approximately RMB1,500,000
(2023: RMB2,500,000) represented carrying amount
of 0.88% of equity interest in Zhirui Creativity (Beijing)
Technology Co., Ltd. share held by the Group.

As as 31 March 2024, within financial assets at
FVOCI, balance of approximately RMB150,000
(2023: RMB150,000) represented carrying amount of
residual interests in Leping Runze Estate Development
Co., Ltd (“Leping Runze”), an entity ceased to be
a subsidiary of the Group upon the completion of a
deemed disposal during the year ended 31 March
20283 (note 31).

The unlisted investments of the Group was irrevocably
designated at FVOCI as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

Fair value of the equity instruments has been
measured as described in note 33(f).

R-ZZE-NE=ZA=+—8 RERAAEREMS
HREIEZEREEY - HHHOARY 4,000,000
T(ZZT =4 : AR%6,000,000T) BAREEEFE
IR FEERMNDERAFS.23% (T =4 :
5.09%) iz 1 2 BREE + LA R4 A K #1,500,000
T(ZE-=4F: AR¥2,500,0007T) BAEEEA
RS SH A (db ) BHE B BR A 510.88% M4 4 2 BR M
{E o

RZZE-NE=ZA=+—0  REAREREME
HERINENEREERN - HARK150,000L(=
T =44 AR®150,00070) 468 B2 T E2
EHERZEERAR(E4FEE]  REE-_2=-_=
FoA=THEFEAREREEFAEMES) T
RETBARAEENBARMNERE MG N ESZE
H1E -

ARASERSZERLMREBRBIEL - A&
B2 ZERECTARLMBEER/EALEBREM
2 HRERTIER

Pt TARAEDRMEI3NMEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

19.

20.

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 19. BARHYHE
2024 2023
—E-E —ZEC=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFT
Leasehold interests in land T E RS 809,727 849,402
Development costs B AR 161,027 801,224
Finance costs capitalised N o §D N 50,463 70,172
1,021,217 1,720,798
Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC and THHEEESUATE  HERR TN _F=—
have lease terms expiring from 2042 to 2090 (2023: ENEF(CE=F : ZTN=FETNTF)
2042 to 2090). & ©
Right-of-use assets related to interests in leasehold CREEEETMMHEERSER  HP TR
land where the interest in the land is held for EREZEEFEE Ut N\MBEEEERZHAE+RY
development of inventories and included in the same ES
line as properties held under development as that
within which the corresponding assets.
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 20. FEYE

Properties held for sale included property interests
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2077 (2023: 2043 to 2077). As at 31
March 2024, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB68,093,000 (2023:
RMB41,720,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2024, an impairment
loss of RMB18,815,000 on certain properties held for
sales is recognised, on the basis that the expected
unit sales price, by referencing to the market unit price
of other similar properties, is lower than the unit cost.

During the year ended 31 March 2023, properties
held for sale with carrying amount of RMB61,706,000
were transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental (note
14).

FEYEEETR T WERER  HEHR -
TM=FE2_ZT++tF(ZZT_=F: _EWN=F=
ZEttF)2HEER Rl F=-A=+—
A TS SEHERNREMBENAA
R #68,093,0007(ZE = =4 : ARM41,720,000
JL) °

HE_Z_WNEF-A=+—HLFE 2ZHE
UWENTHER  BHESEEENEMKAR -
BRETHEMEZREESEAAR18,815,000

ﬁo

HE_Z-_=F=ZA=+—HLFE FEEAA
R#61,706,000 2 S EMXEEFEZREYE - R
EAZEYEDREFNEE =AU ZICEHE
ZHEBE S (H5E14) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

21. DEPOSITS PAID AND PREPAYMENTS AND 21. ERESEURFENFREREMERR
OTHER RECEIVABLES
2024 2023
—EIEF —E_=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt AR¥Fr ARKEFIT
Non-current ERE
Deposit paid [RENEE S (© 4,171 -
Current mE
Prepayments TEf IR (@) 440,473 618,648
Other receivables E fh Y RIE (b) and (c)
b %) 131,709 142,977
572,182 761,625
576,353 761,625
Notes: Bt -
(@  As at 31 March 2024, prepayment included deposit @ RIZEZWOF=ZA=+—08 " BAIREBEELERKDPE

paid of approximately RMB351,000,000 (2023:
RMB351,000,000) to relevant authority for successful bid
on land parcel in Leping City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC of
which the land use rights certificate has not been obtained
by the Group.

At 31 March 2024, other receivable included amount
due from non-controlling interest of approximately
RMB11,631,000 (2023: RMB11,864,000). The balance is
interest-free, unsecured and receivable on demand.

As at 31 March 2024, other receivable included
amount due from Leping Runze, an entity ceased to
be a subsidiary of the Group upon the completion of a
deemed disposal during the year ended 31 March 2023
(note 31), of approximately RMB76,096,000 (2023:
RMB85,807,000). The balance is interest-free, unsecured
and receivable on demand.

The Group recognises loss allowance for deposits paid
and other receivables for the years ended 31 March 2024
and 2023 respectively based on the accounting policies
stated in note 3.9. Further details of the Group’s credit
policy and credit risk arising from other receivables are set
out in note 33(b).

LR BT T8 24 11 2 Mo 38 (AN SR (B & AR ERAS L L Hb (5
FARERR) MM R = & 49 AR 351,000,000
TT(ZZE==4 : AR¥351,000,0007T) °

MR-TB-WE=ZA=+—0  EpERFEBREEKIE
R ARE11,631,000L(CE-=F : AR
11,864,0007T) ° #EtR e B « MIEA HEESRIKE -

RIZZEZNF=ZA=+—H  HtEKRZIERERERK
LY HEREE-_Z-_—F-A=-T-HLFEER
EHEEE(MESNERETBALAEENBAR®
FE)RIEHARET6,096,000 T (Z T -=4F: AR
85,807,0007T) ° BB AR S « EIEH R EZE KM -

AEEREM TS9P I 2 &5 BOR D HIERBE
mER _—F-_=F=F=+— EIJtiVEH?;z@&ﬁﬁLJ
FEUFRIE 2 R BHE o AR EEERR KA E UK
BEEZEERBRZE— T IEHNIEES3(0) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

22. PLEDGED DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK

22, EEAERUARRERBITER

BALANCES
2024 2023
—EIEF —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfa AR¥FTT ARMFT
Cash and bank deposits REe RIRITFK 238,688 495,002
Less: Ak
Deposits pledged against banking IRIBERBITRE MK
facilities granted to the mortgage 2173 (@) (48,773) (54,930)
Deposits pledged for bank loans PERTTE IR 2 75K (b) (5,500) (5,500)
Deposits restricted for construction MBEETRERGI TR
works (96,191) (334,969)
Cash and cash equivalents for the e HEeRERMS
purpose of the consolidated statement 7R & KIS EEY
of cash flows 88,224 99,603
Notes: Bist

(@) The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security
in the PRC as detailed in note 30. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period
from the date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the
date when the certificates for housing ownership are
granted to the property purchasers. Such charges will be
released upon the certificates are granted to the property
purchasers.

(b) At 31 March 2024, the bank deposit of RMB5,500,000
(2023: RMB5,500,000) was pledged against bank loans
due to be settled over twelve months after the reporting
period (note 24). The effective interest rate of this deposit
was 0.2% (2023: 0.35%).

At 31 March 2024, approximately RMB237,863,000
(2023: RMB489,657,000) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

(@)  BUNHIEESOMTAFAL - ZEF AR TRITEAMERL T
Bz iR G o R FRITAMBARE Y 2 BREHRIZ
BEN - EREHRERRBERANENXERERT
FEMBHERREN - ARERBERNEERERT
FEMAEZREEE -

) H-TE-WF=A=+—H  AR¥5,500,000T(=F
—=F : AR¥5,500,0007T) 2 RITERAHRE HE T
ZEABHBREE ZRITER(HFE24) (EHER - ZFEXK
ZEBAEA0.2%(ZE =4 :0.35%) °

R-Z-_WFZA=+—H ' HHARK¥237,863,000
T(ZE-=4F : AR¥489,657,0007T) Al ERH
Bl ZRITRHMEMEE RS - ZEEHUAR
BESTE - ARBARTA B B EBBINE o iRIKF BN
EEHIET RERE SELRMNEERBRT  AEH
AlB B BIE R ETIMNE XS 2 IRITBARK
HAIRGNEE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE, ACCRUALS AND
OTHER PAYABLES

23.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

FES R - FERT RRIR K H A FE YRR

2024 2023
—EIEF —E=fF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Mtat ARMTF T ARETT
Accounts payable FEAT AR X (@) 15,994 59,829
Accruals and other payables JE 51K B E A FE S 5RIE (b) 239,711 211,149
Notes: Ktz -
(@)  The aging analysis of accounts payable, based on invoice @ ENRFIREERSZERESTOT
date, is as follows:
2024 2023
—E_NE —ZT-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
Less than 3 months PR=@EA 4,697 45,795
3-6 months =EAZENER 2,247 932
6 months — 1 year NEAZE—F 489 1,775
More than 1 year —F AL 8,561 11,327
15,994 59,829
(b)  Accrued construction cost and other project-related ) RZZTE-_WMF=A=+—H " st AEBFTTREBREME

expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB171,801,000 as at 31
March 2024 (2023: RMB110,976,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2024, other payables included an amount of
approximately RMB490,000 (2023: RMB490,000), which
was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing Property Development
Limited (TR R 7 i 7& 5 # B R 2 &) which held
49% equity interest in the Group’s subsidiary, Leping
City Fenghuang Jincheng. These payable balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand in
cash.

NRBEBZEAEZERAREMIEE BRI OARKE
171,801,000 L (ZZE == : AR#¥110,976,0007T) °
T RIBEBNRBEBEHBZ 2GR RIBE#EESNE - AR
AR AR EER -

R-Z-WE=A=+—H EMEMZEEEOAR
#490,0007(ZZE == : AR¥490,0007T) FE()TF
RERMEREBRARIFKE  HEEASENER
AIEFEME RS H40%RE - ZFEMNFIBLEHBER
B RBREREIARSEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z - F — W =F=+—HIF F&
24. BANK LOANS 24, RITEXK
2024 2023
—EMF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARBFT
Bank loans — secured and guaranteed IRITE R — B MR 531,950 455,400
The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank loans ERZERAEITIT
is as follows:
2024 2023
—EMF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARBFT
Current mE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment AR —FARHEREIIZERE
within one year or on demand B2RITERDD 68,450 66,900
Non-current FERE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment after 787 —F % B HIEE 2 RITE XK
one year 2B 463,500 388,500
Total borrowings wiE 531,950 455,400
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. BANK LOANS (CONTINUED)

The Group’s bank loans are denominated in RMB and
repayable as follows:

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

AEEEEEZAARBHERTERDOT ¢

2024 2023

—E-ME —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARBTF T

Within one year or on demand —FANRIRER 68,450 66,900
In the second year RE_FR 127,100 74,750
In the third to fifth year REZZFRFR 301,400 313,750
More than five years BB AF 35,000 -
463,500 388,500

Total borrowings BWEE 531,950 455,400

As at 31 March 2024, the effective interest rates of the
Group’s secured bank loans were ranging from 4.5%
to 7.1% (2023: 5.5% to 7.5%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2024, bank loans of the Group were:

(i) secured by the Group’s property, plant and
equipment of approximately RMB4,115,000
(2023: RMB5,150,000) (note 13);

(i)  secured by the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB1,120,950,000 (2023:
RMB1,146,670,000) (note 14);

(i) secured by the Group’s bank deposits
of approximately RMB5,500,000 (2023:
RMB5,500,000) (note 22);

(iv) secured by entire present and future issued
share capital of certain subsidiaries of the
Group; and

(vy guaranteed by Mr. Wong, the controlling
shareholder and director of the Company.

EA:;:EE:HEJr—El C REEFEIFIRT
EREBENENTEELILS%ETAR(CE =4 :
55%%7.5%) °

MRZB-ME=A=+—0  KEBZRITER

() MBAEEME - BEMKEBEHARE4L,115,000
T(ZZE=—=F : AR®5,150,0007T) {E&
(Pt5E13)

(i) AAEEREEMELHARE,120,950,0007T
—E-=F: ARE¥1,146,670,0007T) {EH #F
(MI5E14)

(iy AAREERITEFERHARES,500,0007T(=
T =% : AR¥5,500,0007T) {E# 8 (M 5
22) ;

vy BAAEBEETHBARZRAE RAKE2IE %
TTRRAVERIR - &

V) BARFERBRERESIREER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

25. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25, ELEBEEE (BF)

At 31 March 2024, deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2023: 25%). The
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising
from temporary differences are as follows:

RZEZNFE=A=+—0  BEHEZE (B81)
AR RO5% (B =4F : 25%) MR HE - A=
HMESZERLEHBEE(BF) 2EsmT :

Deferred tax Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities in liabilities in Deferred tax
assetsin  respect of fair respect of liabilities in
respect value change undistributed respect of
of provision  of investment earning of contract
for LAT properties subsidiaries cost assets Total
ARENE SEHEAR
HImIEER RAERE KRBT BEHAA
REEEZ FHZEL BHZEL EERHZ
EEHEEE HERE HEEE  EEHERE by
RMB 000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB 000 RMB 000
AEETTT AERETT AEEFT ANEETT ARETFL
At 1 April 2022 e S—= R = 21,415 (120,798) (1,000) (2,000) (102,383)
Deferred tax (charged)/credited to ~~ WIEZ(FIB) /5 A
the profit or loss (note 9) LERBE M 29) (1,040) 4,676) 1,000 (4,000) (8716)
At31March 2023 and 1 April 2028 R=Z==%=A=+
—BRZEZ=%Q
A—H 20,375 (125,474) - (6,000) (111,099)
Deferred tax credited to the profitor ~ REZFAZ
loss (note 9) BRHE WY 17,900 7315 - 4738 29,953
At 31 March 2024 RZZ-MNE=R
e 38,275 (118,159) - (1,262) (81,146)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried
forward to the extent that realisation of the related tax
benefit through the future taxable profits is probable.
The Group has no material unrecognised tax losses
to carry forward against future taxable income at 31
March 2024 and 2023.

BLEREEERMAE 2 HIEBEBTUER - HMX
ARESAARERBMEFNNERA 2 EEHEN R A
RoR-—_TE-_MEKRK-_T-_=F#=A=+—H K
S B E A RERTIAE S B e B R R E
RN o
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25.

26.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 25. BEEBEEE (BE) (&)
(CONTINUED)
Withholding rate of 5% is imposed on dividends DIRTHEREE ZIRETIIRFBEIR E5% BN
distributed to foreign investors. As at 31 March 2024, KeRZBEZWF=RA=+—08 " BWBRAEXD
deferred tax liabilities amounted to approximately REF BB LR ERESELHARE95,525,000
RMB49,776,000 (2023: RMB44,793,000) in respect T(ZZTE =%+ AR%895,867,0007T) 2 ELF
of aggregate amount of temporary difference HEBEHARKL49,776,000L(ZE =4 : AR¥
of approximately RMB995,525,000 (2023: 44,793,0007T) MR T ARER - ThH NS B A i
RMB895,867,000) associated with undistributed FIZEMB AR 2R EBHBK - EAEBEERITET
earnings of subsidiaries have not been recognised RT] R REE -
because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries and it is
probable that such differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.
SHARE CAPITAL 26. BA
Number of
shares RMB’000
KRG EE AE®F T
Authorised: SERE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each HREEE0.01EB T2 BB
At 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 and RZE-_FMHA—HUK
2024 TEREC=FRITNF
=RA=+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAE
At 1 April 2022 and 31 March 2023 and RZFBZ_FMHA—BUEK
2024 ZE=FR-IFNF
—A=+—H 2,464,000,000 20,735

During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 2023,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

REBEE-_E_NMER-_TE_=F=A=+—HItF
B ARARRETAMBARMERE  HExE
Bl AN EE] EHES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

27. RESERVES

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are as
follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue of
shares of the Company at premium.

Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least 10%
of its net profit after tax, as determined under
the PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiaries’
equity owners. The statutory reserve is non-
distributable other than upon the liquidation of
the subsidiaries.

FVOCI reserve

Balance represents fair value reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value
of equity investments designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the
reporting period.

Property revaluation reserve

The property revaluation reserve of the Group
represents the gains arising on revaluation of
properties.

27. &
REE 2 FHEE

RERRGARERDE - BE

ZHERBEINT

(i

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

MR8
AEB 2B s EBREAR ARG EZTRN
PRES ZH(E

EERE

RIEABETEER  HEBARAKRETERE
FOARPTEEE 2 BRIIR AR E D 10% BB E )X
ERE BEERBERERNBAREMER
250% - RRFREBBRAND KRS THER
BIERBEA A ZAVET < AERB A DK -
MRS /B8 X BB BREF RSN o

BARBEREMZE KSR MHE
BBREALERE  BERBEMREBRE
FREMBRELENEOREERRAAEBNE
f2EREIN R RERERAERFE
@JO

MR E M #E
AEENFELRBEEEMMERMELN

A
U ES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

27. RESERVES (CONTINUED) i (5])
The Company ¥IN/NE]|
Share Retained
premium profits Total
vl BEaH &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT ARKFIT
At 1 April 2022 565,212 48,286 613,498
Loss for the year and total FANBEBLFAZE
comprehensive income for the
year - (3,365) (3,365)
Dividend paid to owners of the ENARREBALZ
Company - (42,248) (42,248)
At 31 March 2023 and 1 April 2023
“A=+—Hk
=#mMA—A 565,212 2,673 567,885
Loss for the year and total FRNEBEBEFAZE
comprehensive income for the
year - 1,333 1,333
At 31 March 2024
565,212 4,006 569,218
28. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS BEAEYE
Except as disclosed elsewhere in these financial MZEVBEHMREAMIBOMEEEIN  AEEHS
statements, the Group had the following outstanding AT ARBITEAREIE -
capital commitments:
2024 2023
—E-OEF —ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for BUTHEBE TN EREE
in respect of
~ properties held under development - R YE 242,723 349,173
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

29. LEASES

(@)

The Group leases premises under lease
agreements. The lease agreements are between
one to twenty years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants. Leased assets are
not used as security for borrowing purposes.

The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the leases. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate is used, being the
rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an
asset of similar value to the right-of-use assets
in a similar economic environment with similar
terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate,
the Group:

- where possible, uses recent third-party
financing received by the individual lessee
as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third
party financing was received;

- uses a build-up approach that starts with
a risk-free interest rate adjusted for credit
risk of lessee; and

- makes adjustments specific to the lease
terms.

None of the leases contain variable lease
payments.

2. #HE

@)

AREBRBEHERZHEDE - HE R
NF—E=+F -

MEI IR (@B EEEEE T
it - MEWZRIL T B TAR
WARBIEEE 2 EHm -

M%TWWW&
cHEBRE

MEMNKEREERNSHERER o HELEE
BEZMER(AEEHEEBEENL) - AIZRAE
A 2 1B & 8 A = (BNME Bl A AR RIS
RIBPIRIEE G - FER MG R EEUEE A
REEBENEZEEMBEVRESMAX
Y FIR)BEIR -

RETRERT

R KKy - AEED -

- BAREBLEAERNAEAIRERDY
FZTREZNE - BETHEARR
BRFZTRERREKRT 22 :

- ERAMEREESN - ARETERRA
xR BRABEAZEERRIEAER &

HEMEREFHHEENRK -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

29. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(@)

(Continued)

20. HE)

The amount included in the consolidated

@)

(&)

statement of financial position in respect of the HEIRFRZE
carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the
movements during the year is as follows:
Premises Machinery Total
L/ES M 2R st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREFIT ARETT
At 1 April 2022 R-ZBE--_FWMA—H 13,066 3,175 16,241
Addition to right-of-use assets FREEERE - 20,642 20,642
Interest expenses B 555 207 762
Lease payments MENK (3,399 (9,409) (12,808)
At 31 March 2023 R=Z==
=A=+—H 10,222 14,615 24,837
Addition to right-of-use assets FREEERE 8,809 2,170 10,979
Addition to investment properties REWMEARE 75,099 - 75,099
Interest expenses FERE 3,388 104 3,492
Lease payments MENK (8,213) (16,889) (25,102)
At 31 March 2024 R-ZZMEF
=HA=+—H 89,305 - 89,305
Future lease payments are due as follows: REMENR B HBERLNT :
2024 2023
—EIlEF B
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Minimum lease payment due RUATHAR B 8 2 & 1K
MERH
= Within one year -—FR 11,020 6,752
- In the second to fifth years, inclusive -MEEAF(BIEERE
M F) 42,536 23,256
— More than five years - HFEME 124,684 -
178,240 30,008
Less: future interest expenses B RRF B (88,935) (5,171)
Present value of lease liabilities HEEEZHE 89,305 24,837

EREZEREBEARAT o 2023/24 Fi
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

29. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)

The present value of future lease payments are
analysed as:

29.

HE (@)

(b)

ARBEEMNKZBREIHAT :

Current liabilities i
Non-current liabilities

As at 31 March 2024, no aggregate
undiscounted commitments for short-term
leases of the Group (2023: RMB1,134,000).

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group was
committed to enter into a new lease of 10 years,
in respect of the commercial space of Zhejiang
University Alumni Enterprise Headquarters
Economic Park in Hangzhou City, that is not yet
commenced, the lease payments under which is
ranging from RMB4,299,000 to RMB55,020,000
per annum.

The Group had future aggregate minimum lease
receipts under non-cancellable operating leases
in respect of its properties as follows:

2024 2023
—EMEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
9,598 5,334
79,707 19,503
89,305 24,837

RZZE-_WNF=A=+—H XNEBEHETH
HECZAMBRAZAB(CZ-_=ZF: AR
1,134,0007T) °

R-E-NER-E-_=F=A=+—H K
EEABERMAMMNTON T REREDER
R EEEETER L AB10F NI ALY
(AR  ZHEANBESEINTEFAR
#4,299,0007T = A R #55,020,0007T °

AEEREMERETAIHELELHEMNK
B 2 SR E BT

2024 2023

—E-IEF —E=fF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTF T ARBTT

Not later than one year —FR 45,204 42,549
Later than one year and not later than five —FEEBBARE

years 100,985 92,334

Later than five years AFMNE 71,097 20,237

217,286 155,120

The Group leases out its investment properties
which run for initial periods of one to sixteen
years (2023: one to sixteen years), without
option to renew the lease terms at the respective
expiry dates. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

AEBEARENE  NFFHPR—ETF
—ERo=F —ETRE) REAIHAET
RAEBRREEE - HESRELIAES -
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30.

31.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL GUARANTEES

The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for
certain purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments.
As at 31 March 2024, the outstanding guarantees
amounted to approximately RMB997,233,000
(2023: RMB1,990,742,000). Such guarantees
terminate upon earlier of (i) issuance of the real
estate ownership certificate which will generally be
available within one or two years after the purchasers
take possession of the relevant properties; or (i) the
satisfaction of mortgaged loans by the purchasers of
properties. No provision for the Group’s obligation
under the guarantees has been made as the
directors considered that it was not probable that the
repayments of the loans would be default.

DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 23 November 2022, the Group and Leping Runze,
an non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, entered
into the capital increase agreement (the “Capital
Increase Agreement”) with the independent
third party (the “Investor”), pursuant to which, the
Investor agreed to contribute additional capital to the
reqgistered capital of Leping Runze in an amount of
RMB162 million, subject to the passing of resolution
by the shareholders of the Company to approve
the Capital Increase Agreement. The resolution was
passed and the Company obtained the approval from
its shareholders at a special general meeting held
on 13 January 20283. The equity interest in Leping
Runze held by the Group was decreased to 3.57%.
Accordingly, Leping Runze was then ceased to be a
subsidiary of the Group.

30.

31.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

M ER
REBEAETYEEVERTHREBEER I 5
BRZSEFETRERER RZTZOF=A=
+—8 ' BRERZEREL B AREEII7,233,000
T(CZT-=4F: AR#¥1,990,742,0007T) ° % E1E
FBRATERAREERBE)RI  ((ELEHE
FBEE(—REREREEEHEAMELE —IMFA
REE  K(WEEREFRBENRN - ARES
RAETNKAEHRINMEEERNER - Fb k%
RNEBZERETELEE -

RIELHE—BHEBAT
M-ZE-—F+—A-+=0 KNEBNEFE2
(FEENIEZ2ENBARBBYE=H(HRELE])
R EE R ((EEHE]) Bt WEERE R
FTHENFMEALEARBIC2EE T - AFAR
AIREEBNESEREORERESTSIEE - R
ZE=F-RA+=HBTHBREENAG £ R
FREBBEAQABERRESIE - AEER
YRR R ES.57% » Hith - 4 EEE
BIBAAEENMBAR -

EEEREEARAT - 2023/24 5 219



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

31. DEEMED DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY
(CONTINUED)

The assets and liabilities of Leping Runze at the date

of deemed disposal were as follows:

31. REHE—HHELQF(E)

LTBENRIELEAMNEERAGBNT

RMB’000
AREFIT
Property, plant and equipment Y - BE L& 569
Properties under development FEER Y 328,619
Deposit, prepayment and other receivable e BNFUE R HAMEWEIE 21,063
Cash and bank balances RE RIBITHER 17,767
Accounts payable FETRR IR (649)
Accruals and other payables FERTFRIB K H Ath B 5 5B (222,667)
Contract liabilities AHEE (67,296)
Amounts due to subsidiaries of the Group FET AR E BB 2 508 (90,807)
Net liabilities disposed of EHEFAE (13,401)
Fair value of the residual interests in Leping Runze EERBEAANBEREMAEEKET R
recognised as financial assets at FVOCI (note 18) JEMBEMLETLHERTEZOA
REWHE18) (150)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary (note 6) HE—MNB AR ZWE (W ite) 13,551
Total consideration received by the Group REBERHMHBRE -
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEE R MLFE
RMB’000
AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERBEEEFEY (17,767)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32.

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
had the following material related party transactions:

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

BELTXRS
Rz EM B RREAMEBD PARE 2R 5 RERIN -
AEBERETUTERBETRS ¢

Group
2024 2023
“B-NEF —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Hfat AR¥FT ARMFIT
Car park rental expense charged by THALTWE 2 FES
AW E (a)
- Spouse of Mr. Wong —EREZRE 55 52
Rental expense charged by THRAFIMEZ HEWE
- A related company - —E@EEAT (b) 329 315

Notes:

(@) During years ended 31 March 2024, Ms. Chan, the
spouse of Mr. Wong, has entered into an agreement of
car park rental for HK$60,000 (2023: HK$60,000) per
year.

(b) Mr. Wong and Ms. Chan have beneficial interests in these
related companies.

Compensation of key management personnel of
the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s
directors and certain highest paid employees, are
disclosed in note 12.

Mt -

BHE-_Z-_NME=ZA=+—HULFE  FTEE2EBR
TR ESAESE B - FHA60,0008 (==
=4 : 60,000/ 7T) °

b EFEAEAERRALIXZEHELARAEAEGEL
FEMEIREBASHMH

AEEXTEEEABZHFMN(BRENARFAEER
ETERRFMEE 2HI XM E125KE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

33.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a variety
of financial risks which comprise market risk (including
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance. The Group currently
does not have any written risk management policies
and guidelines. However, the board of directors
meets periodically and cooperates closely with key
management to analyse and formulate strategies to
manage and monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial assets
for speculative purposes. The most significant financial
risks to which the Group is exposed to be described
below.

(a) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks
and bank loans which bore interests at fixed
and floating interest rates. Bank loans arranged
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowings
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 24.

33.

BHREBEEBEREE

AEBEBAKREAR SR BKRAR 8BTS
Rk (BIESNE R R XRER) - EERBRLRBE
TRk - AEBEzEREREEHESRT ST
AT - BREEARENBRAZEBENNF
ERERE - AKERKFIETMAX 2 ERERE
BERNIES - AT EFSTHARSHE  LRE
ZEEABRTEE I RHIERBAEENRE
ZEA TSR o

AEEYTEREURESBEEZEREERE - £
KEFEY 2 REEVHRERMLT -

(@ R=E
FExRBiEsRIAZAREXREREAT
SREEYMHF LB 2Rk - NEEZ WA
DEREREREERNETZMSFNERER 2 &
2  REBAERBREZREZEENER
FEFIEF B2 IRITHERLIRITER - LUEH)
FERETHEGFBEZRITERSAEES R
AEReREMNERBREALBEMNERR - B
MEBREABEEZBE ZFERERERTR
M sF24 4 78 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

If the interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits would decrease/
increase by approximately RMB640,000 (2023:
RMB1,159,000) respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have no
impact on the Group’s other components of
equity. The assumed changes in interest rates
are considered to be reasonably possible based
on observation of current market conditions
and represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate over
the next twelve-month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the
consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2024 has been prepared on
the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge
its obligation under the terms of the financial
instrument and cause a financial loss to the
Group. The Group’s exposure to credit risk
mainly arises from granting credit to customers
in the ordinary course of its operations. The
Group is also exposed to credit risk arising from
the provision of financial guarantees and the
amounts of which are disclosed in note 30.

33.

(a)

(b)

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

B bR E IR B AR R BUR ()

F =@ B (4E)

FIRGBE

fisi F R F GG 00,5 A 100EE 2hifn Fr A &
HWESREBENE  NEBENFEBENEEF
SR B D1 n#) AR #640,0007T (= F
—=%: AR¥1,159,0007T) °

BN 100 EE AR ELE YN ET N Y
NEETREFERESAHABARED 2
CRNEEVIES £IEa RN SRRk St P
FE - RRERARMEMNN - MERERES
WRBBIEARE - MAKREEEHMERRE
TEAREEER e EE) 2 FF {4

HE_ZT-_MF=A=1+—HILFELGEUE
BRI 2 GURED IR ELERE -

FERK
EERBESBRIACZHFARERESHRT
B RRBETHEEREASBEXYBER
ZRE - AEBEFEHZEERREZRERN
HEHFEBBETRZEAREEE - AEE
HAEREMBEERAEEAZEERR - B@ES
FR M 30 E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of deposits paid and other
receivables, individual credit evaluations are
performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay,
and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customer operates.
Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

None of the Group’s financial assets are secured
by collateral or other credit enhancements.

The Group measures loss allowances for
accounts receivable at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past
due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates
are adjusted to reflect differences between
economic conditions during the period over
which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of
the receivables.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group did
not have any accounts receivable.

33.

B bR E IR B AR R BUR ()

(b)

=& R ()

REMNRE REMEEHRENS  —BEXFE
Rk EEBB-—EHE  BETENEEN
o ZEFEERREFBERD R Z XM
B NRE N - UEEREPREERINA
LEEFPREMEKEREBAER - —&M
5 ARETEBRREFEMHENSR

ol

AEBzeREEMERERRNEMINRE
EREIEER -

AEERASEN2HMBREEBRZSBEE
FEM RN E B RS - ARSI ERRERRE
AESH  ARAEEBRAEEERERYE
BRTRANEPEHELERRZBEABRES
£ At ERBRIERELEEEE - TR
SETRTFEEE— TR

BFHEBREDENBEAFERBRER - %
ZEEXEEHRAR  URBRKSEBESES
A Z OB~ B AR S 5 [ 4 e 3RO
BRI FHIEER cBANER -

NR-E-NER-E-_=F=A=+—H K
& B AT FEURER 3K -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group measures loss allowances for
deposits paid and other receivables, bank
balances and pledged deposits under general
approach. The Group performs impairment
assessment on deposits paid and other
receivables on a periodic basis. Applying
the ECL model results in loss allowances of
approximately RMB27,251,000 as at 31 March
2024 (2023: RMB17,001,000). As at 31 March
2024, the gross carrying amount of deposit
paid and other receivables is approximately
RMB163,131,000 (2023: RMB159,978,000) and
the loss allowances increased by approximately
RMB10,250,000 (2023: RMB5,448,000) for
other receivables during the year ended 31
March 2024.

Movement in the loss allowance account in
respect of other receivables during the year is as

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

33. MBEMEEBERBEEGE

(b) EERREGE)
AEBRBEBAESEE MRS REMER
B RITEHBRERBERBPTFRZEBEE - A%
EE B B RS R E A R UGRIEE T TR E R
o EABAEEBSEENERN S ZIOF
—A=1+—BZEERBEOARK27,251,000
TT(ZZE =% : AR¥17,001,0007T) - R =
ToNME=ZA=+—H EfREEEMEK
A7 BEEAES B ARE163,131,0007T (=
T =4 : AR¥159,978,0007T) * MEZE—
EoNFZAZ+—HIEFEHEMERFIEZ
TR BB N4 A R#10,250,000t (=2 ==
F : AR¥5,448,0007T) °

FRAEMEBERFREZBRRERZFOT -

follows:
RMB’000
AE®FT
At 1 April 2022 R-ZE-__FIMA—H 11,553
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRNRERREBE 5,448
A 31 March 2023 RZEZ=F=H=+—H 17,001
Impairment losses recognised during the year FRERBIEBE 10,250
A 31 March 2024 R-ZE-_WNF=A=+—H 27,251

An adverse change in business, financial and
macroeconomic conditions has resulted in an
increase in overall loss allowance.

7% BB RERBEEIRRZ TH S8 G E
BEIE R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rk M

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had certain concentrations of credit risk as
approximately 56% (2023: 60%) of the Group’s
deposit paid and other receivables which were
due from a debtor in the PRC.

The credit risk on bank balances and pledged
deposits is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings. Based on
the Group’s internal credit rating, no material
impairment loss allowance is recognised for
bank balances and pledged deposits.

The Group’s cash and bank balances and
pledged deposits are mainly balances with
state-owned banks in the PRC and a reputable
bank in Hong Kong. As at 31 March 2024, the
Group had approximately 61% (2023: 45%)
bank balances placed with two banks in the
PRC.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out
in RMB which is the functional currency of most
of the group entities. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s
cash and bank balances, other receivables, and
other payables which are denominated in HKS,
and US$. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge its foreign
currency risk. The Group reviews its foreign
currency exposures regularly and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arises.

As at 31 March 2024 and 2023, the Group did
not have significant exposure to risk resulting
from changes in foreign currency exchange
rates.

33.

B bR E IR B AR R BUR ()

(b)

(c)

EEREE)

RBERKR  AEEE—EREZEFREER
% R AREBHNS6%(ZE-=4F : 60%)
B REMEWIB AW PR —RER
ANZFIA °

RITEHMEER TR EERAREAR - RA
EHFHREEFRRIE ZRT - RIEAEE
NEEEFL - TEMRRTEHR RS ERFR
EREABERIEEE

AEBZRERRTEBRUREERFTREE
ARPERARITREBEEERITER A
BN T-_MF=A=+—RH  FXEHY
B61%(ZT == : 45%) RITHE KT RN H E
MEERTT -

S B

AEBABOIRZUAAREET  MARETS
REBEEERZIGEEYR - EREXFARE
BAEENETRETIIEZE TRE RIRTT
REER - HARWGRIA R AR FRIR - AEE
WEERITESR T AL FEINERE R - K&
B Hmat KNSR - BERKERBEITE
RINE R -

N_EBE_NER _TE_=F=A=+—0 K
SEVTERINEEESBE 2 ERER

226 sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity risk
in respect of settlement of financial liabilities,
including accounts and other payables, lease
liabilities and bank loans, and its financial
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.

The cash management of all operating entities
is centralised, including the raising of funds to
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial
liabilities based on the remaining contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.

33.

(d)

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

B bR E IR B AR R BUR ()

RBESERE
MBETRBRIEAEERRERTRELEBR
NReEKHMEREEENZERBBEERZ
BffzRER - ARERENERABE(BER
R R EMENFKIE  HEABRBARRTE
FONKEFBEE  ARRERSREEREM
R EZER

FAGEERASHERER  HApiES
EE e URAEERRSER - AEEZHR
AEHERNERERADES TS - URR
HUBARRSREREESREBIEHRES
AEWE  RTENEEHREER Y RSE
SER -

TREBKTEVIPESIMAEEZEZHEA
B MRPEBEZEBR/EITNORBERADR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. H#EMREEBEREE(E)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEESRRESGE
More than
Ondemand  one year but Total Total
or within less than More than  undiscounted carrying
one year five years five years amount amount
REXY -ENE
K- EFEBLE BENE REREE REAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETFT  AREFT  AREFr AREFT  AREFRL
At 31 March 2024 RZE-ME
=R=t-H
Accounts payable R 15,994 = = 15,994 15,994
Accruals and other payables JER FIE RE M EN Y 239,711 = = 239,711 239,711
Lease liabilities HEEE 11,020 42,536 124,684 178,240 89,305
Bank loans RITER 98,865 481,621 37,409 617,895 531,950
365,590 524,157 162,093 1,051,840 876,960
Financial quarantee issued: BIEH 2 BT HEIR -
Maximum amount guaranteed S 997,233 - - 997,233 -
At 31 March 2023 R-EZ=%
=R=1-H
Accounts payable R 59,829 - - 59,829 59,829
Accruals and other payables e B REMENTE 211,149 - - 211,149 211,149
Lease liabilties HEEE 6,752 23,256 - 30,008 24,837
Bank loans WITER 76,425 431762 - 508,187 455,400
354,155 455,018 - 809,173 751,215
Financial guarantee issued: EAEH BT HEIR -
Maximum amount guaranteed EREREH 1,990,742 - - 1,990,742 -

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for the
management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves, banking
facilities and reserve banking facilities, and by
continuously monitoring forecast and actual
cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of
financial assets and liabilities.

EEEBCEVBEREZRDECRRERER
NEBAREEEY  PHRERHESALWRE
RBERZEERTK - AEEBEBEF TR
B RITEERMBARTEERE  FES
THANRERReRE  WEKHEREENE
1,\¢‘J,H\H|ﬁ/ﬂ,ﬁf§/}m@§i@ﬂﬁ °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(M)

Fair value

The fair value of the Group’s current financial
assets and liabilities are not materially different
from their carrying amounts because of
immediate or short term maturity of these
financial instruments. The fair value of non-
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.

Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

The following table presents financial assets
measured at fair value in the consolidated
statement of financial position in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy
groups financial assets and liabilities into
three levels based on the relative reliability of
significant inputs used in measuring the fair
value of these financial assets and liabilities. The
fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

° Level 1:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical
assets and liabilities;

° Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly
(i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

° Level 3: inputs for the asset or
liability that are not based
on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which
the financial asset or liability is categorised in its
entirety is based on the lowest level of input that
is significant to the fair value measurement.

33.

(e)

U]

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

B bR E IR B AR R BUR ()

[NnE
HRAREZ RS EREENBBENFHNE
R AitZFemTAZARERAER

HEYEERNER - ARKRE A2 FRHESR
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BEMABBEZARE-

REEMBRRRER 2 A AEF

fein
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRI

For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f)  Fair value measurements recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position

(Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position are
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

33. MBEMEREBERBEEE

( RESHBRARERZAAEFTEGE)

RFEEUBRRNRRAAEBFEZEREED
BRUATAARERBAR

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1R E2M ER T “st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTFT ARBTR ARBTR ARBTRT

Year ended 31 March 2024

Assets
Financial assets at FVOCI

= Unlisted equity investments

Year ended 31 March 2023

Assets
Financial assets at FVOCI

= Unlisted equity investments

BE-E-ME
ZAZ+-ALEE
BE
BOAEREMEE
Ry SBEE
- RETRERE

BE-T-=F
ZA=+-BLEE
BE
BEAREREMZE
WHFIE s SREE
- REMRERE

There were no transfers between levels during

the year.

- - 5,650 5,650

- - 8,650 8,650

FRERzELEER -
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

The fair value of unlisted equity instruments
is determined using market approach of
comparable companies adjusted for lack of
marketability discount.

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMEIERZREEE)
AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
()  Fair value measurements recognised in the N REESHERRERBRZAABENEGE)
consolidated statement of financial position
(Continued)
Reconciliation for financial instruments carried IRIBEART A B AR (B3R E AR EY
at fair value based on significant unobservable RzemIT AERNOT -
inputs (Level 3) are as follows:
Unlisted equity investments R ETRERE
2024 2023
—EDlEF —T-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TFT ARBTFT
At the beginning of the year REH] 8,650 13,000
Addition (note 31) WNE (Bat31) = 150
Total gains or losses: 1451 5ok TR ABRE ¢
= in other comprehensive income A E b2 W S (3,000) (4,500)
At the end of the year RER 5,650 8,650

R EMBIELR 2 2R EERA LA AN %
B URBES SRR R .

Significant unobservable input BATAHEGABIR
2024 2023
—EomE —ZEC-=fF
Discount for lack of marketability BR=miEmBtTE 25% 25%

The fair value measurement is negatively
correlated to the discount for lack of
marketability. As at 31 March 2024, it is
estimated that with all other variables held
constant, a decrease/increase in the discount
for lack of marketability by 5% (2023: 5%) would
have increased/decreased the Group’s other
comprehensive income by RMB283,000 (2023:
RMB425,000).

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

N

AR EFFEREREZ TS RBENTERRLG)
m:z:m¢ A=+—8  HEtEmBEEM
BERBTENBERT @ MRZTERBIEN
aﬁﬂd SEINE%(ZBE =4 : 5%)  NEH
2 H b2 mE U A0,R  A R #283,000
T(ZE==%F : AR¥425,0007T) °

=

AR EBARBEZHERMMERMENERS
HRARI AR L 3 B 2 o

EBEREEMARAT - 2023/24 % 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z - F — W =F=+—HIF F&

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33. B EMRERE B ERBEE)

AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Summary of financial assets and liabilities (9) REEP>ZEREERAGEHE
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities T BREEGEMBERARZEREERE
included in the consolidated statements of BEAREHEMNAZIESR -
financial position and the headings in which they
are included are as follows:
2024 2023
—E-MF —EZ=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Financial assets measured at fair value #EAREBENECZEHMEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BEAREREMEZE
WP Rz 2REE 5,650 8,650
Financial assets measured at amortised ZE##HEAEZ
cost ERMEE
Deposits paid and other receivables BT & E AW IE 135,880 142,977
Pledged deposits BIEHRFER 54,273 60,430
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTHEH 184,415 434,572
374,568 637,979
380,218 646,629
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REBEHATEZ
cREE
Accounts payable FETBR X 15,994 59,829
Accruals and other payables JE 5T RRI8 B E A FE A
FKIE 239,711 211,149
Bank loans |ITEN 531,950 455,400
787,655 726,378
Other financial instrument HihemT A
Lease liabilities HEBE 89,305 24,837
876,960 751,215

At the end of reporting period, the carrying
values of financial assets and financial liabilities

at amortised costs are approximate to their fair

value.

232 sino Harbour Holdings Group Limited * ANNUAL REPORT 2023/24

RBEHR - RBEKNAHEZEREERS
BAEGZEEERAARERE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

(i To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure
and shareholder returns, taking into consideration
the future capital requirements of the Group and
capital efficiency, prevailing and projected profitability,
projected operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment
opportunities. The Group currently does not adopt
any formal dividend policy.

34.

e MR EmRM

For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

BEXER
AEEEREAZBER

() #EFAEERELEZRN  NEERKD
R E e N N A

iy ZTERAEEZBERERE: K

(i) REERBAEERZRABREEES o

AEBEGE N E SR REREERRE - AR
BEEREEARBRRARERRO®R - X E BN
SERKRESFTERERKY - B LIAR 2T 5
N FRRAKERSRE - FHRIE AR X RIERIREK
MIREKSE - NEE B AT ERR A EA R BER
% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 &£ —F —JF =H=+—HIF F/Z

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 34. EXREE(E)
Management regards total equity as capital. The EEERERBERAEAR RZITE_WF=-H=
amount of capital as at 31 March 2024 amounted +—H - BXeEHAARK2,010,338,0007T(=
to approximately RMB2,010,338,000 (2023: TZ=%: AR¥1,980,348,0007T) - EEELE
RMB1,980,348,000), which the management BIEGEARAZ REFRBEERERSR  BRE
considers as optimal having considered the projected AEHBBEEKE RIZE-NERZT=F=
capital expenditures and the projected strategic A=T—BZEBFESERLENAT
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity
ratios at 31 March 2024 and 2023 were as follows:
2024 2023
—EomEF —E-=fF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFT
Accounts payable FERTER K 15,994 59,829
Accruals and other payables FERT SR8 I H At FE T 58 239,711 211,149
Lease liabilities HERE 89,305 24,837
Bank loans RITER 531,950 455,400
876,960 751,215
Less: Cash and bank balances B IRE MIRTT AR (184,415) (434,572)
Pledged deposits BEBER (54,273) (60,430)
Net debts E5FEE 638,272 256,213
Equity PR 2,010,338 1,980,348
Net debts to equity ratio B FREY Rt & 32% 13%
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

35. GEREREBRME

(@ RERRESEEYEE:

2024 2023
—E-mE —EC=4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR#TFT AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of FL4FABERERIME 2
consolidated statements of cash flows ReMREFEEY 88,224 99,603
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from b) BEITBFEEZEEHE:
financing activities:
Dividend Lease
payable liabilities Bank loans
ENRE HEaE RITER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR FIT ARKFT AREFIT
(note 29) (note 24)
(Htat29) (Hit24)
At 1 April 2022 RZE__FIMA—H - 16,241 465,990
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Dividend paid B8RS (42,248) - -
Proceeds from new bank loans IRTTERZ B RUA - - 280,000
Repayment of bank loans EERITER - - (290,590)
Repayment of principal portion of lease BEHEABEAL I
liabilities - (12,046) -
Interest paid EAHLE - (762) (21,551)
Total changes from financing cash flows Rt &I & & & Eh1a% (42,248) (12,808) (32,141)
Other changes: H bt
Dividend declared 2 EIREE 42,248 - -
Interest expense FEMZ - 762 -
Additions of right-of-use assets EREEERE - 20,642 -
Capitalisation of borrowing costs EETEIEER A - - 21,551
Total other changes H & B)a%m 42,248 21,404 21,551
At 31 March 2023 RZZBZ=%F
—A=+—H - 24,837 455,400
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 # %2 — %

(b)

—WEZ A=+ —HLEE

35. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 35. GERSRERMZEE)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BMETBFEEZEEGYHER: (&)
financing activities: (Continued)
Lease
liabilities Bank loans
HEEE IRITER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARKTFT
(note 29) (note 24)
(Hi7E29) (Ktzt24)
At 1 April 2023 R-ZZE-=FMA—H 24,837 455,400
Changes from cash flows: REREH
Proceeds from new bank loans WRITE yA’ZFﬁ SHIB - 120,000
Repayment of bank loans BEERITER - (43,450)
Repayment of principal portion of lease EEHEABAL D
liabilities (21,610) -
Interest paid ERHLE (3,492) (31,164)
Total changes from financing cash flows BY &R & &2 1A% (25,102) 45,386
Other changes: HEmEs)
Interest expenses B 3,492 7,969
Additions to right-of-use asset FAEEERE 10,979 -
Additions to investment properties RENMERE 75,099 -
Capitalisation of borrowing costs BEREERA - 23,195
Total other changes H i) asa 89,570 31,164
At 31 March 2024 AT _ME=A=+—
H 89,305 531,950
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For the year ended 31 March 2024 #Z = F —P1F=F =+—HIL F&F

36. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY

36. ADFPEAARRE

2024 2023
—EME —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥For ARBFT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SCIENGIPR: £ 17 285,452 285,452
Current assets RBEE
Deposit, prepayment and other e BANRIEREA
receivables fEUR FR I8 918 960
Amounts due from subsidiaries JE UG B B A B FR IR 332,513 331,136
Cash and bank balances R MIRTTH# R 41 43
333,472 332,139
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables JERTFRIE N H At FE T 5RIB 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FETHIB R B3R 28,907 28,907
28,971 28,971
Net current assets REBEEFE 304,501 303,168
Total assets less current liabilites @EENABEE 589,953 588,620
Net assets EEFE 589,953 588,620
EQUITY s
Share capital A7 26 20,735 20,735
Reserves i 27 569,218 567,885
Total equity EREE 589,953 588,620
On behalf of the Board REEEZ

Wong Lam Ping
JEMIK
Director

EF

Wong Lui
A&
Director

EF
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

MBHME

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEXE
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t—-HLEE
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
T -FE —E-—F —E-—F —E-=F —E-mE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFrr AREBFT AREFT AREFT AR¥Frx
(Restated)
(isE71)
Revenue WA 448,420 426,884 1,738,833 247,460 891,657
Profit before income tax R PT1SHE R & Al 140,691 117,352 607,130 33,300 144,759
Income tax expenses TS (84,749 (66,468) (290,759) (22,321) (113,354)
Profit for the year FERHEF 55,942 50,884 316,371 10,979 31,405
Attributable to: AT ALTEL
Owners of the Company E/NSIEZZS N 56,958 57,544 259,119 18,593 52,453
Non-controlling interests R ER (1,016) (6,660) 57,252 (7,614) (21,048)
55,942 50,884 316,371 10,979 31,405
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND MEEE  REERER
LIABILITIES
As at 31 March
R=B=+-H
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-F —E-—F —EC-CF —EC-=H —E-E
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFr AREBFT AREFT AREFT AR¥Frx
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 947,132 1,253,687 1,524,474 1,589,307 1,662,058
Current assets MEEE 3,348,273 3,916,377 3,093,505 3,235,954 2,596,969
Total assets HMEE 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979 4,825,261 4,259,027
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EzkEE
Total equity T B 1,619,349 1,656,415 2,014,076 1,980,348 2,010,338
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 340,510 461,021 457,785 539,477 662,628
Current liabilities TEEE 2,335,546 3,052,628 2,146,118 2,305,436 1,586,061
Total liabilities we| 2676056 3513649 = 2603903 ~ 2844913 2,248,689
Total equity and liabilities EEkaEanm 4,295,405 5,170,064 4,617,979 4,825,261 4,259,027
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MR

KEY FINANCIAL RATIO TER B = 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
—E-TF —E-F —E-- —E-o=E —ECNE
(Restated)
(e =5)
Gross profit margin (%) EME (%) 43.0 39.7 28.9 39.4 33.2
Net profit margin (%) AR (%) 12.5 11.9 18.2 4.4 3.5
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 1) BAEEENLE %)
(Hist1) 204 354 22.5% 22.7% 26.2%
Current ratio (times) (Note 2) mEE (f5)
(Hrit2) 1.43 1.28 1.44 1.40 1.64
Earnings per share SREF (ARES)
(RMB cents) (Note 3) (His23) 2.3 2.3 10.5 0.75 2.13
Net asset value per share ARAHEBA
attributable to owners of EIEERFEE
the Company (RMB) (Note 4) (AR®) (Kizt4) 0.6 06 0.7 0.7 0.7
Notes: Bt -
1. Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of bank 1. BAREBEHRUEEERITREME KAL) FMABERER

and other loans) less related deposit collateral over total equity.

Current ratio represents total current assets divided by total 2.
current liabilities as at the end of the year.

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit 3.
attributable to owners of the Company and the weighted average
number of Shares in issue during the year.

According to the ordinary resolution approved by the
Shareholders at the AGM held on 26 July 2016, a total of

BRUAESRAAERTE -

MBLLEERFRORBEERER AR RIERE -

BRERBIIZFARAREAS AR KB BT I

FOmHE

BRER-Z
s SR 8

°

—RFELAZTRARTZRRBEARG L&

sy N ¢
ERAFER

CTRZE-XENA+TZA AH

1,232,000,000 new Shares were allotted and issued pursuant
to the bonus issue on 12 August 2016. The weighted average
number of Shares for the purposes of calculating basic
earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2017 had been
retrospectively adjusted to 2,464,000,000 Shares (for the year
ended 31 March 2016: 2,446,338,798 Shares) after completion
of the bonus issue on 12 August 2016.

Net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company
represents equity attributable to the Company’s owners divided
by number of Shares in issue as at the end of the year.

4.

1,232,000,0008% 51 B% 19 1R IR AT AR 35 1T JE AL 3% ] 31T o 4TAR 3%
TRZZE—R"ENA+TZBERE  REHE=ZZT—tF
SACTHLEFESRERBRZ RO NEFSEEHHA
D2 464,000,000 (BE_ZE—"F—A=+—HIFE:
2,446,338,798/%) °

AAFHEA NEEBRFEERARRRE ABEESRIAF
REBTROHKE -
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
BEEAM RE/ER ARE BRI
k3 L) fHEE BEEE 59 ERES RS
I
COMPLETED PROPERTIES
BRINE
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 1-2 - No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, RC 80,521 R:1815 R Expiringon 100%  Completed
Honggu Tan Central District, G: 261 16 September 2073
Nanchang City, Jiangxi C: Expiring on
Province, the PRC 16 September 2043
BELAY-Z8 TEIREREEMIAR RIMZZL=E BRI
fORAIAKE1568% NATREER
C:RZEM=F
NATRBER
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 719,548 R 1,423 R:Bxpiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Completed
Zone 1-3=Town house Road, Nanchang Economic (:8286  C: Expiring on 18 May 2062
annexed with commercial and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
BEEE e 1-00E - HEIRERETHELE R:MZBrZF BAT
-ERFIZERRE RiTREEER R608% EATNRER
C:R-TH_F
RATINBER
Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan Phase 1,3 No. 766 Jinchao Avenue, RC 190,758 ;5318 C: Expiring on 31 January 2050 100%  Completed
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
mEREER— =5 HEIREEN T2 ENE C:RZZHTF BAT
766% —A=t-BER
Sino Harbour  Wu Lin Hui Southwest junction of C 20,482 C:1,080  C: Expiring on 6 April 2054 100%  Completed
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
Bk o BAE HE AN TAERET C:R-ZHRF BRI
RRBEARED mAREER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
M=ES

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
BEERN RE/ER ARE BRI
k3 L) fHEE BEEE 59 ERES RS
I
COMPLETED PROPERTIES (Continued)
BRINEE)
Sino Harbour ¢ Guan Lan Phase 1, 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 201912 R 121,893 R:Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Completed
Yuanzhou District, C:2390  C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEeBRE- 8 HEIREEETRME RiPNZBttE BRI
HFA18209% ZAZTARER
C:RZBMLF
ZAZTABER
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
REMIE
Sino Harbour ¢ Run Yuan A-05.and A-07 Tongjia Mountain, R, C 71,145 R,C:201,297 R Expiring on 8 November 2090 51%  CY2026Q1
Leping City, Jiangxi Province, C: Expiring on 8 November 2060
the PRC
v ER TEIREETHTERLAGR R:WZENEE ZIDNE
AT t-AN\RER 528
C:REAEF
T-ANBER
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

MEAS

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
sqm) (sq.m)
BEERN RE/ BB ARE BRI
k3 L) fHEE BEEE 59 ERES RS
Iz
FUTURE PROJECTS
AR
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kalxuan City No. 888 Huang Jia Hu West RC 221,689 R,C:902,897 R Expiring on 18 May 2072 55%  Under planning
Zong 413 Road, Nanchang Economic C: Expiring on 18 May 2042
and Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BEEE 1388 e R:WZBLf B
RRERER AR BATNRER
888% C:RZEm=%
RATNBER
Sino Harbour  Guan Lan Phase 3-4 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 179,944 R, C: 431,547 R: Expiring on 29 March 2077 100%  Under planning
Yuanzhou District, C: Expiring on 29 March 2047
Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
EEEF-ENE HEIEEHETRME R:MZBLE stEl
ERAB209% ZAZThRER
C:R-ZMLE
ZAZTABER
Sino Harbour ¢ Run Yuan A-02, Tongjia Mountain, Leping R, C 66,889 R,C:230,369 R Expiring on 8 November 2090 51%  Under planning
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC C: Expiring on 8 November 2060
Bt ER hEIREETHERIL R:MZENZE stEl
AQ2ERR t-AN\RER
C:RZZ/ EF
T-ANBER
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E SRy

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
BEEAM RE/ER A%E BRI
k3 L) fHEE BEEE 59 ERES RS
I
PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT
REREEDR
Various retail units on Levels 1-4 and No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A ;36675 C: Expiring on 100%  Completed
various office units on Levels 6-24 Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
of Sino Harbour Kaixuan Center and Nanchang City,
various retall units of Level 1-2 of Block ~ Jiangxi Province, the PRC
2 and Level 1 of Block 6 and a 3-storey
kindergarten of Nanchang Honggu
Kaixuan
BEL AT RER TR0 I4E TEIREREMAIAR oyl C:RIZH=F BRI
ETREERRG2E hLETARE568% AATABER
ETETRENREEE1F0ER
FOREIEETZEEAIR
—~B=ERYHE
Various retall units on Levels 1 and 2 No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A C:4,025  C: Expiing on 29 March 2047 100%  Completed
of Blocks 1to 4, 6.and 7 of Yuanzhou District,
Yichun Royal Lake City Yichun City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC
BAEMWIE 124 6RTH TEIREEETAME 0 li C:RZZmtE BRI
F-R_EERTEERR EFA#8209% ZAZTNBER
Various retail and office units of Hanzhiyun -~ Southwest junction of C 20,482 (:50,082  C: Expiring on 6 Apri 2054 100%  Completed
Commercial Center Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road,
Gongshu District,
Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC
EZBEFRLATREERR R AN THERE T C:R-ZLMFMARBER BAT
BTREN BREERERD
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PROPERTY PORTFOLIO
I3

Site Area in Effective  Expected
respectof  Planned/Actual Group  Completion
Location Type Entire Project GFA  Tenure Interest  Date
fsq.m) (sq.m)
BEERN RE/ BB ARE BRI
k3 L) fHEE BEEE 59 ERES RS
(F5x) (ErR)
PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP
HAERLEEZNZ
Levels, 25/F and 26/F, Sino Harbour No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, C N/A C:1,232 G Expiring on 100%  Completed
Kaixuan Center, Honggu Tan Central District, 16 September 2043
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
BENAIEE AR L0R6E  REIRLEETIAE ER C:RZEE=% BRI
fORAAKE1568% NATRBER
Room 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West Road, R N/A R:166 R Expiring in June 2069 100%  Completed
the South Bulding of Minshi Garden Xihu District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
LR ERIEBETI500E Gl NER R: BB NERARR BRI
i85
R: Residential R: FE
C:  Commercial and other C: BERAM
CY: Calendar year cYy: JEBF

The “Planned GFA” and “Expected Completion Date” are based on the — [#F|ZLE &R [T AR EREERE ) & (E G55 H 17
best estimate by the management. These figures may change as the — [H ° iZZE(F AJpEFE IR B # 2 i1 &
projects progress.
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